
Jefferson County Board of Commissioners Agenda 
Regular Quarterly Work Session Monday, April 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse Main Courtroom 

Regular Quarterly Work Session 04 08 2024  1 

AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PRAYER

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

a. Grateful Na�on Project – Ronald Knight

V. PUBLIC HEARING

a. Resolu�on 2023-49 Special Uses and Special Use Permits

b. Resolu�on 2024-04 Rezoning C-2 to A-1 Bramble Lane

c. Resolu�on 2024-06 Rezoning A-1 to C-2 Lowery Loop Road

VI. APPROVAL & CORRECTIONS OF THE AGENDA

VII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a. Regular Quarterly Session for Jefferson County Board of Commissioners
on Monday, January 22, 2024 (Handout)

VIII. APPEARANCE OF CITIZENS

Ci�zens who wish to address the County Commission for items of concern that may or
may not be on the agenda need to complete a “Ci�zen Input Form” located on the table
just inside the door and hand it to the Chairman before the mee�ng “Call to Order”.

IX. PROCLAMATIONS & COURTESY RESOLUTIONS

a. Eddie Woods

b. Michael Romines

c. Johnny Carmichael

d. David Davenport

X. APPROVAL OF NOTARIES & BONDS (Handout)

XI. NOMINATING COMMITTEE/ELECTION OF COMMITTEES, BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

a. Audit Commitee, Garry Jet, Chair

b. Nomina�ng Commitee, Heidi Thomas, Chair

c. Long Range Planning Commitee, Jim Snodgrass, Chair



Jefferson County Board of Commissioners  Agenda 
Regular Quarterly Work Session  Monday, April 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse  Main Courtroom 

Regular Quarterly Work Session 04 08 2024   2 
 

 

XII. REPORTS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS, DEPARTMENT HEADS, OTHERS 

a.  County Mayor – Mark Pots 

i. Mayoral Appointments 

EMS Board  Colin McRae April 2024 - October 2024 

ii. Resolu�on 2024-01 Updated TOSHA Plan 

iii. Resolu�on 2024-10 – CDBG Administra�ve Services 

iv. Eminent Domain Reform 

v. EV Charging Sta�on Agreement with AEC 

b. Chairman’s Comments – Jimmy Carmichael 

c. Other Elected Officials 

a. Circuit/Sessions Court Clerk – Kevin Poe (Handout) 

i. Fire Alam Policy (Handout) (For Informa�on Only) 

b. County Clerk – Frank Herndon (Handout) 

i. Wheel Tax Compliance Office (Handout) 

c. Highway Department – Charles Tipton (Handout) 

d. Register of Deeds – Ed S�ner (Handout) 

e. Sheriff’s Department – Jeff Coffey (Handout) 

f. Assessor of Property – Susan Gass 

g. County Trustee – Jennifer Boling Hall (Handout) 

h. Jefferson County Constables – Jacob Thompson (Handout) 

b. County Atorney 

c. Department/Director Reports 

a. Building Inspector – Rob Wilson (Handout) 

b. Sanita�on Department – David Gaut 

c. Department of Educa�on – Dr. Tommy Arnold (Handouts) 

i. Quarterly Report 

ii. Resolu�on 2024-122 (For Informa�on only) 

iii. Resolu�on 2024-123 (For Informa�on only) 



Jefferson County Board of Commissioners  Agenda 
Regular Quarterly Work Session  Monday, April 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse  Main Courtroom 

Regular Quarterly Work Session 04 08 2024   3 
 

iv. Resolu�on 2024-124 (For Informa�on only) 

 

d. Emergency Communica�ons District – Jus�n Crowther (Handout) 

e. Emergency Medical Services – Brad Phillips (Handout) 

f. Environmental – Tom Carter (Handout) 

g. Finance Department – Jessica Elder 

i. February 2024 Financials 

ii. Surplus Property Policy 

h. Health Department – Ashley Lyons   

i. Jefferson Park – Roger Mynat 

j. Office on Aging – Arlita Brisbin (Handout) 

k. Soil Conserva�on Office  

l. Tourism – Lauren Hurdle (Handout) 

m. UT Extension – Karen Nelms (Handout) 

n. Veterans Service – Cur�s Hudson (Handout) 

d. Reports of Commitees, Boards & Commissions, Other 

a. Budget Commitee  
i. Budget Amendments County 

o Fund 101 #19, Item 1 
o Fund 101 #20, Items 1-18 
o Fund 101 #21, Items 1-4 
o Fund 101 #22, Item 1 
o Fund 116 #4, Item 1  
o Fund 121 #4, Item 1 
o Fund 122 #1, Item 1 
o Fund 131 #2, Item 1 
o Fund 151 #2, Items 1-2 
o Fund 171 #3, Items 1-5 
o Fund 174 #1, Item 1 
o Fund 189 #2, Item 1 
o Fund 207 #3, Items 1-3 

 
ii. Budget Amendments School 

o Fund 141 #13, Item 1-2 



Jefferson County Board of Commissioners  Agenda 
Regular Quarterly Work Session  Monday, April 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse  Main Courtroom 

Regular Quarterly Work Session 04 08 2024   4 
 

o Fund 141 #14, Item 1 
o Fund 141 #15, Items 1-8 

 
o Fund 141 #16, items 1-2 
o Fund 141 #17, Item 1 
o Fund 141 #18, Items 1-10 
o Fund 141 #19, Item 1 
o Fund 141 #20, Item 1 
o Fund 142 #7, Items 1-2 
o Fund 142 #8, Items 1-3p 
o Fund 142 #9, Items 1-3 
o Fund 143 #3, Item 1 
o Fund 177 #5, Item 1 

 
iii. Resolu�on 2024-09 TCRS Military Service  
iv. Eminent Domain Reimbursement 
v. Policy 4.3 Debt Management Annual Review 
vi. Jefferson County – Redemp�on Leter – 2010 Bond 

 
 

b. Non-Profits/Others 

a. Jefferson Alliance (Handout) 

b. Jefferson County Chamber of Commerce (Handout) 

c. Companion Animal Rescue & Educa�on (Handout) 

d. Fire & Rescue 

1. Baneberry Volunteer Fire Department 

2. Chestnut Hill Volunteer Fire Department  

3. Dandridge Volunteer Fire Department (Handout) 

4. Jefferson City Fire Department 

5. Jefferson County Rescue Squad (Handout) 

6. Kansas Talbot Volunteer Fire Department 

7. Lakeway Central Volunteer Fire Department 

8. New Market Volunteer Fire Department (Handout) 

9. Parrot’s Chapel Community Fire Department 

(Handout) 



Jefferson County Board of Commissioners  Agenda 
Regular Quarterly Work Session  Monday, April 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse  Main Courtroom 

Regular Quarterly Work Session 04 08 2024   5 
 

10. White Pine Volunteer Fire Department (Handout) 

 

 

 
e. Libraries 

i. Jefferson County Library Board 
a. Board Appointments (Handout) 

ii. Dandridge Memorial Public Library (Handout) 
iii. Jefferson City Public Library (Handout) 
iv. Parrot-Wood Memorial Library (Handout) 
v. White Pine Public Library (Handout) 

   

XIII. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Eminent Domain Bills Update by David Seals, Commissioner Terry Dockery 
b. Resolu�on 2023-62 BESS Uses only in I-2 Zone 

XIV. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Consent Agenda 
b. 2024-2024 County Commission Calendar 
c. Resolu�on 2024-07 Increasing School/Adequate Facili�es Tax  
d. Resolu�on 2024-11 New C-3 Zoning, Commissioner Ausin Brooks 
e. Surplus Resolu�ons 

i. Resolu�on 2024-02 Juvenile Court Surplus & Dispose 
ii. Resolu�on 2024-08 Finance Department Surplus & Dispose 
iii. Resolu�on 2024-12 Sheriff’s Department Surplus & Sell 

 
XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

XVI. ADJOURN 

 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY BEER BOARD MEETING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE REGULAR VOTING 
MEETING OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION ON MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2024 

 

 

 





 

  
RESOLUTION 2023-49 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2023-49 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING RESOLUTION OF JEFFERSON 

COUNTY, TENNESSEE, REGARDING SPECIAL USES AND SPECIAL USE PERMITS   
 

Prime Sponsor, Commissioner Katy Huffaker 
Commission Co-Sponsors: Jim Snodgrass and Jimmy Dale Patterson 

 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 authorizes county legislative bodies 

to amend their zoning resolutions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County (hereinafter referred to as 
the “CLB”) desires to submit certain amendments to the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution 
(hereinafter referred to as “Zoning Resolution”) to the Jefferson County Regional Planning 
Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “JCRPC”) for their consideration and approval or 
denial; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 requires that amendments to the 
Zoning Resolution be first submitted to the JCRPC for approval, disapproval or suggestions;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee (“CLB”), meeting in regular session on the 16th day of October, 
2023, as follows: 
 
 Section 1: Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §13-7-105, the CLB submits to the 
JCRPC for disapproval or approval the following amendments to the Zoning Resolution:  
 
 A new section in Article 9, Section 9.12- (“SPECIAL USES AND SPECIAL USE 
PERMITS”), which states:   

 
9.12 Special Uses/ Special Use Permits 
This section of the regulations allows for the following special uses in the listed zones as a 
Special Use approved by the Jefferson County Board of Zoning Appeals, after notification of 
abutting property owners via certified mail at least 15 days before the public hearing, after public 
hearing before the Board of Zoning Appeals, and after review of such conditions as to operation, 
site development, signage, access, ingress/ egress, infrastructure, safety, health, and time limit as 
may be deemed necessary in order that such use will not seriously or significantly injure the 
appropriate use of the neighboring property or cause nuisance, and will conform to the general 
intent and purpose of this title and shall comply with the height and area regulations of the 
district in which they may be located as well as any other regulations and sections in this Zoning 
Resolution, addressing such uses. 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2023-49 
 2 

 

(a) Campgrounds, RV Parks, and travel trailer parks: A-1 and RR zones 
(b) Value-added agricultural processing activities: A-1 
(c) Crushing of Rock: A-1 

 
Denied by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission: November 28, 2023 
 
Denied by the Dandridge Regional Planning Commission: February 13, 2024. 
 
Denied by the Jefferson City Regional Planning Commission: February 26, 2024 
 
Denied by the White Pine Regional Planning Commission: March 19, 2024. 
 
Public hearing held: April 8, 2024 
 
Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission                                       



  

RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-04 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE “ZONING MAP OF 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE” BY REZONING  

PROPERTY FROM C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
TO A-1, AGRICULTURAL-FORESTRY 

 
 WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners, in accordance with 
Section 13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, may amend the zoning resolution 
and the “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission has reviewed 
and made a recommendation regarding the proposed amendment of the “Zoning Map of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County 
Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee: 
 
 Section 1. The “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee” is hereby 
amended by rezoning parcel 022.02 and a portion of 022.00 (5.76 acres) of Jefferson 
County Tax Map 058 as depicted on the attached map, from to C-2, General Commercial 
to A-1, Agricultural Forestry. 
 
 Section 2. The property to be rezoned is located on Bramble Lane in 
Dandridge, TN, and is owned by James Dale Franklin, Trustee and Paul & Sabrina 
Tartarilla. 
 
 Section 3. This resolution shall become effective from and after its passage, 
the public welfare requiring it. 
 
Approved/Denied by the Dandridge Regional Planning Commission: March 12, 2024. 
 
Public hearing held:  April 8, 2024.  



  

RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 2 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 





  
RESOLUTION 2024-06 
 
 
 

1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-06 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE “ZONING MAP OF 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE” BY REZONING  
PROPERTY FROM A-1, AGRICULTURAL-FORESTRY 

TO C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
 

 WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners, in accordance with 
Section 13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, may amend the zoning resolution 
and the “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission has reviewed 
and made a recommendation regarding the proposed amendment of the “Zoning Map of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County 
Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee: 
 
 Section 1. The “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee” is hereby 
amended by rezoning a portion of parcel 060.00 (approx. 1.035 acres) of Jefferson 
County Tax Map 032 as depicted on the attached map, from to A-1, Agricultural Forestry 
to C-2, General Commercial. 
 
 Section 2. The property to be rezoned is located at Lowery Loop Road / W. 
Highway 11-E in New Market, TN, and is owned by Edward F., III and Lisa Otis. 
 
 Section 3. This resolution shall become effective from and after its passage, 
the public welfare requiring it. 
 
Approved by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission: March 26, 2024. 
 
Public hearing held:  April 8, 2024.  



  
RESOLUTION 2024-06 
 
 
 

2 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 







   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 1 
 

REGULAR QUARTERLY SESSION          JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS       JANUARY 22, 2024 
 
STATE OF TENNESSEE 
 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED THAT, the Quarterly Session of the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners began and 
was held in and for the aforementioned State and County on the 22nd day of January 2024 A.D. at 6:30 P.M. rescheduled 
from a cancelled meeting on the 16th day of January 2024 due to inclement weather, at the Jefferson County Courthouse 
in Dandridge, Tennessee. Present and Presiding were Chairman Jimmy Carmichael; County Clerk Frank Herndon; and the 
following County Commissioners answering to Roll Call Docket Book 4 Page 185 to-wit: Katy Huffaker, Janet Norton, 
Jimmy Dale Patterson, Austin Brooks, Paul Lowe, John Johnson, Tim Seals, Sammy Solomon, Rob Blevins, Ransom 
Douglas, Randy Bales, John Neal Scarlett, Ronny Coleman, Terry Dockery, Jimmy Carmichael, and A. J. Walker. Sixteen 
(16) members were present, Five (5) were absent: Joe Coleman, Jim Snodgrass, Greg Byrd, Terry Dockery, and Hilda 
“Heidi” Thomas. 

The Meeting was called to order by Chairman Carmichael. An invocation was given by Commissioner Reed, and 
Chairman Carmichael led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
APPROVAL & CORRECTIONS OF THE AGENDA: 

Commissioner Brooks moved to suspend the rules to add C-3 Zoning to the agenda. Commissioner Norton 
provided a second. A Roll Call vote was taken 10-5 (in favor: Huffaker, Norton, Patterson, Brooks, Solomon, Blevins, 
Douglas, R. Coleman, Walker, and Reed) and the suspension of the rules failed. Commissioner Solomon moved to 
approve the agenda as presented, Commissioner Blevins provided a second. A Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all 
present) and the agenda was approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

Commissioner Solomon moved to approve the minutes of the Jefferson County Board of Commissioners, 
October 16, 2023: Regular Quarterly Session, December 11, 2023: Special Called Session, and October 16, 2023, Beer 
Board, seconded by Commissioner Bales. A Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all present), and the above-listed 
minutes were approved.  
 
APPEARANCE OF CITIZENS: 

David L. Seal 9th District – Spoke in opposition to the renewal of the Wheel Tax and funding of the Chamber of 
Commerce. 

Kara Campbell 5th District – Spoke in favor of the renewal of the wheel tax and funding of a new JES. 
Taylor Hackbarth 10th District – Spoke in favor of a new JES being funded. 
Sabrina D. Thomas 5th District – Spoke in favor of a new JES. 
Kristin Depew 1st District – Invited Commission to a Candidate meet and greet January 30th held by the GOP 

Women of Jefferson County. 
James E. Knowlan 7th District – Against the Wheel Tax being renewed. 
Tina Ball 2nd District – Opposed Rock Crusher on 25/70. 
Bryan Asbury 2nd District – Spoke on behalf of Jeffery McMahon and Steven & Sandra Tomberero in opposition 

to Rock Crusher on 25/70. 



   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 2 
 

Melina Rogers 2nd District – Opposes Rock Crusher on 25/70. 
Dail Meadows 1st District - Opposes Rock Crusher on 25/70. 
Clara C. Collinsworth 6th District – Supports rezoning of Bruner Property. 
Debbie Stade-Self 6th District – Supports proper zoning and community growth and cohesiveness with proper 

zoning. 
Mark Lichty 1st District – Against Special Use Permits Resolution as amended. 
Marian Knight 1st District – Requested improved zoning. 
Austin Brooks 3rd District – Favors C-3 zoning. 
Jennifer Montgomery 6th District – Opposes Rezoning of Bruner Property. 
Beth Nelson 6th District – Opposes Rezoning of Bruner Property to I-1 and request County Commission to fix the 

zoning in Jefferson County. 
Dale A. Morgan 6th District – In favor of Rezoning Bruner Property. 
David L. Nelson 6th District – Spoke to dispel rumors surrounding the rezoning of the Bruner Property. 
Scott Hurley on behalf of Bob Berry 6th District – Spoke against “radical change” in the zoning footprint of 

Jefferson County. 
Robert Blevins on behalf of Annette Loy 6th District – Spoke to the corrections needed to the Planning 

Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals. 
Robert Bruner 6th District – Requesting approval of rezoning of his property in Strawberry Plains. 

 
MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS: 

Mayor Potts prepared the following Honorary Resolutions that were read aloud and entered into the minutes. 
1. An Honorary Proclamation to Honor and Remember a Hometown Hero, US Army PFC John W. Watkins, as 

part of the Grateful Nation Project. 
 
APPROVAL OF NOTARIES & BONDS: 

Commissioner Seals moved to approve the list of notaries as presented, Commissioner Blevins seconded the 
motion. A Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all present) and the below named applicants for Notary Public were 
approved providing the proper bonds or property affidavits are filed in the office of the County Clerk. 
  

Kristi Coffey    Victoria Lee Coy  Aubrey Jones  Susan Stiner 
Stephanie Parrish Churchwell David Phillips  Larry Novotny  Mary Bluford 
Kathleen H Lockhart  Charmaine D Stafford Ashley Livesay  Debra Kincheloe 
Dieonne Reed   Tammy Loy  Jennifer Buford  Amanda Hodges 
Leslie Adderhold  Samantha Pilkert David R. Lockhart Chesney R. Hall 
Tanya Lowell   Christina Gaytan Kathryn Hall Bennett Janet M. Willis 

 
REPORTS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS, DEPARTMENT HEADS, AND OTHER OFFICIALS: 

A. Mayor Mark Potts 
1. Mayoral Appointments 

a. E-911 Board Dean Ballinger  March 2024 – October 2024 
Commissioner Solomon moved that the Mayoral Appointment be confirmed, Commissioner 
Scarlett provided a second, and with a Roll Call vote of 16-0 (in favor: all present) the nominee 
was confirmed. 



   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 3 
 

2. Resolution 2023-64: FY 2024 CDBG Grant Application – Commissioner Solomon moved Resolution 2023-
64 for approval, Commissioner R. Coleman provided a second, and with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all 
present) Resolution 2023-64 was approved. 

3. Resolution 2023-65: FY 2024 HOME Application – Commissioner R. Coleman moved Resolution 2023-65 
for approval, Commissioner Johnson provided a second, and with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all 
present) Resolution 2023-65 was approved. 

4. Resolution 2023-71: Planning Grant Application – Commissioner Johnson moved Resolution 2023-71 for 
approval, Commissioner Solomon provided a second, and with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all present) 
Resolution 2023-71 was approved. 

B. Circuit/Sessions Court Clerk, Kevin Poe – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
C. County Clerk, Frank C. Herndon 

1. 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
2. 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Wheel Tax Report: Presented and Filed. 

D. Highway Superintendent, Charles Tipton 
1. 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Work Acc. Report: Presented and Filed. 
2. Acceptance of New Roads: Superintendent Tipton presented the following roads to be accepted as 

county roads. Crosslake Ln, Anchor Ct, Conley Tr, Towers Dr, Arangio Tr, and Barry Cove. Commissioner 
Solomon moved to accept the new county roads; Commissioner R. Coleman provided a second. The 
roads were accepted with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all present). 

3. Commissioner Blevins provided remarks of thanks to Superintendent Tipton and his staff for their 
continuous and diligent work through the recent inclement weather to improve the road conditions in 
Jefferson County. The remarks were followed by a round of applause from fellow commissioners and 
members of the audience. 

E. Register of Deeds, Ed Stiner – 2nd Quarter Report FY 2023-2024: Presented and Filed. 
F. Sheriff, Jeff Coffey – 2ndQuarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
G. Assessor of Property, Susan Gass – 5 Year Reappraisal Plan & Resolution 2023-70: Resolution Authorizing a 

Continuous Five (5) Year Reappraisal Cycle: A Motion to approve Resolution 2023-70 and the 5 Year Reappraisal 
Plan was made by Commissioner Reed, seconded by Commissioner Solomon. A Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in 
favor: all present) and Resolution 2023-70 and the 5 Year Reappraisal Plan was approved. 

H. Trustee, Jennifer Boling Hall – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
I. Building Inspector, Rob Wilson – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Permit Report & School Facilities Tax Comparison: 

Presented and Filed. 
J. Director of Schools, Tommy Arnold 

1. 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Commission Report: Presented and Filed. 
2. Resolution 2023-121 Surplus Presented for Information Only. Resolution 2023-121 was presented to 

the Commission for information only.  
K. Emergency Communications District Executive Director, Justin Crowther – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: 

Presented and Filed. 
L. Environmental Services Director, Tom Carter – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
M. Finance Director, Jessica Elder 

1. November 2023 Financials: Presented and Filed. 
2. Grant Policy & Procedures Review:  
3. Grant Processing Request Form:  



   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 4 
 

The Grant Policy & Procedure Review and Grant Processing Request Form were moved for approval by 
Commissioner Reed, seconded by Commissioner Huffaker, a Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all 
present) and the Grant Policy & Procedures Review and Grant Processing Request Form was approved. 

4. Finance Director Elder requested a suspension of the rules to address the option of moving $500,000 from 
General Fund 101 fund balance to 101-55130-718 to allow the EMS Director to begin the purchasing process 
for two new ambulances that are scheduled to be budgeted and purchased next year based on the fleet 
replacement schedule. Director Elder explained that this action is necessary because of the delay in the 
production of ambulances. She stated that these funds would be replaced when funds are budgeted for this 
expenditure next year but not utilized. A motion to suspend the rules was made by Commissioner Bales, a 
second was provided by Commissioner Reed. A Roll Call vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all present) and the 
rules were suspended. Commissioner Bales provided a motion to move $500,000.00 from the General Fund 
101 fund balance to 101-55130-718 (EMS Vehicles), Commissioner Scarlett provided a second. A Roll Call 
vote was taken 16-0 (in favor: all present) and the budget amendment was approved. 

N. Office on Aging Director, Tracy Clayton – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
O. Soil Conservation Office, David Jessie District Tech – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
P. Tourism Department Director, Lauren Hurdle – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 
Q. UT Extension Jefferson County Director, Karen Nelms – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented. 
R. Veterans Service Officer, Curtis Hudson – 2nd Quarter FY 2023-2024 Report: Presented and Filed. 

 
REPORTS OF COMMITTEES, BOARDS, & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Budget Committee – Chairman John Neal Scarlett 
2. County Amendments 

a. General Fund 101 – Amendment #15 Items 1-2 
b. General Fund 101 – Amendment #16 Item 1 
c. Sanitation Fund 101 – Amendment #17 Item 1 
d. Sanitation Fund 116 – Amendment #3 Item 1 
e. Landfill Fund 207 – Amendment #2 Item 1 

The above listed budget amendments were approved with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all present). 
3. School Amendments 

a. General Purpose Fund 141 – Amendment #11 Item 1 
b. General Purpose Fund 141 – Amendment #12 Item 1 
c. Federal Funds 142 – Amendment #6 Item 1 

The above listed budget amendments were approved with a Roll Call vote 15-1 (in favor: Huffaker, 
Norton, Patterson, Brooks, Lowe, Johnson, Solomon, Blevins, Douglas, Bales, Scarlett, Coleman, 
Carmichael, Walker, and Reed). 

4. Resolution 2023-68 – A Resolution authorizing an additional motor vehicle privilege tax and providing for 
the disposition of proceeds thereof. Commissioner Scarlett stated that some questions had been raised 
concerning this Resolution and he requested to postpone it until the next scheduled meeting, Commissioner 
Bales provided a second. A Roll Call vote was taken 8-8 (in favor: Huffaker, Patterson, Lowe, Solomon, Bales, 
Scarlett, Carmichael, and Walker) and the postponement failed. A Roll Call vote was taken 10-6 (in favor: 
Huffaker, Patterson, Lowe, Johnson, Seals, Solomon, Bales, Scarlett, Carmichael, and Walker) and Resolution 
2023-68 failed for lack of 2/3rds majority. 

5. 4.2 Fixed Asset Policy Update: Approved with a Roll Call vote 16-0 (in favor: all present). 



   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 5 
 

6. Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement: Participation and Contract Signing Approval was proposed for 
HGAC and BuyBoard, Participation was proposed for NPP.Gov, Naspo Value Point, and Savvik Buying Group. 
With a motion for approval by Commissioner Douglas, seconded by Commissioner Norton, a Roll Call vote 
was taken 16-0 (in favor: all present) and the participation in the proposed Interlocal Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreements were approved. 

NON-PROFIT REPORTS: 
A. Jefferson Alliance, Joe Gibson Director – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
B. Chamber of Commerce President & CEO, Shelia Wiggins – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
C. Companion Animal Rescue & Education – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented 
D. Chestnut Hill VFD – 2nd Quarter 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
E. Dandridge VFD – 2nd Quarter 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
F. Jefferson County Rescue Squad – 2023 Chief’s Report: Presented. 
G. New Market VFD – 2nd Quarter 2023-2024 Report: Presented. 
H. White Pine VFD – 2nd Quarter 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
I. Dandridge Memorial Library – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
J. Jefferson City Public Library – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
K. Parrott-Wood Memorial Library – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 
L. White Pine Public Library – 2nd Quarter FY 2023 – 2024 Report: Presented. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Resolution 2023-49 A Resolution amending the zoning resolution of Jefferson County, Tennessee, regarding 
special uses and special use permits. Commissioner Scarlett moved to amend the resolution by adding verbiage 
to require a special use permit for Adult Bookstores and Pain Clinics, Commissioner Walker provided a second. 
During discussion, Commissioner Patterson moved to remove Crushing of Rock from the Special Use Permit, 
Commissioner Bales provided a second, and Commissioners Scarlett and Walker accepted the second 
amendment. A Roll Call vote was taken 5-15-1 (in favor: Patterson, Bales, Scarlett, Carmichael, and Walker; 
Commissioner Seals abstained) and the amendment failed. During discussion with the County Attorney, it was 
decided that this resolution should be presented to the local city planning commissions before it comes back to 
the County Commission. It was mutually agreed that this Resolution should be referred to the cities before it 
comes back to the County Commission for consideration. No further action was taken. 

B. Resolution 2023-62 A Resolution amending the zoning resolution of Jefferson County, Tennessee, Permitting 
Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS) uses only within the I-2 (Environmental District) Zone. Commissioner 
Brooks stated that he felt this item would be in the same circumstance as Resolution 2023-49 and should be 
stricken from the agenda with no action and referred to the City Planning Commissions for consideration. It was 
mutually agreed that this item should be stricken from the agenda and no further action was taken. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Surplus Resolution 2023-54 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Jefferson City Public Library of 
Jefferson County to surplus and dispose said equipment. 

B. Surplus Resolution 2023-56 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Jefferson City Public Library of 
Jefferson County to surplus and donate said equipment. 

C. Surplus Resolution 2023-59 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Parrott-Wood Memorial 
Library of Jefferson County to surplus and donate said equipment. 



   
 

Draft Minutes Not Approved                                                       Regular Quarterly Session January 22, 2024 Page | 6 
 

D. Surplus Resolution 2023-60 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Parrott-Wood Memorial 
Library of Jefferson County to surplus and dispose said equipment. 

E. Surplus Resolution 2023-61 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Parrott-Wood Memorial 
Library of Jefferson County to surplus and donate said equipment. 

F. Surplus Resolution 2023-63 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Circuit Court of Jefferson 
County to surplus and donate said equipment. 

G. Surplus Resolution 2023-66 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Sanitation Department of 
Jefferson County to surplus and sell said equipment. 

H. Surplus Resolution 2023-67 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Sanitation Department of 
Jefferson County to surplus and scrap said equipment. 

I. Surplus Resolution 2023-69 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize Jefferson County to surplus and 
sell said property. 

J. Surplus Resolution 2023-72 Resolution to declare as surplus and to authorize the Dandridge Memorial Library of 
Jefferson County to surplus and dispose said equipment. 

Resolutions 2023-54, 2023-56, 2023-59, 2023-60, 2023-61, 2023-63, 2023-66, 2023-67, 2023-69, & 2023-72 
were moved for approval by Commissioner Walker, seconded by Commissioner Solomon. A Roll Call vote was 
taken 16-0 (in favor: all present) and Resolutions 2023-54, 2023-56, 2023-59, 2023-60, 2023-61, 2023-63, 2023-
66, 2023-67, 2023-69, & 2023-72 were approved. 

K. Resolution 2023-57 A Resolution amending the “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee” by Rezoning 
property from A-1, Agricultural-Forestry to I-1, Industrial. A Motion to approve was moved by Commissioner 
Scarlett and seconded by Commissioner R. Coleman. After discussion, Commissioner Solomon called the 
question. A Roll Call vote was taken 11-4-1 (in favor: Huffaker, Patterson, Lowe, Johnson, Solomon, Douglas, 
Bales, Scarlett, R. Coleman, Carmichael, and Walker; Commissioner Seals abstained), and Resolution 2023-57 
was approved. 

L. Resolution 2023-58 A Resolution amending the “Zoning Map of Jefferson County, Tennessee” by rezoning 
property from A-1, Agricultural-Forestry to C-2, General Commercial. A motion to approve was moved by 
Commissioner Scarlett seconded by Commissioner Solomon. A Roll Call vote was taken 14-1-1 (in favor: 
Huffaker, Norton, Patterson, Brooks, Lowe, Johnson, Solomon, Douglas, Bales, Scarlett, R. Coleman, Carmichael, 
Walker, and Reed), and Resolution 2023-58 was approved. 

M. Short-Term Rental Ordinance – Commissioner Huffaker requested to send this item to the public service 
committee. Hearing no objection, this item was referred to the Public Service Committee. 

 

Hearing no further business before the commission, on a motion from Commissioner Solomon, seconded by 
Commissioner Brooks, and with no objections voiced, Chairman Carmichael adjourned the meeting at 9:21 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________  ________________________________________ 
County Commission Chair, James E. Carmichael   County Clerk, Frank C. Herndon 

















Mayoral Appointments 

April 2024 

 

EMS Board 

Colin McRae  April 2024 – October 2024 

 

 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-01 

 
RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AN UPDATED OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND 

HEALTH PROGRAM PLAN, DEVISE RULES AND REGULATIONS, AND TO PROVIDE 
FOR A SAFETY DIRECTOR AND THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SUCH PROGRAM 

PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Public Chapter 561 of the General Assembly of the State 
of Tennessee for the year 1972, the Jefferson County Commission hereby updates the 
Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for our employees. 

WHEREAS, due to various changes in subsequent years, it has become necessary to 
amend the program plan to comply with more recent state requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

SECTION 1.  BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Jefferson County Commission, that there be and 
is hereby amended as follows: 

TITLE: 
This section shall be known as “The Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan” for the 
employees of Jefferson County. 

PURPOSE: 
The Jefferson County Legislative Boday in electing to update the established Program 
Plan will maintain an effective and comprehensive Occupational Safety and Health 
Program Plan for its employees and shall: 
 
  1) Provide a safe and healthful place and condition of employment that includes: 

a) Top Management Commitment and Employee Involvement; 
b) Continually analyze the worksite to identify all hazards and potential hazards;  
c) Develop and maintain methods for preventing or controlling the existing or 

potential hazards; and  
d) Train managers, supervisors, and employees to understand and deal with 

worksite hazards. 
 

2) Acquire, maintain and require the use of safety equipment, personal protective 
equipment and devices reasonably necessary to protect employees. 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 2 

 

 3) Record, keep, preserve, and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development, or persons within the Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development to whom such responsibilities have been delegated, adequate records 
of all occupational accidents and illnesses and personal injuries for proper evaluation 
and necessary corrective action as required.   

 
4) Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development with regard 
to the adequacy of the form and content of records. 
 
5) Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development, as 
appropriate, regarding safety and health problems which are considered to be 
unusual or peculiar and are such that they cannot be achieved under a standard 
promulgated by the State. 
 
6) Provide reasonable opportunity for the participation of employees in the 
effectuation of the objectives of this Program Plan, including the opportunity to make 
anonymous complaints concerning conditions or practices injurious to employee 
safety and health. 
 
7) Provide for education and training of personnel for the fair and efficient 
administration of occupational safety and health standards and provide for education 
and notification of all employees of the existence of this Program Plan.   

 
COVERAGE: 
The provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the employees of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee shall apply to all employees of each administrative 
department, commission, board, division, or other agency whether part-time or full-time, 
seasonal or permanent.   

STANDARDS AUTHORIZED: 
The Occupational Safety and Health standards adopted by the Jefferson County 
Legislative Body are the same as, but not limited to, the State of Tennessee Occupational 
Safety and Health Standards promulgated, or which may be promulgated, in accordance 
with Section 6 of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 (T.C.A. Title 
50, Chapter 3). 

VARIANCES FROM STANDARDS AUTHORIZED: 
Upon written application to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development of the 
State of Tennessee, we may request an order granting a temporary variance from any 
approved standards.  Applications for variances shall be in accordance with Rules of 
Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and 
Health, VARIANCES FROM OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS, 
CHAPTER 0800-01-02, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50.  Prior to requesting such 
temporary variance, we will notify or serve notice to our employees, their designated 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 3 

 

representatives, or interested parties and present them with an opportunity for a hearing.  
The posting of notice on the main bulletin board shall be deemed sufficient notice to 
employees.   
 
ADMINISTRATION: 
For the purposes of this resolution, David Longmire, Director of Facilities & Safety is 
designated as the Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health to perform duties and 
to exercise powers assigned to plan, develop, and administer this Program Plan.  The 
Safety Director shall develop a plan of operation for the Program Plan in accordance with 
Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational 
Safety and Health, SAFETY AND HEALTH PROVISIONS FOR THE PUBLIC SECTOR, 
CHAPTER 0800-01-05, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50.  

FUNDING THE PROGRAM PLAN: 
Sufficient funds for administering and staffing the Program Plan pursuant to this resolution 
shall be made available as authorized by the Jefferson County Legislative Body. 

SEVERABILITY: 
SECTION 2.  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any section, sub-section, sentence, 
clause, phrase, or portion of this resolution is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed separate, distinct, 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions hereof.   

AMENDMENTS, ETC: 
SECTION 3.  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect from and 
after the date it shall have been passed, properly signed, certified, and has met all other 
legal requirements, and as otherwise provided by law, the general welfare of Jefferson 
County requiring it.   
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 4 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 

            
            



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 5 

 

PLAN OF OPERATION FOR THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH  
PROGRAM PLAN FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF Jefferson County, Tennessee 
 
SECTION            PAGE 
  
 I. PURPOSE AND COVERAGE  ....................................................................   5 
 
 II. DEFINITIONS................................................................................................   5 
 
 III. EMPLOYER’S RIGHTS AND DUTIES ........................................................   6 
 
 IV. EMPLOYEE’S RIGHTS AND DUTIES ........................................................   7 
 
 V. ADMINISTRATION .......................................................................................   8 
 
 VI. STANDARDS AUTHORIZED.......................................................................   9 
 
 VII. VARIANCE PROCEDURE ...........................................................................   9 
 
 VIII. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING ......................................................   10 
 
 IX. EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE .................................................. . 10 
 
 X. EDUCATION AND TRAINING .....................................................................  11 
 
 XI. GENERAL INSPECTION PROCEDURES ..................................................  12 
 
 XII. IMMINENT DANGER PROCEDURES ........................................................  13 
 
 XIII. ABATEMENT ORDERS AND HEARINGS .................................................  14 
 
 XIV. PENALTIES ...................................................................................................  14 
 
 XV. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PRIVILEGED INFORMATION .............................  14 
 
      XVI.               DISCRIMINATION INVESTIGATIONS AND SANCTIONS……………………………….. 15 
 
 XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS NOT EXCUSED..............................  15 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 I. WORK LOCATIONS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
 
 II. NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 6 

 

 III. PROGRAM PLAN BUDGET . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
 
         IV. ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES . . . . . . . . . 19-20 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 7 

 

I. PURPOSE AND COVERAGE 
 
The purpose of this plan is to provide guidelines and procedures for implementing the 
Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the employees of Jefferson County, 
Tennessee. 
This plan is applicable to all employees, part-time or full-time, seasonal or permanent.   
The Jefferson County Legislative Body in electing to update and maintain an effective 
Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for its employees, 
 a. Provide a safe and healthful place and condition of employment. 
 b. Require the use of safety equipment, personal protective equipment, and other 

devices where reasonably necessary to protect employees. 
 c. Make, keep, preserve, and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and 

Workforce Development, his designated representatives, or persons within the 
Department of Labor and Workforce Development to whom such responsibilities 
have been delegated, including the Safety Director of the Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health, adequate records of all occupational accidents and illnesses 
and personal injuries for proper evaluation and necessary corrective action as 
required.  

 d. Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his 
designated representative with regard to the adequacy of the form and content of 
such records.   

 e. Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development regarding 
safety and health problems which are considered to be unusual or peculiar and are 
such that they cannot be resolved under an occupational safety and health 
standard promulgated by the State.   

 f. Assist the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his monitoring 
activities to determine Program Plan effectiveness and compliance with the 
occupational safety and health standards.   

 g. Make a report to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development annually, 
or as may otherwise be required, including information on occupational accidents, 
injuries, and illnesses and accomplishments and progress made toward achieving 
the goals of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan.   

 h. Provide reasonable opportunity for and encourage the participation of employees in 
the effectuation of the objectives of this Program Plan, including the opportunity to 
make anonymous complaints concerning conditions or practices which may be 
injurious to employees safety and health.   

 
II. DEFINITIONS 
 
For the purposes of this Program Plan, the following definitions apply: 
 a. COMMISSIONER OF LABOR and Workforce Development means the chief 

executive officer of the Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development.  This includes any person appointed, designated, or deputized to 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 8 

 

perform the duties or to exercise the powers assigned to the Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development.   

 b. EMPLOYER means the Jefferson County Government and includes each 
administrative department, board, commission, division, or other agency of the 
Jefferson County Government. 

 c. SAFETY DIRECTOR OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH or SAFETY 
SAFETY DIRECTOR means the person designated by the establishing resolution, 
or executive order to perform duties or to exercise powers assigned so as to plan, 
develop, and administer the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the 
employees of Jefferson County Government. 

 d. INSPECTOR(S) means the individual(s) appointed or designated by the Safety 
Director of Occupational Safety and Health to conduct inspections provided for 
herein.  If no such compliance inspector(s) is appointed, inspections shall be 
conducted by the Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health.   

 e. APPOINTING AUTHORITY means any official or group of officials of the employer 
having legally designated powers of appointment, employment, or removal there 
from for a specific department, board, commission, division, or other agency of this 
employer.   

 f. EMPLOYEE means any person performing services for this employer and listed on 
the payroll of this employer, either as part-time, full-time, seasonal, or permanent.  It 
also includes any persons normally classified as “volunteers” provided such 
persons received remuneration of any kind for their services.  This definition shall 
not include independent contractors, their agents, servants, and employees.   

 g. PERSON means one or more individuals, partnerships, associations, corporations, 
business trusts, or legal representatives of any organized group of persons.   

 h. STANDARD means an occupational safety and health standard promulgated by 
the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development in accordance with 
Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 which 
requires conditions or the adoption or the use of one or more practices, means, 
methods, operations, or processes or the use of equipment or personal protective 
equipment necessary or appropriate to provide safe and healthful conditions and 
places of employment.   

 i. IMMINENT DANGER means any conditions or practices in any place of 
employment which are such that a hazard exists which could reasonably be 
expected to cause death or serious physical harm immediately or before the 
imminence of such hazard can be eliminated through normal compliance 
enforcement procedures.   

 j. ESTABLISHMENT or WORKSITE means a single physical location under the 
control of this employer where business is conducted, services are rendered, or 
industrial type operations are performed.   

 k. SERIOUS INJURY or HARM means that type of harm that would cause permanent 
or prolonged impairment of the body in that: 

 
 1. A part of the body would be permanently removed (e.g., amputation of an arm, 

leg, finger(s); loss of an eye) or rendered functionally useless or substantially 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 9 

 

reduced in efficiency on or off the job (e.g., leg shattered so severely that 
mobility would be permanently reduced), or  

 2. A part of an internal body system would be inhibited in its normal performance 
or function to such a degree as to shorten life or cause reduction in physical or 
mental efficiency (e.g., lung impairment causing shortness of breath).   

 
 On the other hand, simple fractures, cuts, bruises, concussions, or similar injuries 

would not fit either of these categories and would not constitute serious physical harm.   
 l. ACT or TOSH Act shall mean the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act 

of 1972.   
 m. GOVERNING BODY means the County Quarterly Court, Board of Aldermen, Board 

of Commissioners, City or Town Council, Board of Governors, etc., whichever may 
be applicable to the local government, government agency, or utility to which this 
plan applies.   

 n. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER means the chief administrative official, County 
Judge, County Chairman, County Mayor, Mayor, City Manager, General Manager, 
etc., as may be applicable.   

 
III. EMPLOYERS RIGHTS AND DUTIES 
 
 Rights and duties of the employer shall include, but are not limited to, the following 

provisions: 
 a. Employer shall furnish to each employee conditions of employment and a place of 

employment free from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause 
death or serious injury or harm to employees.   

 b. Employer shall comply with occupational safety and health standards and 
regulations promulgated pursuant to Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational 
Safety and Health Act of 1972. 

 c. Employer shall refrain from an unreasonable restraint on the right of the 
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development to inspect the employer’s 
place(s) of business.  Employer shall assist the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development in the performance of their monitoring duties by supplying 
or by making available information, personnel, or aids reasonably necessary to the 
effective conduct of the monitoring activity.   

 d. Employer is entitled to participate in the development of standards by submission of 
comments on proposed standards, participation in hearing on proposed standards, 
or by requesting the development of standards on a given issue under Section 6 of 
the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972.   

 e. Employer is entitled to request an order granting a variance from an occupational 
safety and health standard.   

 f. Employer is entitled to protection of its legally privileged communication.   
 g. Employer shall inspect all worksites to ensure the provisions of this Program Plan 

are complied with and carried out.   
 h. Employer shall notify and inform any employee who has been or is being exposed 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 10 

 

in a biologically significant manner to harmful agents or material in excess of the 
applicable standard and of corrective action being taken.   

 i. Employer shall notify all employees of their rights and duties under this Program 
Plan.   

 

IV. EMPLOYEES RIGHTS AND DUTIES 
 
 Rights and duties of employees shall include, but are not limited to, the following 

provisions: 
 a. Each employee shall comply with occupational safety and health act standards and 

all rules, regulations, and orders issued pursuant to this Program Plan and the 
Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 which are applicable to his 
or her own actions and conduct.   

 b. Each employee shall be notified by the placing of a notice upon bulletin boards, or 
other places of common passage, of any application for a permanent or temporary 
order granting the employer a variance from any provision of the TOSH Act or any 
standard or regulation promulgated under the Act.   

 c. Each employee shall be given the opportunity to participate in any hearing which 
concerns an application by the employer for a variance from a standard or 
regulation promulgated under the Act.   

 d. Any employee who may be adversely affected by a standard or variance issued 
pursuant to the Act or this Program Plan may file a petition with the Commissioner 
of Labor and Workforce Development or whoever is responsible for the 
promulgation of the standard or the granting of the variance.   

 e. Any employee who has been exposed or is being exposed to toxic materials or 
harmful physical agents in concentrations or at levels in excess of that provided for 
by any applicable standard shall be provided by the employer with information on 
any significant hazards to which they are or have been exposed, relevant 
symptoms, and proper conditions for safe use or exposure.  Employees shall also 
be informed of corrective action being taken.   

 f. Subject to regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan, any employee or 
authorized representative of employees shall be given the right to request an 
inspection and to consult with the Safety Director or Inspector at the time of the 
physical inspection of the worksite.   

 g. Any employee may bring to the attention of the Safety Director any violation or 
suspected violations of the standards or any other health or safety hazards.   

 h. No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against because such employee 
has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or 
inspection under or relating to this Program Plan.   

 i. Any employee who believes that he or she has been discriminated against or 
discharged in violation of subsection (h) of this section may file a complaint alleging 
such discrimination with the Safety Director.  Such employee may also, within thirty 
(30) days after such violation occurs, file a complaint with the Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development alleging such discrimination.   



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 11 

 

 j. Nothing in this or any other provisions of this Program Plan shall be deemed to 
authorize or require any employee to undergo medical examination, immunization, 
or treatment for those who object thereto on religious grounds, except where such 
is necessary for the protection of the health or safety or others or when a medical 
examination may be reasonably required for performance of a specific job.   

 k. Employees shall report any accident, injury, or illness resulting from their job, 
however minor it may seem to be, to their supervisor or the Safety Director within 
twenty-four (24) hours after the occurrence.   

 

V. ADMINISTRATION 
 
 a. The Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health is designated to perform 

duties or to exercise powers assigned so as to administer this Occupational Safety 
and Health Program Plan.   

 
 1. The Safety Director may designate person or persons as he deems necessary 

to carry out his powers, duties, and responsibilities under this Program Plan.   
 2. The Safety Director may delegate the power to make inspections, provided 

procedures employed are as effective as those employed by the Safety 
Director. 

 3. The Safety Director shall employ measures to coordinate, to the extent possible, 
activities of all departments to promote efficiency and to minimize any 
inconveniences under this Program Plan.   

 4. The Safety Director may request qualified technical personnel from any 
department or section of government to assist him in making compliance 
inspections, accident investigations, or as he may otherwise deem necessary 
and appropriate in order to carry out his duties under this Program Plan.   

 5. The Safety Director shall prepare the report to the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development required by subsection (g) of Section 1 of this plan.   

 6. The Safety Director shall make or cause to be made periodic and follow-up 
inspections of all facilities and worksites where employees of this employer are 
employed.  He shall make recommendations to correct any hazards or 
exposures observed.  He shall make or cause to be made any inspections 
required by complaints submitted by employees or inspections requested by 
employees.   

 7. The Safety Director shall assist any officials of the employer in the investigation 
of occupational accidents or illnesses.   

 8. The Safety Director shall maintain or cause to be maintained records required 
under Section VIII of this plan.   

 9.    The Safety Director shall, in the eventuality that there is a fatality, 
ensure that the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development 
receives notification of the occurrence within eight (8) hours.  All work-
related inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and loss of an eye must 
be reported to TOSHA within 24 hours. 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 12 

 

 
 b. The administrative or operational head of each department, division, board, or other 

agency of this employer shall be responsible for the implementation of this 
Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan within their respective areas. 

 
 1. The administrative or operational head shall follow the directions of the Safety 

Director on all issues involving occupational safety and health of employees as 
set forth in this plan.   

 2. The administrative or operational head shall comply with all abatement orders 
issued in accordance with the provisions of this plan or request a review of the 
order with the Safety Director within the abatement period.   

 3. The administrative or operational head should make periodic safety surveys of 
the establishment under his jurisdiction to become aware of hazards or 
standards violations that may exist and make an attempt to immediately correct 
such hazards or violations. 

 4. The administrative or operational head shall investigate all occupational 
accidents, injuries, or illnesses reported to him.  He shall report such accidents, 
injuries, or illnesses to the Safety Director along with his findings and/or 
recommendations in accordance with APPENDIX IV of this plan.   

 
VI. STANDARDS AUTHORIZED 
 

The standards adopted under this Program Plan are the applicable standards 
developed and promulgated under Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational 
Safety and Health Act of 1972.  Additional standards may be promulgated by the 
governing body of this employer as that body may deem necessary for the safety and 
health of employees. Note: 29 CFR 1910 General Industry Regulations; 29 CFR 1926 
Construction Industry Regulations; and the Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor 
and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and Health, CHAPTER 0800-01-1 
through CHAPTER 0800-01-11 are the standards and rules invoked.  

VII. VARIANCE PROCEDURE 
 
 The Safety Director may apply for a variance as a result of a complaint from an 

employee or of his knowledge of certain hazards or exposures.  The Safety Director 
should definitely believe that a variance is needed before the application for a variance 
is submitted to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development.   

 The procedure for applying for a variance to the adopted safety and health standards is 
as follows: 

 a. The application for a variance shall be prepared in writing and shall contain: 
 
 1. A specification of the standard or portion thereof from which the variance is 

sought. 
 2. A detailed statement of the reason(s) why the employer is unable to comply with 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 13 

 

the standard supported by representations by qualified personnel having first-
hand knowledge of the facts represented.   

 3. A statement of the steps employer has taken and will take (with specific date) to 
protect employees against the hazard covered by the standard.   

 4. A statement of when the employer expects to comply and what steps have or 
will be taken (with dates specified) to come into compliance with the standard.  

 5. A certification that the employer has informed employees, their authorized 
representative(s), and/or interested parties by giving them a copy of the request, 
posting a statement summarizing the application (to include the location of a 
copy available for examination) at the places where employee notices are 
normally posted and by other appropriate means.  The certification shall contain 
a description of the means actually used to inform employees and that 
employees have been informed of their right to petition the Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development for a hearing.   

 
 b. The application for a variance should be sent to the Commissioner of Labor and 

Workforce Development by registered or certified mail. 
 c. The Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development will review the application 

for a variance and may deny the request or issue an order granting the variance.  
An order granting a variance shall be issued only if it has been established that: 

 
 1. The employer 
  i. Is unable to comply with the standard by the effective date because of 

unavailability of professional or technical personnel or materials and 
equipment required or necessary construction or alteration of facilities or 
technology. 

  ii. Has taken all available steps to safeguard employees against the hazard(s) 
covered by the standard.  

  iii. Has as effective Program Plan for coming into compliance with the standard 
as quickly as possible. 

 
 2. The employee is engaged in an experimental Program Plan as described in 

subsection (b), section 13 of the Act. 
 
 d. A variance may be granted for a period of no longer than is required to achieve 

compliance or one (1) year, whichever is shorter. 
 e. Upon receipt of an application for an order granting a variance, the Commissioner 

to whom such application is addressed may issue an interim order granting such a 
variance for the purpose of permitting time for an orderly consideration of such 
application.  No such interim order may be effective for longer than one hundred 
eighty (180) days.   

 f. The order or interim order granting a variance shall be posted at the worksite and 
employees notified of such order by the same means used to inform them of the 
application for said variance (see subsection (a)(5) of this section). 

 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 14 

 

VIII. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING 
 

Recording and reporting of all occupational accident, injuries, and illnesses shall be in 
accordance with instructions and on forms prescribed in the booklet. You can get a 
copy of the Forms for Recordkeeping from the internet.  Go to www.osha.gov and 
type Recordkeeping Forms in the search box. 

 
The position responsible for recordkeeping is shown on the SAFETY AND HEALTH 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART, Appendix IV to this plan.   

 
Details of how reports of occupational accidents, injuries, and illnesses will reach the 
recordkeeper are specified by ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES, Appendix IV 
to this plan.  The Rule of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development 
Occupational Safety and Health, OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH RECORD-
KEEPING AND REPORTING, CHAPTER 0800-01-03, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 
50.  

 

IX. EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 
 
 If any employee feels that he is assigned to work in conditions which might affect his 

health, safety, or general welfare at the present time or at any time in the future, he 
should report the condition to the Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health.   

 a. The complaint should be in the form of a letter and give details on the condition(s) 
and how the employee believes it affects or will affect his health, safety, or general 
welfare.  The employee should sign the letter but need not do so if he wishes to 
remain anonymous (see subsection (h) of Section 1 of this plan). 

 b. Upon receipt of the complaint letter, the Safety Director will evaluate the 
condition(s) and institute any corrective action, if warranted.  Within ten (10) 
working days following the receipt of the complaint, the Safety Director will answer 
the complaint in writing stating whether or not the complaint is deemed to be valid 
and if not, why not, what action has been or will be taken to correct or abate the 
condition(s), and giving a designated time period for correction or abatement.  
Answers to anonymous complaints will be posted upon bulletin boards or other 
places of common passage where the anonymous complaint may be reasonably 
expected to be seen by the complainant for a period of three (3) working days.   

 c. If the complainant finds the reply not satisfactory because it was held to be invalid, 
the corrective action is felt to be insufficient, or the time period for correction is felt 
to be too long, he may forward a letter to the Chief Executive Officer or to the 
governing body explaining the condition(s) cited in his original complaint and why 
he believes the answer to be inappropriate or insufficient.   

 d. The Chief Executive Officer or a representative of the governing body will evaluate 
the complaint and will begin to take action to correct or abate the condition(s) 
through arbitration or administrative sanctions or may find the complaint to be 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 15 

 

invalid.  An answer will be sent to the complainant within ten (10) working days 
following receipt of the complaint or the next regularly scheduled meeting of the 
governing body following receipt of the complaint explaining decisions made and 
action taken or to be taken.   

 e. After the above steps have been followed and the complainant is still not satisfied 
with the results, he may then file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development.  Any complaint filed with the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development in such cases shall include copies of all related 
correspondence with the Safety Director and the Chief Executive Officer or the 
representative of the governing body.   

 f. Copies of all complaint and answers thereto will be filed by the Safety Director who 
shall make them available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce 
Development or his designated representative upon request.   

 
X. EDUCATION AND TRAINING 
 
 a. Safety Director and/or Compliance Inspector(s): 
 

1. Arrangements will be made for the Safety Director and/or Compliance 
Inspector(s) to attend training seminars, workshops, etc., conducted by the 
State of Tennessee or other agencies. A list of Seminars can be obtained. 
 

 2. Access will be made to reference materials such as 29 CFR 1910 General 
Industry Regulations; 29 CFR 1926 Construction Industry Regulations; The 
Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development 
Occupational Safety and Health, and other equipment/supplies, deemed 
necessary for use in conducting compliance inspections, conducting local 
training, wiring technical reports, and informing officials, supervisors, and 
employees of the existence of safety and health hazards will be furnished.  

 
 b. All Employees (including supervisory personnel): 
 
 A suitable safety and health training program for employees will be established.  

This program will, as a minimum: 
 1. Instruct each employee in the recognition and avoidance of hazards or unsafe 

conditions and of standards and regulations applicable to the employee’s work 
environment to control or eliminate any hazards, unsafe conditions, or other 
exposures to occupational illness or injury.   

 2. Instruct employees who are required to handle or use poisons, acids, caustics, 
toxicants, flammable liquids or gases, explosives, and other harmful substances 
in the proper handling procedures and use of such items and make them aware 
of the personal protective measures, person hygiene, etc., which may be 
required. 

 3. Instruct employees who may be exposed to environments where harmful plants 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 16 

 

or animals are present, of the hazards of the environment, how to best avoid 
injury or exposure, and the first aid procedures to be followed in the event of 
injury or exposure. 

 4. Instruct all employees of the common deadly hazards and how to avoid them, 
such as Falls; Equipment Turnover; Electrocution; Struck by/Caught In; Trench 
Cave In; Heat Stress; and Drowning.    

 5. Instruct employees on the hazards and dangers of confined or enclosed 
spaces. 

 
  i. Confined or enclosed space means space having a limited means of egress 

and which is subject to the accumulation of toxic or flammable contaminants 
or has an oxygen deficient atmosphere.  Confined or enclosed spaces 
include, but are not limited to, storage tanks, boilers, ventilation or exhaust 
ducts, sewers, underground utility accesses, tunnels, pipelines, and open 
top spaces more than four feet (4) in depth such as pits, tubs, vaults, and 
vessels. 

  ii. Employees will be given general instruction on hazards involved, precautions 
to be taken, and on use of personal protective and emergency equipment 
required.  They shall also be instructed on all specific standards or 
regulations that apply to work in dangerous or potentially dangerous areas. 

  iii. The immediate supervisor of any employee who must perform work in a 
confined or enclosed space shall be responsible for instructing employees 
on danger of hazards which may be present, precautions to be taken, and 
use of personal protective and emergency equipment, immediately prior to 
their entry into such an area and shall require use of appropriate personal 
protective equipment. 

 

XI. GENERAL INSPECTION PROCEDURES 
 
 It is the intention of the governing body and responsible officials to have an 

Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan that will ensure the welfare of 
employees.  In order to be aware of hazards, periodic inspections must be performed.  
These inspections will enable the finding of hazards or unsafe conditions or operations 
that will need correction in order to maintain safe and healthful worksites.  Inspections 
made on a pre-designated basis may not yield the desired results.  Inspections will be 
conducted, therefore, on a random basis at intervals not to exceed thirty (30) calendar 
days.   

 a. In order to carry out the purposes of this Resolution, the Safety Director and/or 
Compliance Inspector(s), if appointed, is authorized: 

 1. To enter at any reasonable time, any establishment, facility, or worksite where 
work is being performed by an employee when such establishment, facility, or 
worksite is under the jurisdiction of the employer and; 

 2. To inspect and investigate during regular working hours and at other reasonable 
times, within reasonable limits, and in a reasonable manner, any such place of 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 17 

 

employment and all pertinent conditions, processes, structures, machines, 
apparatus, devices, equipment, and materials therein, and to question privately 
any supervisor, operator, agent, or employee working therein. 

 
 b. If an imminent danger situation is found, alleged, or otherwise brought to the 

attention of the Safety Director or Inspector during a routine inspection, he shall 
immediately inspect the imminent danger situation in accordance with Section XII of 
this plan before inspecting the remaining portions of the establishment, facility, or 
worksite.    

 
 c. An administrative representative of the employer and a representative authorized 

by the employees shall be given an opportunity to consult with and/or to 
accompany the Safety Director or Inspector during the physical inspection of any 
worksite for the purpose of aiding such inspection.   

 
 d.  The right of accompaniment may be denied any person whose conduct interferes 

with a full and orderly inspection.   
 

e.  The conduct of the inspection shall be such as to preclude unreasonable disruptions 
  of the operation(s) of the workplace.  

 
f.  Interviews of employees during the course of the inspection may be made when 
  such interviews are considered essential to investigative techniques. 

 
 g. Advance Notice of Inspections. 
 
 1. Generally, advance notice of inspections will not be given as this precludes the 

opportunity to make minor or temporary adjustments in an attempt to create 
misleading impression of conditions in an establishment. 

 2. There may be occasions when advance notice of inspections will be necessary 
in order to conduct an effective inspection or investigation.  When advance 
notice of inspection is given, employees or their authorized representative(s) will 
also be given notice of the inspection.   

 
 h. The Safety Director need not personally make an inspection of each and every 

worksite once every thirty (30) days.  He may delegate the responsibility for such 
inspections to supervisors or other personnel provided: 

 
 1. Inspections conducted by supervisors or other personnel are at least as 

effective as those made by the Safety Director.   
 2. Records are made of the inspections, any discrepancies found and corrective 

actions taken.  This information is forwarded to the Safety Director. 
 
 i. The Safety Director shall maintain records of inspections to include identification of 

worksite inspected, date of inspection, description of violations of standards or other 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 18 

 

unsafe conditions or practices found, and corrective action taken toward 
abatement.  Those inspection records shall be subject to review by the 
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his authorized 
representative.   

 

XII. IMMINENT DANGER PROCEDURES 
 
 a. Any discovery, any allegation, or any report of imminent danger shall be handled in 

accordance with the following procedures: 
 
 1. The Safety Director shall immediately be informed of the alleged imminent 

danger situation and he shall immediately ascertain whether there is a 
reasonable basis for the allegation. 

 2. If the alleged imminent danger situation is determined to have merit by the 
Safety Director, he shall make or cause to be made an immediate inspection of 
the alleged imminent danger location. 

 3. As soon as it is concluded from such inspection that conditions or practices exist 
which constitutes an imminent danger, the Safety Director or Compliance 
Inspector shall attempt to have the danger corrected.  All employees at the 
location shall be informed of the danger and the supervisor or person in charge 
of the worksite shall be requested to remove employees from the area, if 
deemed necessary. 

 4. The administrative or operational head of the workplace in which the imminent 
danger exists, or his authorized representative, shall be responsible for 
determining the manner in which the imminent danger situation will be abated.  
This shall be done in cooperation with the Safety Director or Compliance 
Inspector and to the mutual satisfaction of all parties involved. 

 5. The imminent danger shall be deemed abated if: 
 

i. The imminence of the danger has been eliminated by removal of employees 
from the area of danger. 

ii. Conditions or practices which resulted in the imminent danger have been 
eliminated or corrected to the point where an unsafe condition or practice 
no longer exists. 

 6. A written report shall be made by or to the Safety Director describing in detail 
the imminent danger and its abatement.  This report will be maintained by the 
Safety Director in accordance with subsection (i) of Section XI of this plan.  

 
 b. Refusal to Abate. 
 
 1. Any refusal to abate an imminent danger situation shall be reported to the 

Safety Director and Chief Executive Officer immediately. 
 2. The Safety Director and/or Chief Executive Officer shall take whatever action 

may be necessary to achieve abatement. 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 19 

 

XIII. ABATEMENT ORDERS AND HEARINGS 
 
 a. Whenever, as a result of an inspection or investigation, the Safety Director or 

Compliance Inspector(s) finds that a worksite is not in compliance with the 
standards, rules or regulations pursuant to this plan and is unable to negotiate 
abatement with the administrative or operational head of the worksite within a 
reasonable period of time, the Safety Director shall: 

 
 1. Issue an abatement order to the head of the worksite. 
 2. Post or cause to be posted, a copy of the abatement order at or near each 

location referred to in the abatement order. 
 
 b. Abatement orders shall contain the following information: 
 
 1. The standard, rule, or regulation which was found to violated. 
 2. A description of the nature and location of the violation. 
 3. A description of what is required to abate or correct the violation. 
 4. A reasonable period of time during which the violation must be abated or 

corrected. 
 
 c. At any time within ten (10) days after receipt of an abatement order, anyone 

affected by the order may advise the Safety Director in writing of any objections to 
the terms and conditions of the order.  Upon receipt of such objections, the Safety 
Director shall act promptly to hold a hearing with all interested and/or responsible 
parties in an effort to resolve any objections.  Following such hearing, the Safety 
Director shall, within three (3) working days, issue an abatement order and such 
subsequent order shall be binding on all parties and shall be final. 

 

XIV. PENALTIES 
 
 a. No civil or criminal penalties shall be issued against any official, employee, or any 

other person for failure to comply with safety and health standards or any rules or 
regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan.   

 b. Any employee, regardless of status, who willfully and/or repeatedly violates, or 
causes to be violated, any safety and health standard, rule, or regulation or any 
abatement order shall be subject to disciplinary action by the appointing authority.  
It shall be the duty of the appointing authority to administer discipline by taking 
action in one of the following ways as appropriate and warranted: 

 
 1. Oral reprimand. 
 2. Written reprimand. 
 3. Suspension for three (3) or more working days. 
 4. Termination of employment. 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 20 

 

XV. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PRIVILEGED INFORMATION 
 
 All information obtained by or reported to the Safety Director pursuant to this plan of 

operation or the legislation (resolution, or executive order) enabling this Occupational 
Safety and Health Program Plan which contains or might reveal information which is 
otherwise privileged shall be considered confidential.  Such information may be 
disclosed to other officials or employees concerned with carrying out this Program Plan 
or when relevant in any proceeding under this Program Plan.  Such information may 
also be disclosed to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or their 
authorized representatives in carrying out their duties under the Tennessee 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. 

 XVI.       DISCRIMINATION INVESTIGATIONS AND SANCTIONS 
 
The Rule of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development 
Occupational Safety and Health, DISCRIMINATION AGAINST EMPLOYEES 
EXERCISING RIGHTS UNDER THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT 
OF 1972 0800-01-08, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50. The agency agrees that any 
employee who believes they have been discriminated against or discharged in violation 
of Tenn. Code Ann § 50-3-409 can file a complaint with their agency/safety Safety 
Director within 30 days, after the alleged discrimination occurred.  Also, the agency 
agrees the employee has a right to file their complaint with the Commissioner of Labor 
and Workforce Development within the same 30 day period.  The Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development may investigate such complaints, make 
recommendations, and/or issue a written notification of a violation.  
 

XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS NOT EXCUSED 
 
 a. Compliance with any other law, statute, resolution, or executive order, which 

regulates safety and health in employment and places of employment, shall not 
excuse the employer, the employee, or any other person from compliance with the 
provisions of this Program Plan.   

 b. Compliance with any provisions of this Program Plan or any standard, rule, 
regulation, or order issued pursuant to this Program Plan shall not excuse the 
employer, the employee, or any other person from compliance with the law, statue, 
resolution, or executive order, as applicable, regulating and promoting safety and 
health unless such law, statute, resolution, or executive order, as applicable, is 
specifically repealed. 

 
 

Signature:  Safety Director, Occupational Safety and Health and Date 

  

  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 21 

 

APPENDIX - I   WORK LOCATIONS  
(ORGANIZATIONAL CHART) 

 
 

{For this section make a list of each work location wherein (City/County/etc) your employees 
work, such as Street Department, Fire Hall, City Hall, Courthouse, Jail, Sheriff Department, 
Each School, etc. covered under this Program Plan. Include, the address for the workplace, 
phone number at that workplace, and number of employees who work there.}   
 
Courthouse       49 employees 
202 West Main Street 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3800 
 
Sheriff Department Workhouse     0 employees 
(Currently Not in use)     
1234 Main Street 
Chattanooga, TN 37415 
423-345-6789 
 
Health Department/Election Commission Office/ 5 employees 
Veteran’s Affairs Office/Office on Aging 
931 Industrial Park Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3930/865-397-3440/865-397-7228 
 
Agriculture Extension Office    7 employees 
1111 Lake Drive 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-2969 
 
School Transportation/Maintenance   64 employees 
207 West Dumplin Valley Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-2139 
 
Board of Education/Central Office    46 employees 
1221 Gay Street 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3194 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 22 

 

Courthouse Annex      10 employees 
County Clerk’s Office/County Mayor’s Office   
214 West Main Street 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3800 
 
Jefferson County High School    102 employees 
115 West Dumplin Valley Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3182 
 
Dandridge Elementary School    80 employees 
780 South Highway 92 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3127 
 
White Pine Elementary School    106 employees 
3060 Roy Messer Hwy 
White Pine, TN 37890 
865-674-2596 
 
Piedmont Elementary School    60 employees 
100 West Dumplin Valley Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-2939 
 
Rush Strong Elementary School    72 employees 
3081 West Old AJ Hwy 
Strawberry Plains, TN 37821 
865-933-5313 
 
Talbott Elementary School     49 employees 
848 Talbott Kansas Road 
Talbott, TN 37877 
865-475-2988 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 23 

 

 
New Market Elementary School    59 employees 
1559 West old AJ Hwy 
New Market, TN 37820 
865-475-3551 
 
Maury Middle School     68 employees 
828 Maury Circle 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3424 
 
Jefferson Middle School     74 employees 
361 West Broadway Blvd 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
865-475-6133 
 
Jefferson Elementary School    78 employees 
321 West Broadway Blvd. 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
New Market Senior Center      1 employee 
1611 Depot Street 
New Market, TN 37820 
865-475-7664 
 
Strawberry Plains Senior Center    1 employee 
3311 Oak Drive 
Strawberry Plains, TN 37821 
865-933-9255 
 
Jefferson City Senior Center    1 employee 
807 West Jefferson Street 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
865-475-0702 
 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 24 

 

White Pine Senior Center     1 employee 
1824 Maple Street 
White Pine, TN 37890 
865-674-2827 
 
Dandridge Senior Center     1 employee 
917 Elliott Ferry Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-7605 
 
EMS Station – Dandridge     10 employees 
911 Industrial Park Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-6294 
 
EMS Station – White Pine     8 employees 
1104 Champion Lane 
White Pine, TN 37890 
865-674-7518 
 
EMS Station – Chestnut Hill    6 employees 
3249 Chestnut Hill School Rd 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-509-6315 
 
Jefferson County Emergency Services Center  53 employees 
581 West Old AJ Hwy 
New Market, TN 37820 
865-475-4911/865-475-9001 
 
Dandridge Memorial Library    6 employees 
1235 Circle Drive 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-9758 
 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 25 

 

Jefferson City Public Library    8 employees 
108 City Center Drive 
Jefferson City, TN 37725 
865-475-9094 
 
White Pine Public Library     4 employees 
1708 East Main Street 
White Pine, TN 37890 
865-674-6313 
 
Parrott-Wood Memorial Library    5 employees 
3133 Old AJ Hwy 
Strawberry Plains, TN 37871 
865-933-1311 
 
Sanitation Department/Landfill    18 employees 
650 Grove Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3544 
 
Jefferson County Highway Department   49 employees 
1011 J.C. Thomas Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-2155 
 
Jefferson County Nursing Home    252 employees 
914 Industrial Park Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-3163 
 
Jefferson County Vehicle Maintenance Facility  6 employees 
646 Grove Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-2788 
 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 26 

 

Jefferson County Finance Department   14 employees 
1244 Gay Street      1 pt employee 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-397-4922 
 
Jefferson County Justice Center    213 employees 
765 Justice Center Drive 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
865-471-6000 
 
Jefferson County Recycle Center    3 employees 
330 Landfill Road 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Mount Horeb Elementary School    83 employees 
500 East Dumplin Valley Road 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Patriot Academy       56 employees 
419 West Dumplin Valley Rd 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Jefferson Academy      8 employees 
341 West Broadway Blvd 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Jefferson Virtual Academy     6 employees 
3081 West Old AJ Hwy  
Strawberry Plains, TN 37871 
 
Deep Springs Convenience Center   1 employee 
1349 Deep Springs Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
 
Indian Creek Convenience Center   1 employee 
1823 Indian Creek Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 27 

 

Highway 92 Convenience Center    1 employee 
330 Landfill Road 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Dandridge Convenience Center    1 employee 
1011 JC Thomas Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
 
White Pine Convenience Center    1 employee 
1376 Leadmine Road 
White Pine, TN 37725 
 
Rocktown Convenience Center    1 employee 
560 Rocktown Road 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
New Market Convenience Center    1 employee 
1550 Quarry Road 
New Market, TN 37725 
 
Strawberry Plains Convenience Center   1 employee 
869 Old Dandridge Pike 
Strawberry Plains, TN 37871 
 
Dickie Road Convenience Center    1 employee 
2650 Dickie Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
 
Jefferson County Technology     12 employees 
205 West Dumplin Valley Rd 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Family resource Center     4 employees 
209 West Dumplin Valley Rd 
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 28 

 

PD Center       1 employee 
205 West Dumplin Valley Rd   
Jefferson City, TN 37760 
 
Nutrition       4 employees 
1107 County Lane 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
 
Jefferson County Clerk & Election Complex  14 employees 
Office on Aging/Veterans Affairs 
760 Justice Center Drive 
Dandridge, TN 37725 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES : 1,802  
{Once each work location has been listed, record the total number of employees that the county 
employees.} 

 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 29 

 

APPENDIX – II   NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES 
 
NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES OF Jefferson County, Tennessee 
 
The Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 provides job safety and health 
protection for Tennessee workers through the promotion of safe and healthy working conditions.  
Under a plan reviewed by the Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development, this 
government, as an employer, is responsible for administering the Act to its employees.  Safety and 
health standards are the same as State standards and jobsite inspections will be conducted to 
ensure compliance with the Act. 
 
Employees shall be furnished conditions of employment and a place of employment free from 
recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious injury or harm to 
employees. 
 
Each employee shall comply with occupational safety and health standards and all rules, 
regulations, and orders issued pursuant to this Program Plan which are applicable to his or her own 
actions and conduct. 
 
Each employee shall be notified by the placing upon bulletin boards or other places of common 
passage of any application for a temporary variance from any standard or regulation. 
 
Each employee shall be given the opportunity to participate in any hearing which concerns an 
application for a variance from a standard. 
 
Any employee who may be adversely affected by a standard or variance issued pursuant to this 
Program Plan may file a petition with the Safety Director or Jefferson County Mayor. 
 
Any employee who has been exposed or is being exposed to toxic materials or harmful physical 
agents in concentrations or at levels in excess of that provided for by an applicable standard shall 
be notified by the employer and informed of such exposure and corrective action being taken. 
 
Subject to regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan, any employee or authorized 
representative(s) of employees shall be given the right to request an inspection. 
 
No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against because such employee has filed any 
complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceedings or inspection under, or relating 
to, this Program Plan. 
 
Any employee who believes he or she has been discriminated against or discharged in violation of 
these sections may, within thirty (30) days after such violation occurs, have an opportunity to appear 
in a hearing for assistance in obtaining relief or file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development alleging such discrimination.   
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 30 

 

A copy of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the Employees of Jefferson County 
is available for inspection by any employee at Jefferson County Mayor’s office during regular office 
hours.   
 
 
    __________________________________________________ 
    Signature: (City/County) MAYOR AND DATE 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 31 

 

APPENDIX - III PROGRAM PLAN BUDGET 
 

(Either answer questions 1-11 or fill in the statement below) 
 
 

1. Prorated portion of wages, salaries, etc., for program administration and support. 
2. Office space and office supplies. 
3. Safety and health educational materials and support for education and training. 
4. Safety devices for personnel safety and health. 
5. Equipment modifications. 
6. Equipment additions (facilities) 
7. Protective clothing and equipment (personnel) 
8. Safety and health instruments 
9. Funding for projects to correct hazardous conditions. 
10.  Reserve fund for the Program Plan. 
11. Contingencies and miscellaneous, 

     
 TOTAL ESTIMATED PROGRAM PLAN FUNDING, 
 ESTIMATE OF TOTAL BUDGET FOR: 
 
OR Use This Statement: 
 

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCE AVAILABILITY 
 
Be assured that Jefferson County, Tennessee has sufficient financial resources available or 
will make sufficient financial resources available as may be required in order to administer 
and staff its Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan and to comply with standards. 

 
     



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 32 

 

APPENDIX – IV  ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES  
 

   
  (1-15)  Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses directly 

to the Safety Director as soon as possible, but not later than twenty-four (24) 
hours after the occurrence.  Such reports may be verbal or in writing.  All 
fatalities, inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and losses of an eye shall 
be reported to the Safety Director and/or record keeper immediately, either 
by telephone or verbally, and will be followed by a written report within four 
(4) hours after their occurrence.  The Safety Director will ensure completion 
of required reports and records in accordance with Section VIII of the basic 
plan. 

 
  (16-50) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their 

supervisor as soon as possible, but not later than two (2) hours after the 
occurrence.  All fatalities, inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and losses 
of an eye shall be reported to the Safety Director and/or record keeper 
immediately, either by telephone or verbally, and will be followed by a written 
report within four (4) hours after their occurrence.  The supervisor will 
investigate the accident or illness, complete an accident report, and forward 
the accident report to the Safety Director and/or record keeper within twenty-
four (24) hours of the time the accident or injury occurred or the time of the 
first report of the illness. 

 
  (51-250) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their 

supervisors as soon as possible, but not later than two (2) hours after the 
occurrence.  The supervisor will provide the Safety Director and/or record 
keeper with the name of the injured or ill employee and a brief description of 
the accident or illness by telephone as soon as possible, but not later than 
four (4) hours, after the accident or injury occurred or the time of the first 
report of the illness.  All fatalities, inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and 
losses of an eye shall be reported to the Safety Director and/or record keeper 
immediately, either by telephone or verbally, and will be followed by a written 
report within four (4) hours after their occurrence.  The supervisor will then 
make a thorough investigation of the accident or illness (with the assistance 
of the Safety Director or Compliance Inspector, if necessary) and will 
complete a written report on the accident or illness and forward it to the 
Safety Director within seventy-two (72) hours after the accident, injury, or 
first report of illness and will provide one (1) copy of the written report to the 
recordkeeper. 

 
  (251-Plus) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their 

supervisors as soon as possible, but not later than two (2) hours after their 
occurrence.  The supervisor will provide the administrative head of the 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 33 

 

department with a verbal or telephone report of the accident as soon as 
possible, but not later than four (4) hours, after the accident.  If the accident 
involves a fatality, inpatient hospitalization, amputation, loss of an eye, loss 
of consciousness, broken bones, or third degree burns, the Safety Director 
will be notified by telephone immediately and will be given the name of the 
injured, a description of the injury, and a brief description of how the accident 
occurred.  The supervisor will then make a thorough investigation of the 
accident or illness (with the assistance of the Safety Director or Compliance 
Inspector, if necessary) and will complete a written report on the accident or 
illness and forward it to the Safety Director within seventy-two (72) hours 
after the accident, injury, or first report of illness and will provide one (1) copy 
of the written report to the record keeper. 

  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 34 

 

Since Workers Compensation Form 6A or OSHA NO. 301 Form must be completed; all 
reports submitted in writing to the person responsible for recordkeeping shall include the 
following information as a minimum: 

1. Accident location, if different from employer’s mailing address and state whether 
accident occurred on premises owned or operated by employer. 

2. Name, social security number, home address, age, sex, and occupation (regular 
job title) of injured or ill employee. 

3. Title of the department or division in which the injured or ill employee is normally 
employed. 

4. Specific description of what the employee was doing when injured. 
5. Specific description of how the accident occurred. 
6. A description of the injury or illness in detail and the part of the body affected. 
7. Name of the object or substance which directly injured the employee. 
8. Date and time of injury or diagnosis of illness. 
9. Name and address of physician, if applicable. 
10. If employee was hospitalized, name and address of hospital. 
11. Date of report. 

 
 

NOTE:  A procedure such as one of those listed above or similar information is 
necessary to satisfy Item Number 4 listed under PROGRAM PLAN in Section V. 
ADMINISTRATION, Part b of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Plan.  
This information may be submitted in flow chart form instead of in narrative form if desired.  
These procedures may be modified in any way to fit local situations as they have been 
prepared as a guide only.   
The four (4) procedures listed above are based upon the size of the work force and 
relative complexity of the organization.  The approximate size of the organization for which 
each procedure is suggested is indicated in parenthesis in the left hand margin at the 
beginning, i.e., (1-15), (16-50), (51-250), and (251 Plus), and the figures relate to the total 
number of employees including the Chief Executive Officer but excluding the governing 
body (County Court, City Council, Board of Directors, etc.). 
Generally, the more simple an accident reporting procedure is, the more effective it is.  
Please select the one procedure listed above, or prepare a similar procedure or flow chart, 
which most nearly fits what will be the most effective for your local situation.  Note also that 
the specific information listed for written reports applies to all three of the procedures listed 
for those organizations with sixteen (16) or more employees. 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-10 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-10 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC FOR 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE’S FY 2024 SMALL 

CITIES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
 

 WHEREAS, Jefferson County, Tennessee desires to apply for financial grant 

assistance as provided under the State of Tennessee’s FY 2024 Small Cities Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the County Commission of  Jefferson County finds it in the County’s 

best interest to secure the assistance of an experienced and qualified administrative 

management services firm to assist in preparing and administering the County’s 2024 

Community Development Block Grant Application; and 

 WHEREAS, in compliance with pertinent State regulations, the County has solicited 

and evaluated statements of qualifications of interested professional CDBG administrative 

assistance firms; and 

 WHEREAS, the County Commission of Jefferson County has determined that 

Community Development Partners, LLC has the most appropriate experience, background 

and qualifications to provide said services; and 

 WHEREAS, Community Development Partners, LLC will conduct the work 

necessary to complete the CDBG application on a no-cost basis, and in the event the 

project is successfully funded, Community Development Partners, LLC will assist in the 

administration of the project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Commission of Jefferson 

County hereby selects Community Development Partners, LLC to provide assistance in the 

preparation and administration of the County’s 2024 CDBG grant application. 

 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-10 
 2 

 

 
 
 
Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 

























Jefferson County Circuit, General Sessions, and Juvenile Court Clerk’s Office Fire Alarm Policy

Whereas, the Office of Jefferson County Circuit, General Sessions and Juvenile Court Clerk presently follows
the base personnel policies adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee (hereinafter
the “CLB”);

Whereas, pursuant to TCA 5-23-103 ( c)(1)(A), any county official whose employees are governed by the base
personnel policies adopted by the county legislative body shall have the right to adopt separate base personnel
policies applicable to the employees of such officials office by filing approved base personnel policies with the
county legislative body once annually, on or before November 30 each year; and

Whereas, the Jefferson County Circuit Court Clerk (hereinafter the “Clerk”) has adopted certain separate
personnel policies provisions in the past, and now desires to adopt separate personnel policy provisions,
regarding employee responses to fire alarms and continue to follow the remainder of the base personnel policies
adopted by the CLB and the separate personnel policy provisions, previously adopted;

The Jefferson County Circuit, General Sessions and Juvenile Court Clerk submits the following policy to the
CLB for inclusion in the minutes of the body and filing in the office of the county clerk:

● At the sounding of the Justice Center fire alarm system, all Jefferson County Circuit, General Sessions,

and Juvenile deputy clerks will exit the building immediately and assemble at rally point A located at the

back of the parking lot. All personnel will remain there until the alarm is cleared by the sitting Judge,

Central Control, the Court Clerk, or the Sheriff.

Kevin Poe
Circuit Court Clerk
Jefferson County, TN





A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

B
a
la

n
c
e

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 I

n
D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

ts
T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 O

u
t

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
E
n

d
in

g
 B

a
la

n
c
e

M
O

R
T
G

A
G

E
 T

A
X

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

8
5

6
2

3
.0

2
0

.0
0

5
0

8
9

9
.5

8
0

.0
0

1
2

5
1

.6
3

-3
3

4
7

1
.8

1
C

O
N

V
E
Y

A
N

C
E
 T

A
X

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
1

8
8

7
5

.5
8

0
.0

0
1

9
1

6
7

8
.0

6
0

.0
0

4
7

1
3

.3
9

-1
2

2
4

8
4

.1
3

D
P

 F
E
E
S

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

6
8

8
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
-1

3
1

2
.0

0
R

E
G

I
S

T
E
R

'S
 F

E
E
S

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

7
1

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

4
6

8
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
-2

4
7

.0
0

R
E
C

O
R

D
I
N

G
 F

E
E
S

-1
1

4
7

.7
5

0
.0

0
5

0
0

9
6

.9
0

0
.0

0
3

9
0

8
3

.1
7

0
.0

0
-5

9
6

5
.0

2
-1

8
1

2
6

.5
0

L
A

T
E
 F

E
E
S

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

M
I
S

C
E
L
L
A

N
E
O

U
S

 F
E
E
S

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
9

9
9

.1
3

0
.0

0
1

7
1

2
.3

8
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
-2

8
6

.7
5

R
E
F
U

N
D

S
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
O

V
E
R

/
S

H
O

R
T

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

E
S

C
R

O
W

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

C
R

/
D

B
 C

A
R

D
 F

E
E
S

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

T
O

T
A

L
S

:
-1

1
4

7
.7

5
0

.0
0

4
6

1
3

0
9

.6
3

0
.0

0
2

8
6

5
2

9
.1

9
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
-1

7
5

9
2

8
.1

9

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 A

S
S

E
T
S

:
C

A
S

H
 O

N
 H

A
N

D
5

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
.0

0
C

A
S

H
 I

N
 B

A
N

K
0

.0
0

1
6

9
2

6
0

.2
8

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

 R
E
C

E
I
V

A
B

L
E

6
4

7
.7

5
6

1
6

7
.9

1
T
O

T
A

L
S

:
1

1
4

7
.7

5
1

7
5

9
2

8
.1

9

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 5

-8
-5

0
5

 a
n

d
 /

o
r 

6
7

-5
-1

9
0

2
, 

a
s

a
m

e
n

d
e
d

, 
T
e
n

n
e
s
s
e
e
 C

o
d

e
 A

n
n

o
ta

te
d

, 
a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
, 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 b

e
li
e
f

a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 r

e
fl

e
c
t 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

is
 o

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 0
1

/
0

1
/

2
0

2
4

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 0
3

/
3

1
/

2
0

2
4

.

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

  
  
  
  
  
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

R
e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

e
e
d

s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
D

a
te

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

  
  
  
  
  
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

C
o

u
n

ty
 M

a
y
o

r 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 D

a
te

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

  
  
  
  
  
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

le
rk

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
D

a
te

J
e
ff

e
rs

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 ,

 T
e
n

n
e
s
s
e
e

O
ff

ic
e
 O

f 
T
h

e
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
O

f 
D

e
e
d

s
F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

F
o

r 
T
h

e
 P

e
ri

o
d

 O
f 

0
1

/
0

1
/

2
0

2
4

 -
 0

3
/

3
1

/
2

0
2

4





F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

J
e

n
n

if
e

r 
B

o
li

n
g

 H
a

ll
 

J
e

ff
e

rs
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
ru

s
te

e
 

. 
P

ri
n

te
d

 0
4

/0
4

/2
0

2
4

 0
7

:4
9

 A
M

 B
y

 C
in

d
y

 S
h

e
rr

y
 

• •
••

•
•
• 

Q
u

a
r

t
e

r
l

y
 

R
e

p
o

r
t

 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 0
1
, 

2
0

2
4

 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 3
1
, 

2
0

2
4

 

F
u
n

d
 

N
a
m

e
 

S
ta

rt
in

g
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 

D
is

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

ts
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 I
n

 
T

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 O

u
t 

C
o

m
m

.A
dj

. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

E
n

d
in

g
 B

a
la

n
c
e 

1
0

1
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 

$
1

3
,5

6
4

,2
5

2
.4

3
 

$
1

4
,3

1
4

,2
2

3
.7

4
 

$
7

.4
1

8
,2

2
9

.3
8

 
$

3
9

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
1

8
3

.4
8

) 
$

1
9

4
,7

6
7

.3
5

 
$

2
0

,6
5

8
,9

6
2

.9
2

 

1
1

2
 

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

 &
 J

A
IL

 M
A

IN
T

 
$

1
8

7
,2

6
9

.0
5

 
$

1
4

.4
5

8
.4

9
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
1

4
4

.6
0

 
$

2
0

1
,5

8
2

.9
4

 

1
1

4
 

LA
W

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 
$

1
0

,4
0

4
.4

2
 

$
2

,3
2

8
.2

1
 

$
3

,2
8

8
.8

1
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

2
3

.2
8

 
$

9
,4

2
0

.5
4

 

1
1

6
 

G
A

R
B

A
G

E
/S

O
L

ID
 W

A
S

T
E

 
$

1
,0

2
1

,2
0

9
.6

0
 

$
1

,5
0

6
,6

5
4

.2
1

 
$

1
,0

4
0

,1
9

2
.9

6
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
3

1
.8

9
) 

$
2

9
,5

2
4

.6
0

 
$

1
.4

5
8

, 1
7

8
.1

4
 

1
2

1
 

S
P

E
C

IA
L

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 

$
1

8
7

,3
2

2
.9

7
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

1
8

7
,3

2
2

.9
7

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

1
2

2
 

D
R

U
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 

$
4

0
,1

5
3

.0
9

 
$

3
,8

7
6

.2
3

 
$

9
0

4
.9

1
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

3
8

.7
7

 
$

4
3

,0
8

5
.6

4
 

1
2

7
 

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 R

E
S

C
U

E
 P

L
A

N
 A

C
T

 
$

4
,0

2
0

,6
7

2
.5

8
 

$
1

6
2

,8
8

2
.0

2
 

$
2

,9
2

8
,3

1
0

.3
3

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

1
,2

5
5

.2
4

4
.2

7
 

1
2

8
 

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
 L

E
A

S
E

 
$

1
0

,5
5

5
,5

6
5

.4
1

 
$

2
1

2
,5

0
0

.5
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

2
,1

2
5

.0
2

 
$

1
0

,7
6

5
,9

4
0

.8
9

 

1
3

1
 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

/P
U

B
L

IC
 W

O
R

K
S

 
$

5
,4

6
8

,8
2

8
.6

0
 

$
2

,5
5

7
,4

6
8

.0
5

 
$

9
6

7
,7

1
1

.6
8

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
($

4
1

.8
3

) 
$

4
4

,8
1

9
.2

6
 

$
7

,0
1

3
,8

0
7

.5
4

 

1
4

1
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 
$

3
0

,5
4

3
,9

3
8

.3
4

 
$

2
6

,1
1

8
,6

2
9

.7
6

 
$

2
1

,7
9

2
,8

4
9

.5
6

 
$

1
1

0
,7

3
9

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
1

6
1

.6
0

) 
$

1
9

6
,6

2
1

.8
8

 
$

3
4

,7
8

3
,9

9
7

.2
6

 

1
4

2
 

S
C

H
O

O
L

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

$
2

,5
4

5
,1

5
9

.6
6

 
$

2
,2

7
9

,1
8

8
.1

0
 

$
2

,5
5

3
,2

2
7

.5
2

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

2
,2

7
1

.1
2

0
.2

4
 

1
4

3
 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 F

O
O

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

$
3

,0
4

0
,3

5
0

.3
1

 
$

1
,3

4
3

,6
4

0
.9

4
 

$
1

,2
2

9
,5

6
2

.1
8

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

3
,1

5
4

,4
2

9
.0

7
 

1
5

1
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 D

E
B

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

$
2

1
,7

4
9

,4
3

1
.9

1
 

$
4

,5
3

6
,2

6
6

.7
9

 
$

3
0

5
,2

8
9

.8
9

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
($

3
1

.9
3

) 
$

5
7

,8
8

8
.3

0
 

$
2

5
,9

2
2

,5
5

2
.4

4
 

1
7

1
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

$
8

8
2

,6
1

9
.8

5
 

$
3

7
1

,8
8

4
.0

7
 

$
2

8
3

,8
6

7
.6

2
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
7

.9
4

) 
$

7
,4

0
2

.1
3

 
$

9
6

3
,2

4
2

.1
1

 

1
7

4
 

N
U

R
S

IN
G

 H
O

M
E

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
$

8
7

,9
7

2
.6

8
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
8

7
,9

7
2

.6
8

 

1
7

7
 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

$
1

,3
1

4
,5

8
2

.5
3

 
$

2
,0

9
4

,0
9

1
.0

0
 

$
2

,2
0

0
,1

6
8

.4
7

 
$

3
,6

4
6

,9
4

9
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

4
,8

5
5

,4
5

4
.0

6
 

1
8

9
 

C
D

G
B

 G
R

A
N

T
 

$
3

9
7

,3
0

5
.0

0
 

$
2

7
3

.3
0

 
$

3
9

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

S
O

.D
O

 
$

4
,2

7
8

.3
0

 

2
0

7
 

S
O

L
ID

 W
A

S
T

E
 D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

 
$

5
,3

9
9

. 1
4

2
.8

8
 

$
1

.4
3

1
,8

3
7

.8
8

 
$

9
8

5
,4

9
4

.1
7

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
1

1
,5

3
0

.1
2

 
$

5
,8

3
3

,9
5

6
.4

7
 

2
6

4
 

J
E

F
F

E
R

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 B

O
E

 D
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

$
2

0
7

,2
5

0
.1

7
 

$
1

2
8

,7
3

8
.7

2
 

$
1

7
7

,3
1

0
.7

5
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
1

5
8

,6
7

8
.1

4
 

2
6

5
 

J
E

F
F

E
R

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 D

E
N

T
A

L
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 
$

1
1

4
,8

2
5

.1
3

 
$

4
6

,2
2

2
.4

9
 

$
5

0
,6

5
9

.9
7

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

1
1

0
,3

8
7

.6
5

 

3
5

1
 

T
R

U
S

T
 A

N
D

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
2

,2
0

1
,8

7
6

.2
1

 
$

2
,1

7
9

,8
5

7
.4

6
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

2
2

,0
1

8
.7

5
 

$
0

.0
0

 

3
5

2
 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 D

A
N

D
R

ID
G

E
 

$
2

7
3

,1
4

6
.8

9
 

$
5

6
4

,1
7

7
.6

2
 

$
7

8
2

.4
3

7
.7

2
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
4

2
.3

8
) 

$
1

1
,3

0
9

.6
9

 
$

4
3

,6
1

9
.4

8
 

3
5

3
 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

A
N

E
B

E
R

R
Y

 
$

5
6

,1
6

8
.5

8
 

$
8

3
,9

5
4

.4
2

 
$

1
2

7
,8

9
2

.0
7

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
($

5
.4

4
) 

$
1

,6
8

4
.5

1
 

$
1

0
,5

5
1

.8
6

 

3
5

4
 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 N

E
W

 M
A

R
K

E
T

 
$

3
3

,1
2

4
.9

8
 

$
1

1
6

,9
8

3
.0

4
 

$
1

3
9

,3
2

2
.2

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

2
,3

1
0

.6
7

 
$

8
.4

7
5

.1
5

 

9
2

0
 

S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IR

E
C

T
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
8

,2
4

1
,7

5
1

.0
8

 
$

8
,2

4
1

,7
5

1
.0

8
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 

9
2

1
 

O
T

H
E

R
 D

IR
E

C
T

 P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

3
,6

3
3

,9
8

8
.2

4
 

$
3

,6
3

3
,9

8
8

.2
4

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

2
2

2
0

0
 

R
E

F
U

N
D

S
 

$
1

4
,6

0
3

.2
7

 
$

3
7

,2
1

6
.0

9
 

$
5

0
,9

2
1

.3
6

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

8
9

8
.0

0
 

2
8

3
1

0
 

T
A

X
 P

R
E

-P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 
$

0
.0

0
 

($
5

,9
4

0
.1

9
) 

($
5

,9
4

0
.1

9
) 

S
O

.D
O

 
$

0
.0

0
 

$
0

.0
0

 







Jefferson County Constables’ Department

Billy John Cureton - Chief

Jefferson County Commissioners 04/04/2024
P.O. Box 710
Dandridge, TN 37725
865-397-0650

Commissioners,
We would like to share with you an activity report for the first quarter of 2024. So far we

have answered 135 calls for service in 2024. This includes 911 calls, warrant services, property
checks, traffic stops, escorts, backing up other officers, etc.

Several of our Constables have individually expressed their support for a bill that
Representative Farmer has agreed to introduce next year that will increase the initial training
requirements from 40 hours to 128 hours. We encourage you to let Representative Farmer
know your thoughts about this bill. I have attached a copy of the letter that initiated this action.

We are blessed to say that we were awarded the 2023 Jefferson County Health Care
Foundation Fund Grant and have been able to order new bullet resistant vests for ALL
Jefferson County Constables!! We have also been able to provide to each Constable to keep in
their patrol car: 6 tourniquets; two tourniquet holsters; complete first aid kits; water rescue
ropes; personal traffic safety lights; fire extinguishers; and LifeVac devices that are used to help
someone choking. These are all great additions to our grant we received last year that equipped
every Constable patrol car with an AED.

We would like to invite you to attend a monthly department meeting or come participate in
a ride-along with one of our Constables if you would like to learn more about what we do and
how we increase public safety in the county by providing additional law enforcement.

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact us at any time. You
will find our contact information at the bottom of this page and I have also attached a roster
with our officers’ individual contact information, a report from 911 for Jan-Mar, and a copy of
the new bill that will be introduced.

Thank you for all that you do for Jefferson County and its Constables.

Best Regards,

Jacob Thompson
Secretary-Treasurer

P.O. BOX 183 ● NEW MARKET, TENNESSEE 37820 ● PHONE: 865-210-8573
● EMAIL: constables@jeffersoncountytn.gov



Jefferson County Constables’ Department

Billy John Cureton - Chief
Member Roster - July 2023

Chief
Billy John Cureton
District 9
C: 865-475-9429 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 9
bcureton@jeffersoncountytn.gov
701 Murph Rd
Jefferson City, TN 37760

Assistant Chief
David Kelley
District 10
C: 865-223-8747 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 10
dkelley@jeffersoncountytn.gov
918 E. Ellis St
Jefferson City, TN 37760

Secretary-Treasurer
Jacob Thompson
District 5
C: 865-456-0711 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 5
jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov
P.O. Box 183
New Market, TN 37820

Sergeant at Arms
Don Armour
District 1
C: 865-388-7372 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 1
darmour@jeffersoncountytn.gov
1226 Sandstone Ln
Dandridge, TN 37725

Chaplain
Eric Large
District 3
C: 865-386-2957 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 3
elarge@jeffersoncountytn.gov
1129 Spring Creek Rd
Dandridge, TN 37725

Constable
Brandon Hager
District 1
C: 304-784-0500 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 11
bhager@jeffersoncountytn.gov
209 St. Jordan Dr
Dandridge, TN 37725

Constable
Nathan Thurman
District 2
C: 865-963-5093 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 2
nthurman@jeffersoncountytn.gov
485 Gaut Rd
Dandridge, TN 37725

Constable
Brad Gass
District 4
C: 865-369-6911 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 4
bgass@jeffersoncountytn.gov
552 W Highway 11E
New Market, TN 37820

Constable
Mackey Wilson
District 6
C: 865-243-7377 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 6
mwilson@jeffersoncountytn.gov
102 Westford Dr
Strawberry Plains, TN 37871

Constable
Frank Solomon
District 7
C: 865-740-6601 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 7
fsolomon@jeffersoncountytn.gov
1140 Indian Cave Rd
New Market, TN 37820

Constable
Vince Gable
District 8
C: 865-337-1601 W: 865-210-8573 Ext. 8
vgable@jeffersoncountytn.gov
958 Holly Oaks Ln
Dandridge, TN 37725

P.O. BOX 183 ● NEW MARKET, TENNESSEE 37820 ● PHONE: 865-210-8573
● EMAIL: constables@jeffersoncountytn.gov



Department CFS By Month For 2024

Jefferson County E911
581 W. Old AJ Highway  New Market , TN 37820

Jefferson County 911

TotalDecemberNovemberOctoberSeptemberAugustJulyJuneMayAprilFebruary March

JEFFERSON COUNTY CONSTABLE ASSOCIATION
January

39 44 51 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 135

Page Of1 1CAD Report 261 04/03/2024 09:39



Jefferson County Constable

Jacob Thompson
Andrew Farmer 02/01/2024
State of Tennessee Representative
425 Rep. John Lewis Way N.
Suite 630 Cordell Hull Bldg.
Nashville, TN 37243
615-741-4419
rep.andrew.farmer@capitol.tn.gov

Representative Farmer,
As a citizen and Constable of Jefferson County, I ask that you consider the

following information for introduction to legislation.
Present law requires newly elected Constables to complete 40 hours of in-service

education prior to exercising law enforcement powers and authority.
This amendment would require newly elected Constables to complete the same

initial training as that of a newly hired part-time or reserve Deputy Sheriff. The only
exception provided is if the newly elected Constable is currently a POST certified
officer.

I would like to fully disclose that this has NOT been endorsed by the Tennessee
Constables’ Association and that my opinions and views do not reflect the opinions and
views of the Tennessee Constables’ Association, their Board of Directors, their Officers,
nor their membership body.

If you have any questions at all, please feel free to contact me anytime. Thank you
for your time and consideration.

Best regards,

Jacob Thompson
Constable
Jefferson County
P.O. Box 183
New Market, TN 37820
865-210-8573 Ext. 5
jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov

P.O. BOX 183 ● NEW MARKET, TENNESSEE 37820 ● PHONE: 865-210-8573 Ext. 5
● EMAIL: jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov

mailto:rep.andrew.farmer@capitol.tn.gov
mailto:jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov


Jefferson County Constable

Jacob Thompson

Note: The existing law is printed in red. I desire the current law to be completely
replaced with what is printed in blue.

2021 Tennessee Code
Title 8 - Public Officers and Employees
Chapter 10 - Constables
Part 1 - General Provisions
8-10-104 Completion of In-Service Education Required Prior to Exercise of Law
Enforcement Powers and Authority

a. A constable shall not exercise any law enforcement powers and authority
conferred upon the constable by §§ 8-10-108, 39-17-1315, 39-17-1350, 40-6-210,
40- 6-212, 55-8-152, 57-9-101, 57-9-103, and 57-9-201, if the constable fails to
complete the in-service education requirements described in part 2 of this chapter.

b. A constable who violates this section commits a Class C misdemeanor, subject to
a fine only. Each day of a violation of this section constitutes a separate offense.

a. After July 1, 2025, any person newly elected or appointed as a constable shall receive
one hundred twenty-eight (128) hours of training in law enforcement duties. This
training shall be accomplished during the first calendar year of election or appointment.
During this initial period, prior to receiving one hundred twenty-eight (128) hours of
training, the constable shall be paired with another constable who has completed all
training requirements or a certified officer.

b. Any constable who is hired within five (5) years of having served as a full-time,
certified law enforcement officer may continue to be exempt from the requirement that
he/she be paired with another constable or certified officer during the initial training
period.

c. The one hundred twenty-eight (128) hour training requirement may be waived if the
officer successfully completes a Basic Law Enforcement Course within one (1) year of
the date of election or appointment.

P.O. BOX 183 ● NEW MARKET, TENNESSEE 37820 ● PHONE: 865-210-8573 Ext. 5
● EMAIL: jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov



Jefferson County Constable

Jacob Thompson

d. A constable who was elected or appointed on or prior to July 1, 2025, and has had
continuous service is exempt from the one hundred twenty-eight (128) hour initial
training requirement. Any constable who has a break in service of any length whatsoever
shall be required to meet the one hundred twenty-eight (128) hour initial training
requirement.

e. A constable shall not exercise any law enforcement powers and authority conferred
upon the constable by §§ 8-10-108, 39-17-1315, 39-17-1350, 40-6-210, 40- 6-212,
55-8-152, 57-9-101, 57-9-103, and 57-9-201, if the constable fails to complete the initial
education requirements or the in-service education requirements described in part 2 of
this chapter.

f. A constable who violates subsection “e.” commits a Class C misdemeanor, subject to a
fine only. Each day of a violation of this section constitutes a separate offense.

P.O. BOX 183 ● NEW MARKET, TENNESSEE 37820 ● PHONE: 865-210-8573 Ext. 5
● EMAIL: jthompson@jeffersoncountytn.gov









JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS 
 
 “Success and Productivity for Every Student” 

P. O. Box 190                        (865) 397-3194 
1221 Gay Street  Fax: (865) 397-3301 
Dandridge, TN  37725`                    http://jc-schools.net 

 
 

County Commission Quarterly Report  APRIL 2024 
 
Updated District/School Announcements/Calendar 

• April 1, 2024, Professional Development Day, and Kindergarten Registration 
• April 15, 2024, TCAP testing window opens. 
• May 21, 2024, Last Day of School, early dismissal day 

JCS Recognitions 
• Grease, the 2024 Senior Play, is in the books and was a huge success. Thankful to all involved, those 

who attended, and donors who helped make it possible.  
• County-wide Science Fair winner is James (Jay) Inman from Jefferson Elementary School. 
• County-wide Spelling Bee winner is 6th grader Audrey Mayes of Rush Strong School 
• Another successful year of Elementary Basketball is finished and Dandridge Elementary won both boys 

and girls regular season and tournament champions.  
• Supervisor of The Year- Trevor Collins 
• Principal of The Year- Ron Overton 
• County-wide Teacher of The Year Winners 

o K-4   Brandie Conrad – 4th grade teacher at White Pine School 
o 5-8   Heidi Booker – ESL Teacher at White Pine School 
o 9-12 Hillary Love – Business Teacher at Jefferson County High School 

Data Spotlight 
• JCS continues to see increased achievement in I-Ready benchmark data in grades K-8. 
• Winter ELA benchmark scores show JCS outperforming national averages. 
• High-school students showed an improvement on the ACT test. 

Summer Programming 
• JCS offering multiple summer programs to assist students. 
• Funded through state allocations. 

o Camps run June 4 – June 28 
o Multiple school sites offered. 
o Transportation provided. 
o Breakfast and Lunch are provided daily. 

Piedmont Renovation 
• An end is in site of this 2-year renovation project. We are at 92% completion.  
• Change orders have been minimal and resulted in under $75,000 at this time. 
• This renovation will allow Piedmont School to have a life expectancy of another 40-50 years of service 

from this building project.  
Energy Project 

• Lighting has been completed at Patriot Academy, JCHS, Mount Horeb, Jefferson Elementary, Jefferson 
Middle, Jefferson Academy, and White Pine.  

• Lighting is expected to be completed by the end of April. 
• HVAC replacement has begun at Dandridge Elementary.  
• HVAC replacements at Dandridge, White Pine, and New Market are slated to be completed.  

http://jc-schools.net/


JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS 
 
 “Success and Productivity for Every Student” 
 

2 
 

 
Roofing Project 

• New Market Elementary School Roofing project is scheduled for this summer. 
• Patriot Academy is scheduled for preventive roof maintenance.  

 
Capital Projects 

• Culinary- Work to turn the home economics/food nutrition classroom at JCHS into a culinary arts 
classroom has been placed out to bid. 

• Awnings- work at Talbott and New Market have been completed and Jefferson Middle school is planned 
to be completed by mid-April.  

• Keys- JCS is in the process of re-keying the entire district. 
• Ag Livestock Building waiting until fall 2024 to bid out. 
• Paving- gravel lots is the priority. RSS has been completed, JMS football handicap parking is next, TES 

and WPS gravel lots will be completed over the summer.  
• Window tinting and school camera upgrades out of School Safety Grant funding has been a prioity. 

 
District/School Testing Season 

• TNREADY Testing (TCAP) 
o April 16 – May 5 

• Statewide Dual Credit Testing 
o May 8 – May 18 

• AP Exam Dates 
o May 1 – May 12 

• Patriot Academy Dates 
o April 18– May 5  

 
Budget – FY24 

• School Board had 1st look at proposed budget. 
• Planning is almost finished and the board plans to have a special called meeting April 11 to consider the 

proposed budget. 
• General Information: More Details will be shared after board approval. 

o Supports to enhance academics (Achievement and Growth) 
o Commitment to teachers/employees with raises 
o Addresses capital improvements/projects. 

o Board will review Operation Upgrade Phase 6 
o Focused efforts on instruction and safety issues 
o Innovative Schools Model state grant 
o Energy Project- Perfection Group. 



JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS 
 
 “Success and Productivity for Every Student” 

P. O. Box 190                        (865) 397-3194 
1221 Gay Street  Fax: (865) 397-3301 
Dandridge, TN  37725`                    http://jc-schools.net 

 

http://jc-schools.net/
















































General  Count
01/01/2024 00:00 to 03/31/2024 23:59

Jefferson County E911
581 W. Old AJ Highway  New Market , TN 37820

Jefferson County 911

336911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTERS

36BANEBERRY FIRE DEPARTMENT

7CARSON NEWMAN SECURITY

59CHESTNUT HILL FIRE DEPARTMENT

192DANDRIDGE FIRE DEPARTMENT

935DANDRIDGE POLICE DEPARTMENT

359JEFFERSON CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT

2977JEFFERSON CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT

370JEFFERSON COUNTY 911

134JEFFERSON COUNTY CONSTABLE ASSOCIATION

122JEFFERSON COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

3365JEFFERSON COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL
SERIVCE

152JEFFERSON COUNTY RESCUE SQUAD

5655JEFFERSON COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

44KANSAS TALBOTT FIRE DEPARTMENT

72LAKEWAY CENTRAL FIRE DEPARTMENT

5LIFESTAR

44MUTUAL AID EMS

14MUTUAL AID FIRE

7MUTUAL AID LAW

98NEW MARKET FIRE DEPARTMENT

578NEW MARKET POLICE DEPARTMENT

1692No Units

17PARROTTS CHAPEL FIRE DEPARTMENT

181PUBLIC WORKS

503TENNESSEE HIGHWAY PATROL

1TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY POLICE

43TENNESSEE WILDLIFE

215WHITE PINE FIRE DEPARTMENT

934WHITE PINE POLICE DEPARTMENT

19147Total

Department Count

Page Of1 1CAD Report 474 04/01/2024 10:19



Jefferson County 911

581 W Old Andrew Johnson Hwy

Jeff City, TN 37760 County: Jefferson

Year: 2024

Agency Affiliation Emergency Communications

Top PSAP Metrics - Answer Time Report Date: 04/01/2024 09:22:58

Report Date From: 01/01/2024

Report Date To: 03/31/2024

Period Group: All

Time Block: 00:00 - 23:59

Days Of Week: All

Call Type: All

Abandoned Filters: Include Abandoned

Agency Affiliation: All

91
1

Answered 5,591

Abandoned 401

Abandoned % 6.69%

Unparsed 0

Total 5,992

Text Sessions 115

TOTAL 911 6,107

Average per Day 67

91
1 

A
n

sw
er

Answered ≤ 10 98.58%

Answered ≤ 15 99.65%

Answered ≤ 20 99.87%

Answered ≤ 40 100.00%

Average Answer Secs 4.71

91
1 

C
o

S

WRLS 4,952

WRLN 153

VoIP 244

TLMA & Other 0

No Class of Service 643

N
o

n
-9

11

10 Digit 0

Admin 16,818

Total 16,818

Average per Day 185

Outbound 9,768

Average per Day 107

T
ex

t

Inbound Sessions 115

Average per Day 1

Avg Msgs per Session 3.32

Avg Session Duration (Secs) 229.5

Outbound Sessions 0

Average per Day 0

T
T

Y
 (

A
ll 

T
yp

es
)

Inbound Calls 0

Average per Day 0

Avg Msgs per Call 0.00

Avg Call Duration (Secs) 0.0

Outbound Calls 0

Average per Day 0

Page 1 of 1



JE
FF

ER
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

 E
M

S
Q

U
AR

TE
R

LY
 R

EP
O

R
T

TO
TA

L
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
C

on
tr

ac
tu

al
C

ha
rit

ab
le

N
et

C
as

h

R
ES

PO
N

SE
S

TR
AN

SP
O

R
TS

C
ha

rg
es

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

W
rit

e-
of

fs
Sa

le
s

In
co

m
e

20
23

-2
02

4

Ju
ly

11
40

86
4

1,
02

3,
36

6.
50

$
 

52
3,

81
2.

88
$

 
3,

53
1.

75
$

 
49

6,
02

1.
87

$
 

33
2,

01
1.

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Au
gu

st
11

40
82

8
97

6,
38

6.
75

$
 

66
7,

62
2.

53
$

 
9,

38
2.

00
$

 
29

9,
38

2.
22

$
 

46
0,

20
8.

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Se
pt

em
be

r
11

03
83

7
97

3,
30

2.
00

$
 

53
5,

08
0.

08
$

 
1,

84
9.

00
$

 
43

6,
37

2.
92

$
 

35
8,

36
9.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

O
ct

ob
er

11
79

91
5

1,
07

1,
48

9.
90

$
 

71
5,

06
1.

57
$

 
1,

51
0.

54
$

 
35

4,
91

7.
79

$
 

41
7,

42
9.

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

N
ov

em
be

r
11

75
86

9
1,

02
7,

57
8.

00
$

 
43

9,
90

4.
69

$
 

9,
72

6.
85

$
 

57
7,

94
6.

46
$

 
30

2,
28

3.
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

D
ec

em
be

r
12

81
93

5
1,

10
0,

19
1.

50
$

 
52

1,
72

4.
69

$
 

51
.9

0
$

 
57

8,
41

4.
91

$
 

35
0,

50
2.

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Ja
nu

ar
y

11
79

84
5

99
3,

35
6.

00
$

 
51

1,
30

4.
55

$
 

1,
30

4.
50

$
 

48
0,

74
6.

95
$

 
33

4,
48

7.
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Fe
br

ua
ry

10
84

83
5

93
6,

88
2.

00
$

 
62

7,
56

9.
07

$
 

10
,4

39
.0

0
$

 
29

8,
87

3.
93

$
 

40
7,

73
3.

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

M
ar

ch
10

93
81

9
96

2,
64

1.
50

$
 

44
2,

35
7.

66
$

 
9,

06
0.

00
$

 
51

1,
22

3.
84

$
 

35
7,

26
5.

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Ap
ril

-
$

 

M
ay

-
$

 

Ju
ne

-
$

 

TO
TA

LS
10

37
4

77
47

9,
06

5,
19

4.
15

$
 

4,
98

4,
43

7.
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

46
,8

55
.5

4
$

 
4,

03
3,

90
0.

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

32
0,

29
1.

19
$ 

   
   

   
  



 MEMO 

TO: TOM CARTER

FROM: Toni Caprio/Environmental Dept. Jefferson 
County 

DATE: March 31, 2024 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Report 
(Jan., Feb., Mar. 2024) 

The following is a report of the activities of the Jefferson County Health 
Department/Division of Environmental Health for the quarter ending March 
2024.  

SEWAGE VISITS: 
Drain field Layouts 74 
Technical Assistance  24 
Drain field Finals   75 
Inspection Letters    0 
Repairs  9 

WATER SAMPLES 2 
COMPLAINTS  32 

SUBDIVISION EVALUATIONS      19 
CLERICAL 287 
CERTIFICATE OF VERIFICATION    10 

_____ 
Total   532 



JE
FF

ER
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, D
IV

. O
F 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
TA

L
 H

EA
L

T
H

 
FE

E
S 

BR
EA

K
D

O
W

N
 

20
19

-2
02

0 
4 M

on
th

 
Se

pt
ic

 
Pe

rm
its

 
W

at
er

 
Sa

m
pl

e 
In

sp
ec

t 
L

et
te

r 
Su

b 
di

v 
E

va
l. 

Su
bd

iv
 

E
va

l. 
E

xi
st

in
g 

C
.O

.V
.

In
st

al
le

r 
Pe

rm
its

 
Pu

m
pe

r 
R

ep
ai

r 
FI

N
A

L
 

C
O

U
N

T
S 

U
p 

G
ra

de
 

O
R

 
O

T
H

E
R

 

T
ot

al
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
C

ol
le

ct
ed

 

Ja
n.

 
‘2

4 
24

 
$6

00
0.

00
 

1 $6
5.

00
 

0 $0
0.

00
 

7 $3
50

.0
0 

E—
1 

$6
0.

00
  

C
O

V
-4

 
$4

00
.0

0 

20
 

$4
00

0.
00

 
1 $2

00
.0

0 

4 $4
00

.0
0 

8 
2 $1

00
.0

0 
$1

15
75

.0
0 

Fe
b.

 
‘2

4 
18

 
$4

50
0.

00
 

1 $6
5.

00
 

0 $0
0.

00
 

13
 

$6
50

.0
0 

E-
0 

 C
O

V
-8

$0
.0

0
$8

00
.0

0

11
 

$2
20

0.
00

 
0 $0

0.
00

 
6 $6

00
.0

0 
13

 
4 $9

50
.0

0 
$9

76
5.

00
 

M
ar

. 
‘2

4 
28

 
$7

00
0.

00
 

1 $6
5.

00
 

0 $0
.0

0 
7 $3

50
.0

0 
E-

0 
 C

O
V

-8
$0

.0
0

$8
00

.0
0

7 $1
40

0.
00

 
0 $0

0.
00

 
10

 
$1

00
0.

00
 

25
 

8 $1
45

0.
00

 
$1

20
65

.0
0 

(T
ot

al
) 

$3
34

05
.0

0 

Th
e 

ab
ov

e 
to

ta
ls

 a
re

 a
 re

fle
ct

io
n 

of
 fe

es
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

Fe
e 

Sc
he

du
le

 li
st

ed
 b

el
ow

: 

Se
pt

ic
 P

er
m

it 
$ 

25
0.

00
  

Ex
is

tin
g 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
 $

  6
0.

00
  

U
pg

ra
de

 P
er

m
it 

 
 $

20
0.

00
 

W
at

er
 S

am
pl

e 
 

   
  6

5.
00

  
C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
of

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
   

  1
00

.0
0 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 L

et
te

r  
   

 2
00

.0
0 

R
ep

ai
r 

 
   

  1
00

.0
0 

In
st

al
le

r P
er

m
it 

 
   

 2
00

.0
0 

Pu
m

pe
r P

er
m

it 
 

   
  2

00
.0

0 

Su
bd

iv
i s

io
n 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
   

   
50

.0
0 

Su
bd

iv
is

on
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
Ex

is
tin

g 
   

   
  6

0.
00

 



Pa
ge

 1
Je

ffe
rs

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
To

ta
ls

 2
01

0-
20

11
.x

lr

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K
L

M
N

Ja
n.

 2
02

4
Fe

b.
 2

02
4

M
ar

. 2
02

4
Ap

r. 
20

24
M

ay
. 2

02
4

Ju
ne

.2
02

4
Ju

ly
.2

02
3

Au
g.

20
23

Se
pt

.2
02

3
O

ct
.2

02
3

N
ov

.2
02

3
D

ec
. 2

02
3

TO
TA

LS
Se

pt
ic

 P
er

m
it

24
18

28
42

53
31

36
25

13
U

pg
ra

de
 S

ep
tic

 P
er

m
it

0
2

6
1

0
0

1
0

1
R

ep
ai

r P
er

m
it

4
6

10
3

7
3

2
5

2
W

at
er

 S
am

pl
e

1
1

1
2

3
1

0
1

1
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Le
tte

r
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n
7

13
7

6
11

10
13

4
4

Ex
is

tin
g 

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

Ev
al

.
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n
4

8
8

4
7

3
6

2
2

In
st

al
le

r P
er

m
it

20
11

7
2

4
5

3
5

45
O

th
er

 - 
LP

P 
Pe

rm
it

2
1

1
6

Pu
m

pe
r P

er
m

it
1

1
4

La
te

 F
ee

2
O

ffi
ce

 F
ee

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

Sy
st

em
 P

er
m

its
1

2
Ad

di
tio

n 
10

00
 G

al
lo

n
3

1
2

2
La

rg
e 

C
on

ve
nt

io
na

l S
ys

te
m

 P
la

n 
R

ev
ie

w

Ex
pe

rim
en

ta
l S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

AM
O

U
N

T 
R

EC
EI

VE
D

"
$1

1,
57

5.
00

$9
,7

65
.0

0
$1

2,
06

5.
00

$1
2,

53
0.

00
$1

6,
29

5.
00

$1
0,

36
5.

00
$1

1,
10

0.
00

$8
,2

15
.0

0
$1

4,
73

5.
00

$1
06

,6
45

.0
0

Pa
ge

 1
Je

ffe
rs

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
To

ta
ls

 2
01

0-
20

11
.x

lr













































































































































Surplus Property Policy 
 

Definition of surplus property 
Vehicles, equipment, parts, furniture, supplies and all other property owned by 
Jefferson County Tennessee Government that is deemed to be surplus, or not 
needed, by Department Heads. 
 
Procedure for surplus property disposal 

• Department heads shall submit a list of proposed surplus property to the 
Finance Director. The list shall include description, make, model, mileage, 
year built or manufactured and other pertinent information as applicable. 
The list shall also include the reason(s) for declaring the property surplus.  

• The Finance Director shall provide this list to all other department heads to 
see if the property is needed by their department.  

• For property not requested by other County Departments the Finance 
Director shall submit the list to the Jefferson County School System for their 
consideration. 

• For property not requested by other County Departments or the School 
System the Finance Director shall present the list to Jefferson County 
Volunteer Fire Departments, the Jefferson County Rescue Squad and the 
animal shelter funded by the County for their consideration.  

• The Finance Director shall then present the list to County Commission. The 
list shall include the Finance Director’s recommendation(s) for transfer 
and/or disposal of said property. County Commission shall vote on the 
recommendation(s) or provide other direction through motions and voting.  

 
Disposal of Motor Vehicles 

• All motor vehicles, regardless of condition, that were licensed and registered 
for highway use, and that are not transferred to another department, shall 
be sold at the direction of the Finance Director. All funds from the sale shall 
be deposited to the County General Fund.  

 
 

 
 

 



 4/01/2024 

Quarterly Report – Office on Aging/ Senior Services 
 
The purpose of the Senior Services/ Office on Aging department is to provide information and 
support to our seniors in Jefferson County. The Senior Centers are an off shoot of that 
department. All the senior centers hold activities to make seniors feel welcome. It is through 
these activities that we can learn about what our seniors’ needs are so that we are better able 
to help and support them. There are many ways in which we serve our seniors, but our goal is 
to provide a safe and harmonious place where they can learn about wellness and health, 
fellowship with other seniors, provide for everyday needs, and have fun. We want seniors to 
share their lives with other seniors and us. This allows seniors to be active in their community, 
avoid isolation and age in place.  
 
On a day-to-day basis, seniors call or come into my office in search of help or information. I 
must document my interaction with them and report this. Some seniors have needs that I can 
address immediately like food or adult underwear. The Dandridge Ministerial Administration is 
an immense help to get food immediately to needy seniors. They store boxes of food for the 
Office on Aging to use in such cases. 
 
I continue to reach out to the community to let them know of our services. I advertise in the 
Standard Banner twice a month to let seniors know the activities happening at the centers.  
We are in the process of advertising the services that the Office on Aging provides. We are 
hoping to reach out to seniors that do not know what the Office on Aging does.  
 
We have a program called “Senior Meal Connect” in which we can give food boxes to needy 
seniors. We are now delivering to forty-three homes. The Dandridge Ministerial 
Administration and Second Harvest have joined forces with my office to provide this service. 
They have been extremely kind, helpful, and diligent in their efforts to serve our seniors. I am 
grateful for their kindness. 
 
Having reported our activities to ETHRA through our new system, Mon Ami, we can gauge 
attendance and activities. From July 1, 2023, through March 11, 2024, there have been 514 
seniors that have visited our five centers. Those seniors have participated in 17,697 units of 
activities. This demonstrates the importance of the centers in our community.  
 
We are always looking for ways to serve our seniors and better their life. If there are any 
questions or concerns, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Arlita Brisbin 
Director, Office on Aging/ Senior Services 
931 Industrial Park Road 
Dandridge, TN 37725 



Jefferson County Tourism FY24-Q2 Report 

 
JEFFERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM 

2023-2024 – Q3 REPORT 
January, February, March 

 
TOURISM INDUSTRY NEWS & UPDATES 
 
VisitJeffersonCountyTN.com - New and improved website 
launched in January 2024 – The website features local 
Jefferson County Tourism businesses, lodging rentals, and 
updated itineraries. The site will also feature a resources page 
for local tourism industry partners to reference. 
 
TN Magazine - Staff was invited to contribute an article for the 
TN Magazine March Edition on the development of the 
Jefferson County Tourism Department's programs over the 
past 16 years of the office. Staff highlighted the "Fish Jefferson 
County" program, tourism trends and future projections. 
 
New Tourism Businesses - The Old City Hall project 
announced Patriot Pizza's official open date in January of 2024 
with Knead Donut's the Heritage Visitor Center and Lodging to 
be open in later spring. Martha's Market announced the 
opening of Martha's Café within the general store in Dandridge.  
 

 
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX (Reporting Dates: July 2023 – 
February 2023)  
 

o Fiscal YTD:  $583,154.40 
o 14.9% increase over Fiscal YTD 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

 
LEGISLATIVE INSIGHTS 
 
SB1676/HB2240: Annual report on hotel-motel tax - There 
have been some minor amendments, section one of the bill 
will remain, requiring that jurisdictions, which collect 
occupancy tax, provide an annual report to the state 
comptroller and the House Local Government committee and 
the Senate State and Local Government committee, reflecting 
how much tax was received and how it was spent on promoting 
tourism. Sponsors are Sen. Briggs, Rep. Cochran 
 
SB1780/HB1857: Local government tax rates on tax collected 
on the occupancy of short-term rental units-Requires the 
department of revenue to post on its website the rate 
information it receives from local governments regarding local 
tax collected on the occupancy of short-term rental units. 
Broadly captioned. Sponsors: Sen. Swann, Rep. Moon 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS & MARKETING 
 
In the News: 

o Bassmaster.com: Prespawn Contest on Tap for College 
Series Event at Douglas Lake 
https://www.bassmaster.com/college/news/prespawn-
contest-on-tap-for-college-series-event-at-douglas-
lake/ 

o Fishing Towns: Visit Jefferson partnered with Major 
League Fishing and the Bill Dance Signature Lakes 
Project to talk about TN's Fishing Towns featuring 
Douglas Lake and Dandridge. 
https://majorleaguefishing.com/videos/2142157/  

 
Blogs & Articles Published:  
  

o Make 2024 the Year to Explore the Lakeside of the 
Smokies  

o 5 Vacation Rentals We Love for a Summer Lake 
Vacation  

o Spirit of Nations Powwow to Return to Jefferson 
County High School 

o Birding Guide to the Lakeside 
o White Mountain Apache Crown Dancers to Perform at 

Spirit of Nations Powwow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0.00
$20,000.00
$40,000.00
$60,000.00
$80,000.00

$100,000.00
$120,000.00
$140,000.00

July

August

September

October

November

December

January

February
March

April
May

June

Lodging Tax: Fiscal Revenue

2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22

2022-23 2023-24

https://majorleaguefishing.com/videos/2142157/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/explore-in-24/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/explore-in-24/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/5-vacation-rentals-we-love-for-a-summer-lake-vacation/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/5-vacation-rentals-we-love-for-a-summer-lake-vacation/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/spirit-of-nations-powwow-to-return-to-jefferson-county-high-school/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/spirit-of-nations-powwow-to-return-to-jefferson-county-high-school/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/birding-guide-to-the-lakeside/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/white-mountain-apache-crown-dancers-to-perform-at-spirit-of-nations-powwow/
https://visitjeffersoncountytn.com/white-mountain-apache-crown-dancers-to-perform-at-spirit-of-nations-powwow/


Jefferson County Tourism FY24-Q2 Report 

Website Analytics: VisitJeffersonCountyTN.com 

 
 
Monthly Newsletter and Automated Email Campaigns: 

 

 
 
Social Media Reach (Facebook & Instagram):  

 
 
PAID ADVERTISING 
Print & Digital Ads Published: Copies of publications are 
available in the Tourism Department office. Ad leads 
generated are from current and previously published print 
media, i.e.. TN Vacation, Outdoor Magazine, etc.  
• Advertising Leads (January - March): 427 

 
Traditional Media: 

o Outside Magazine: Dreamy Park Experiences You Don't 
Want to Miss – Email 

o 2024 Tennessee Vacation Guide (Full Page) 
o TNVacation.com: 

https://www.tnvacation.com/articles/explore-
lakeside-smokies-jefferson-county-tennessee 

o Major League Fishing - 2024 Calendar 
o TN Accommodations and Attractions Guide  
o Anchor Down and The Ridge RV Resort Guides 

 
Pay Per Click – Google Ads: 
Winter campaigns ended February with Spring Ads beginning 
late March 2024.  
 

 
 
Meta Ads (Facebook & Instagram): 

 
 
EVENTS & TOURNAMENTS 
JCTD sponsored and hosted 6 events from January–March. 
(*Not Reporting) 

o Bassmaster College & High School, Douglas Lake - 
March 7-9, 2024 

o Bass Pro High School Team Tournament, Cherokee Lake 
- March 16, 2024 

o Morristown Marine Trail, Douglas Lake - March 16, 2024 
o *White Pine Marine Trail, Douglas Lake - March 23, 2024 
o *Spirit of Nations Powwow, Jefferson County High School 

- March 26, 2024 
o *TN BASS Nation Kayak – March 30, 2024 

 
2024 Event Economic Impact Overview (ROI and Impact Reports 
are produced from surveys, registration lists, tickets sold, etc. by 
event and tournament organizers. Data is adjusted with Daily 
Average Rates (ADR) which is based on average of market surveys) 
 
o Total Number of Events: 6 
o EST. Overnight Stays:  1,586 
o AVG. Number of Nights Stayed: 2.25 
o Total Number of Boats:  929 
o Total Food Expenditures: $461,825.00 
o Total Misc. Expenditures: $461,825.00 
o Total Gas (boats only):  $182,896.88 
o Total Lodging Revenue:  $276,558.75 
o Total Impact:   $1,383,105.63 
o ROI:    3.06% 
 
Upcoming Events (January – March) 

o April 20-21 - Bill Dance Giant Bass Open, Douglas Lake 
o April 27 - Ride the Plains, Strawberry Plains, New Market 
o April 27 – Rockin’ the Creek Spring Concert, Jefferson City 
o May 4 - TN Kayak Bass Nation, Douglas Lake  
o May 11 - Major League Fishing Vol. Division, Douglas Lake 
o May 18 - White Pine Marine Trail #2, Douglas Lake 
o May 29-31 – Major League Fishing’s 2024 All-American 

National Championship, Cherokee Lake 
o June 15 - June Jubilee, Dandridge 
o June 29 - Rockin’ the Creek Summer Concert, Jefferson City 

 
 
 
 

https://www.tnvacation.com/articles/explore-lakeside-smokies-jefferson-county-tennessee
https://www.tnvacation.com/articles/explore-lakeside-smokies-jefferson-county-tennessee








From: Curtis Hudson
To: LeAnn Sutton
Cc: Carolyn Voiles
Subject: Jan, Feb, Mar Quarterly Report
Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 8:24:22 AM

Claims filed -59
 
Phones call for information or for appointments 425
 
Walk -in  41 to file a claim or info.
 
 
 
Curtis Hudson
Veterans Service Officer
 
 
 

mailto:chudson@jeffersoncountytn.gov
mailto:Lsutton@jeffersoncountytn.gov
mailto:cvoiles@jeffersoncountytn.gov


FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd: 3/11/2024

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Maintenance Garage / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 25,000.00

51810 321 + 25,000.00

25,000.00 25,000.00

Fund Balance

Maintenance Garage - Engineering Services

Budgeting funds using fund balance to obtain engineering specs with a professional engineer or PE stamped plan for the FY 24/25 

Maintenance Garage addition in coordination with the Fleet Director to obtain an estimated cost for budgeting purposes.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

GENERAL FUND 101 - AMENDMENT #19

April 2024

25,000.00

0.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL +

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1   Debit Credit

49700 Insurance Recovery + 15,144.92

54110 338 Repair of Vehicles + 15,144.92

  15,144.92 15,144.92

   

Item # 2   Debit Credit

48610 Contributions + 117.64

56300 355 OOA Senior - Travel - Office On Aging + 117.64

  117.64 117.64

   

Item # 3   Debit Credit

44530 Sale of Equipment + 5,296.64

54110 790 AMMO Other Equipment - AMMO + 5,296.64

  5,296.64 5,296.64

   

Item # 4   Debit Credit

49700 Insurance Recovery + 678.86

55130 338 Maintenance of Vehicles - Repairs + 678.86

  678.86 678.86

   

Sheriff Department 

Total

Allocating funds from sale of equipment on GovDeals invoices #60-0118242000-8654, #60-0118242000-6753, 60-0118242000-2774, 

(2006 Ford Econoline Ambulance VIN#1FDSE35PX6HA39704), 55-0129241631-2774, into expenditure line for purchase of 

ammunition in fiscal year 2023-2024.

EMS Ambulance / Insurance recovery

Total

Allocating funds received from Tennessee Risk Management and Trust for claim #VA106125, VIN #202902, Asset #1441 into 

expenditure line for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Allocating funds contributed from Dandridge Senior Center for reimbursement of travel expenses in Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

GENERAL FUND 101 - AMENDMENT #20

April 2024

62,286.05

6,858.92

Sheriff Department / Insurance Recovery

Total

Allocating funds received from Tennessee Risk Management and Trust for Claim # VA102279, #106387 VIN #B11727, Asset #1403, 

Claim #VA106386, VIN #E66356, Asset #1404, Claim #VA106385, VIN #B11696, Asset #1486, Claim #VA105810, VIN 151181, Asset 

1209,   into expenditure line for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Senior Citizens Assistance 

Total



Item # 5 Debit Credit

43360 DA Library Fees - Dandridge Library - 2,056.51

34535 DA Restricted for Social, Cultural, Rec. Ser - Dandridge Library + 2,056.51

43360 JC Library Fees - Jefferson City Library - 6,187.54

34535 JC Restricted for Social, Cultural, Rec. Ser - Jefferson City Library+ 6,187.54

43360 SP Library Fees - Parrott-Wood Library - 758.15

34535 SP Restricted for Social, Cultural, Rec. Ser - Parrott-Wood Library+ 758.15

43360 WP Library Fees - White Pine Library - 1,138.88

34535 WP Restricted for Social, Cultural, Rec. Ser - White Pine Library + 1,138.88

  10,141.08 10,141.08

   

Item # 6   Debit Credit

34515 CoC Restricted for Finance Automation - County Clerk - 17,000.00

52500 709 JCOB Data Processing Equipment + 17,000.00

  17,000.00 17,000.00

   

Item # 7 Capital Outlay Interfund Note, Series 2023 Debit Credit

49800 CDBG + 397,305.00

39000 + 397,305.00

397,305.00 397,305.00

Item # 8 County Buildings / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 73,847.00

51800 502 + 7,735.00

51800 415 + 32,212.00

51800 335 + 33,900.00

73,847.00 73,847.00

Item # 9 White Pine Library / Arts Build Communities Grant Debit Credit

48610 WP + 1,800.00

56500 599 WP + 1,800.00

1,800.00 1,800.00

Item # 10 Tourism Department / Major League Fishing  - All American Event Sponsorship Debit Credit

48990 + 25,000.00

58110 312 + 25,000.00

25,000.00 25,000.00

Budgeting funds received from the Arts Build Communities grant through the Tennessee Arts Commission a mural on the outside 

the building completed on 9/21/2024 for fiscal year 2023-2024.

Other Revenue

Contracts with Private Agencies

Budgeting funds received from sponsorship payment for Major League Fishing All - American Event: Tennessee Tourist Development 

into expenditure line for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Other Charges - White Pine Library

Transfers In - CDBG Fund 189

Fund Balance

Budgeting reimbursement payment for Capital Outlay Interfund Note, Series 2023,  from CDBG Fund 189 now that grant 

reimbursement has been received.

Fund Balance

Building and Contents Insurance

Electricity

Maintenance and Repair Services - Buildings

Budgeting funds from Fund Balance to supplement County Buildings expenditure line due to increase in building and contents 

premium, to replace storm damage costs incurred to County Buildings on 8/07/2023, and increase electricity budget for remaining 

of fiscal year 2023-2024.

Donations - White Pine Library

Budgeting funds using reserves for data processing equipment for the new Jefferson County Office Building. 

Libraries / Reserves

Total

Moving library fees collected during the 2nd quarter of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 through March 2024 from revenue to reserves.

County Clerk / Reserves

Total



Item # 11 Jail  / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 200,000.00

54210 340 + 200,000.00

200,000.00 200,000.00

Item # 12 Juvenile Court / Insurance Recovery Debit Credit

49700 + 500.00

53500 718 + 500.00

500.00 500.00

Item # 13 County Overtime / County Bonus / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 28,250.25

51600 188 + 126.00

51800 187 + 7,424.24

52100 187 + 1,166.43

52100 188 + 0.02

52300 187 + 12,257.58

52400 188 + 749.18

53100 187 + 1,350.24

53300 187 + 18.05

53500 187 + 624.75

55110 188 + 1,353.18

56500 187 + 1,056.78

57500 187 + 2,123.80

28,250.25 28,250.25

Item # 14 Transfers In / Fund Balance Debit Credit

49800 + 4,278.30

39000 + 4,278.30

4,278.30 4,278.30

Item # 15 County Commission / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 17,200.00

51100 331 + 17,200.00

17,200.00 17,200.00

Item # 16 Hotel/Motel Tax / Tourism Department Debit Credit

40220 + 25,000.00

58110 302 PLACE + 25,000.00

25,000.00 25,000.00

Budgeting additional funds to cover legal services for County Commission through year-end. 

Hotel/Motel Tax

Marketing Communications

Increasing revenue and expenditure line to budget for purchase of Placer AI Data Software for more thorough tracking of visitors to 

Jefferson County for planning purposes, reporting, and tourism development. 

Local Health Center - Overtime Pay

Libraries - Overtime Pay

Soil Conservation - Overtime Pay

Budgeting funds to cover County Overtime Pay as of March 2024 Payroll and final Bonus Payment in January 2024.

Transfers In - CDBG Fund 189 

Fund Balance

Budgeting additional funds reimbursed to Jefferson County for portion of CDBG Grant FY 22/23 to purchase ambulances from CDBG 

Fund 189 for partial match portion from General Fund 101.

Fund Balance

Legal Services

Juvenile Court - Overtime Pay

Budgeting funds received from Tennessee Risk Management and Trust for deductible reimbursement on Asset 824, VIN 

2B3KA43H48H2858888 into expenditure line for fiscal year 2023-2024.

Fund Balance

Register of Deeds - Bonus Payments

County Buildings - Overtime Pay

Accounting and Budgeting - Overtime Pay

Accounting and Budgeting -Bonus Payments

Property Assessor's Office - Overtime Pay

Property Assessor's Office - Bonus Payments

Circuit court - Overtime Pay

General Sessions Court - Overtime Pay

Motor Vehicles

Fund Balance

Medical and Dental Services

Budgeting funds using fund balance to cover medical and dental services for inmates through the end of fiscal year 2023-2024 due 

to increased medical costs for inmates. 

Insurance Recovery



Item # 17 Sheriff's Department Debit Credit

39000 - 20,000.00

54110 399 + 20,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00

Item # 18 Tennessee Opioid Abatement / Transfers Out Debit Credit

48991 + 107,441.86

99100 590 TNABT + 107,441.86

107,441.86 107,441.86

Moving Jefferson County Opioid Abatement K-VA-T interest funds received March 2024 to Tennessee Opioid Abatement Fund 121.

Transfers Out - Transfers to Other Funds (Opioid Fund 121)

Other Contracted Services

Budgeting additional funds from fund balance for autopsies from Knox County Regional Forensic Center for the remaining of fiscal 

year 2023-2024. 

Fund Balance

Opioid Settlement Funds - Past Remediation



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1   Debit Credit

34510 ADA Restricted for General Government - ADA - 125,000.00

99100 590 ADA Transfers Out - Capital Fund 171 + 125,000.00

  125,000.00 125,000.00

   

Item # 2   Debit Credit

34510 ADA Restricted for General Government - ADA - 134,550.00

99100 590 ADA Transfers Out - Capital Fund 171 + 134,550.00

  134,550.00 134,550.00

   

Item # 3   Debit Credit

34510 ADA Restricted for General Government - ADA - 93,500.00

99100 590 ADA Transfers Out - Capital Fund 171 + 93,500.00

  93,500.00 93,500.00

   

Item # 4   Debit Credit

34510 ADA Restricted for General Government - ADA - 45,000.00

99100 590 ADA Transfers Out - Capital Fund 171 + 45,000.00

  45,000.00 45,000.00

   

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act to Capital Projects for Jefferson County Justice 

Center for Americans with Disability Act projects Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Transfers Out / Americans with Disabilities Act Reserves / Finance Dept. & Annex

Total

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act to Capital Projects for Jefferson County Finance 

Department and Annex Offices for Americans with Disability Act projects Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Transfers Out / Americans with Disabilities Act Reserves / Justice Center

Total

Transfers Out / Americans with Disabilities Act Reserves / White Pine EMS 

Total

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act to Capital Projects for White Pine EMS 03 

Americans with Disability Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Transfers Out / Americans with Disabilities Act Reserves / Health Department

Total

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act Reserves to Capital Projects for Health 

Department Americans with Disability Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

398,050.00

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

GENERAL FUND 101 - AMENDMENT #21

April 2024

0.00

















































FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Jefferson County Sanitation / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 500,000.00

99100 590 + 500,000.00

500,000.00 500,000.00

Fund Balance

Transfers Out - Debt Service Fund 151

Total

Budgeting funds for Payback of Tax Anticipation Note 2023 Interfund loan approved by Local 

Government Finance for FY 23/24.

0.00

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

SANITATION FUND 116 - AMENDMENT #4

April 2024

500,000.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL +

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL +

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1   Debit Credit

49800 FDCTY + 107,441.86

34530 FDCTY + 107,441.86

  107,441.86 107,441.86

   

TN Opioid Abatement Settlement Funds / Transfers in 

Transfers In ( from General Fund 101)

Restricted for Public Health & Welfare - Tennessee Opioid Abatement Fund 

Total

Moving Jefferson County Opioid Abatement K-VA-T interest funds received February 16, 2024 to TN Opioid Abatement Fund 121 from General Fund 101.

107,441.86

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

TN OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND 121 - AMENDMENT #4

April 2024

0.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Drug Enforcement/Other Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties Debit Credit

42865 + 15,816.00

54150 319 + 15,816.00

15,816.00 15,816.00

Budgeting funds from drug task force forfeitures and seizures to expenditure line for confidential drug 

enforcement payments for fiscal year 2023-2024.

0.00

0.00

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 122 - AMENDMENT #1

April 2024

Drug Task Force Forfeitures and Seizures

Confidential Drug Enforcement Payments

2023-2024

Total



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item# 1 Operation and Maintenance of Equipment / Insurance Recovery Debit Credit

49700 + 3,749.90

63100 336 + 3,749.90       

3,749.90 3,749.90       

Insurance Recovery

Maintenance and Repair

Total

Budgeting funds received from Tennessee Risk Management and Trust due to Claim #VA-25116 for 2002 Chevrolet 2500 

VIN#1GCHC23U12F210207 to maintenance and repair for fiscal year 2023-2024.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

HIGHWAY FUND 131 - AMENDMENT #2

April 2024

0.00

0.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Debt Service / Reserves Debit Credit

34680 - 3,000.00

34680 RZED - 1,172,000.00

82130 601 RZED + 1,175,000.00

1,175,000.00 1,175,000.00

Item # 2 Reserves / Transfers Out Debit Credit

49800 + 500,000.00

34680 + 500,000.00

500,000.00 500,000.00

Transfers in (Sanitation Fund 116)

Committed for Debt Service

Total

Budgeting funds for Payback of Tax Anticipation Note 2023 Interfund loan approved by Local Government Finance for Fiscal Year 

2023/2024.

Committed for Debt Service  - RZED

Total

Budgeting funds using reserves to pay a principle payment towards GOB Series 2010 RZED Bond per Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

675,000.00

Committed for Debt Service

Education - Principal on Bonds

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

Debt Service Fund 151 - Amendment #2
April 2024

0.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - -                       

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - 150,000.00        

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1   Debit Credit

49800 HDADA Transfers In (General Fund 101) - Health Department - ADA + 125,000.00

91190 706 HDADA Other General Government Projects - Building Construction - HDADA + 125,000.00

  125,000.00 125,000.00

 

Item # 2   Debit Credit

49800 WPADA Transfers In (General Fund 101) - White Pine EMS 03 - WPADA + 134,550.00

91190 706 WPADA Other General Government Projects - Building Construction - WPADA + 134,550.00

  134,550.00 134,550.00

 

Item # 3   Debit Credit

34685 JCOB Committed for Capital Projects - JCOB - 150,000.00

91190 706 JCOB Other General Government Projects - Building Construction - JCOB + 35,000.00

91190 711 JCOB Other General Government Projects - Furniture and Fixtures - JCOB + 115,000.00

  150,000.00 150,000.00

 

Item # 4   Debit Credit

49800 FDADA Transfers In (General Fund 101) - FDADA + 93,500.00

91190 706 FDADA Other General Government Projects - Building Construction - FDADA + 93,500.00

  93,500.00 93,500.00

 

Item # 5   Debit Credit

49800 JCADA Transfers In (General Fund 101) - JCADA + 45,000.00

91190 706 JCADA Other General Government Projects - Building Construction - JCADA + 45,000.00

  45,000.00 45,000.00

 

Transfers In / Jefferson County White Pine EMS 03 Americans with Disabilities Project

Total

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act to Capital Projects for White Pine EMS 03 Americans with Disability 

Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act Reserves to Capital Projects for Justice Center Americans with 

Disability Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
2023-2024

CAPITAL FUND 171 - AMENDMENT #3

April 2024

Transfers In / Jefferson County Finance & Annex Americans with Disabilities Projects

Total

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act Reserves to Capital Projects for Finance Department and Annex 

Offices Americans with Disability Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.

Transfers In / Jefferson County Justice Center Americans with Disabilities Projects

Total

Total

Transfers In / Jefferson County Health Department Americans with Disabilities Project

Jefferson County Office Building  / Reserves

Total

Budgeting funds from reserves into expenditure lines to complete the Jefferson County Office Building project for fiscal year 2023-2024. 

Budgeting funds from Restricted for General Government Americans Disabilities Act Reserves to Capital Projects for Health Department Americans with 

Disability Act project for Fiscal year 2023-2024.



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Nursing Home/Public Health & Welfare Projects Debit Credit

34685 - 87,972.68        

91140 601 + 87,972.69         

Total 87,972.68       87,972.69         

Public Health & Welfare - Principal on Debt

Funds remaining from Nursing Home Bond for Construction of White Pine Homes moved to expenditure line to reimburse County for Debt 

Payment on Bond in 2024 in leiu of requesting reimbursement from Jefferson County Nursing Home.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE
2023-2024

NURSING HOME CAPITAL FUND 174 - AMENDMENT #1

April 2024

0.00

87,972.68

Committed for Capital Projects - Nursing Home Project



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Other Capital Projects - CDBG Debit Credit

47180 + 4,278.30

91190 590 + 4,278.30

4,278.30 4,278.30

Community Development

Transfers to Other Funds - General Fund 101

Budgeting additional funds reimbursed to Jefferson County for portion of CDBG Grant FY 22/23 to purchase ambulances 

and reimbursing General Fund 101 for partial match portion.

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 189 - AMENDMENT #2

April 2024

0.00

0.00



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -

Budget Com. App'd:

County Com. App'd:

Item # 1 Jefferson County Sanitation / Insurance Recovery Debit Credit

49700 + 203,400.00

55754 718 + 203,400.00      

203,400.00       203,400.00      

Item # 2 Jefferson County Sanitation Debit Credit

55754 733 - 141,304.00

55754 718 + 141,304.00      

141,304.00       141,304.00      

Item # 3 Jefferson County Sanitation / Fund Balance Debit Credit

39000 - 100,000.00

55754 733 + 53,000.00

55754 718 + 47,000.00         

100,000.00       47,000.00        

Solid Waste Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Total

Moving funds into motor vehicles line to purchase replacement vehicle due to the total loss of Asset #1152 

incurred in fiscal year 2023-2024. 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

2023-2024

LANDFILL FUND 207  -  AMENDMENT #3

April 2024

100,000.00

Total

Budgeting funds received from Tennessee Risk Management and Trust for the total loss payout for claim # 

VA106033, VIN # 1M2AV02C2CM009112, Asset #1152 for fiscal year 2023-2024

Insurance Recovery

Motor Vehicles

0.00

Fund Balance

Motor Vehicles

Total

Moving funds from Sanitation Fund 207 fund balance to replenish funds taken from solid waste equipment and 

motor vehicles expenditure lines used to replace the total loss of Asset #1152 incurred in fiscal year 2023-2024. 

Solid Waste Equipment



2/1/2024 FUND BALANCE TOTAL -$               

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -$               

Item 1 Health Services Debit Credit

48160 241 Revenue - Donations + 950.00
72120 499 241 Other Materials and Supplies + 950.00

950.00                                    950.00            

Item 2 Special Education Debit Credit
43990 201 Revenue + 101,932.91
72210 399 201 Other Contracted Services + 101,932.91

101,932.91                          101,932.91       
Additional earned revenue from Medicaid Reimbursement programs for physical therapy, vision services & other special education 
student needs.

Donation by Knoxville TVA Credit Union to assist Coordinated School Health with County wide Field Day.

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #13

February 1, 2024

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:



2/1/2024 FUND BALANCE TOTAL -$                   

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL + 660,618.00$        

Item 1 Committed for Education Debit Credit

46510 Revenue - TISA Outcomes + 660,618.00
34655 Committed for Education + 660,618.00

660,618.00               660,618.00          

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #14

February, 2024

Approved motion by Board of School Commissioners that TISA Outcomes funding should be reserved for 2024-2025 use.

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -$                    

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -$                    

Item 1 Regular Instruction Program Debit Credit
72130 322 020 Evaluation and Testing - 12,900.00
71100 399 035 Other Contracted Services + 12,900.00

12,900.00    12,900.00               

Item 2 Other Student Support Debit Credit
72130 300 020 Evaluation and Testing - 3,000.00
72210 399 020 Other Contracted Services + 3,000.00

3,000.00       3,000.00                  

Item 3 Regular Instruction Program Debit Credit
43570 SPP Student Protection Plans revenue - 32,664.00
71100 722 250 Student Equipment + 32,664.00

32,664.00    32,664.00               
To purchase student devices and replacement parts with technology insurance fees paid to JCHS by students

Item 4 Operation and Maintenance of Plant Debit Credit
49700 Insurance Recovery - 4,624.60
72610 399 Other Contracted Services + 4,624.60

4,624.60       4,624.60                  

Item 5 Special Education Debit Credit
71200 204 201 State Retirement - 696.00
71200 207 201 Employer Medicare - 39.15
72220 204 201 State Retirement + 696.00                       
72220 207 201 Employer Medicare + 39.15                          

735.15            735.15                      
To align benefits with correct function of employee's salary 

Item 6 Board of Education Debit Credit
72310 399 Other Contracted Services - 2,386.00
72310 513 Worker's Compensation Insurance + 2,386.00

2,386.00       2,386.00                  
Increase in Worker's Compensation insurance

Item 7 Health Services - Coordinated School Health - local funds Debit Credit
48610 241 Revenue - Donations + 3,150.00
72120 499 241 Other Supplies and Materials + 3,150.00

3,150.00       3,150.00                  
Community donations for Special Olympics, Countywide Field Day and 5K for Staff "Spring Into Shape"

Reimbursement for repairs due to lightening strike on White Pine school sign

Funds to customize high school transcripts to reflect middle school credits

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #15

March 2024

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:

To purchase BrainPop Science subscription for school year 2024-2025

3/7/2024



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -$                    

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -$                    

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #15

March 2024

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:

3/7/2024

Item 8 Career and Technical Education Program Debit Credit
72230 336 300 - 1,250.00
72230 399 300 Other contracted services + 1250.00
72230 790 300 - 370.00
72230 524 300 Staff Development + 370.00

1,620.00       1,620.00                  
Funds to pay Educator Prep program fees and to purchase welding materials



FUND BALANCE TOTAL -$                      

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -$                      

Item 1 Regular Instruction Program - Summer Programs K-8 Debit Credit
46590 424 Revenue - Other State Education Funds + 702,350.89
71100 116 424 Teachers + 345,980.00
71100 163 424 Instructional Assistants + 94,350.00
71100 201 424 Social Security + 27,300.46
71100 204 424 State Retirement + 39,629.70
71100 212 424 Employer Medicare + 6,384.79
71100 429 424 Instructional Supplies + 54,983.26
71100 599 424 Other Charges + 15,961.30
72120 131 424 Nurses + 10,200.00
72120 201 424 Social Security + 632.40
72120 204 424 State Retirement + 1,020.00
72120 212 424 Employer Medicare + 147.90
72210 189 424 Other Salaries and Wages + 42,720.00
72210 201 424 Social Security + 2,648.64
72210 204 424 State Retirement + 4,272.00
72210 212 424 Employer Medicare + 619.44
72610 410 424 Custodial Supplies + 15,500.00
73100 165 424 Cafeteria Personnel + 34,000.00
73100 201 424 Social Security + 2,108.00
73100 204 424 State Retirement + 3,400.00
73100 204 424 Employer Medicare 493.00

702,350.89      702,350.89
To recognize state grant revenue for all summer camps and to allocate funds to operate the camps

Item 2 Transportation - Summer Camp Transportation Debit Credit
46590 427 Revenue - Other State Education Funds + 127,387.17
72710 105 427 Supervisor/Director + $2,000.00
72710 146 427 Bus Drivers + $63,750.00
72710 201 427 Social Security + $4,076.50
72710 204 427 State Retirement + $941.40
72710 212 427 Employer Medicare + $953.38
72710 412 427 Diesel Fuel + $10,000.00
72710 425 427 Gas + $10,000.00
72710 450 427 Tires and Tubes + $30,000.00
72710 729 427 Transportation Equipment + $5,665.89

127,387.17      127,387.17
To recognize state grant revenue for Transportation services for all summer programs

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #16

March 2024

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:

3/7/20247



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - 250,000.00$          
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL -$                           

County Commission Approved:

Item 1 Maintenance of Plant Debit Credit
72620 399 PLY Other Contracted Services - Playground Maintenance + 250,000.00
39000 Undesignated Fund Balance - 250,000.00

250,000.00   250,000.00            
Use of Undesignated Fund Balance for upkeep and maintenance services for all elementary and K-8 school playgrounds.

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #17

March 2024

School Board Approved:
Budget Com. Approved:

3/7/2024



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - -$                              
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - -$                              

County Commission Approved:

Item 1 Education Technology Debit Credit
72250 524 Staff Development - 850.00
72250 307 Communications + 300.00
72250 790 Equipment + 550.00

850.00                  850.00                        
Use remaining funds to cover cell phone costs and new devices

Item 2 Other Student Support - Family Resource Center Debit Credit
44570 701 Revenue - Contributions and Gifts + 540.00
72130 499 701 Other Supplies and Materials + 540.00

540.00                  540.00                        
Receipt of donations from United Way designated for Family Resource Center

Item 3 Maintenance of Plant/Operation and Maintenance of Plant Debit Credit
72620 335 Maintenance and Repair Services - Building - 45,000.00
72610 399 Other Contracted Services + 45,000.00

45,000.00          45,000.00                 
Add funds to cover HVAC across the district due to increase in cost of equipment and large number of system
components failing.

Item 4 Health Services - Coordinated School Health Debit Credit
72120 355 241 Travel - 647.00
72120 524 241 Professional Development - 466.00
72120 790 241 Equipment - 500.00
72120 499 241 Other Materials and Supplies + 1,613.00

1,613.00             1,613.00                    
To purchase supplies for PE departments and School Age Childcare classrooms

Item 5 Health Services - Nursing Debit Credit
72120 790 Other Equipment - 1,500.00
72120 499 Other Materials and Supplies + 1,500.00

1,500.00             1,500.00                    
To purchase supplies for nursing clinics at all schools

Item 6 Special Education Debit Credit
48990 201 Other Revenue - Medicaid reimbursement + 21,697.17
72220 399 201 Other Contracted Services + 21,697.17

21,697.17          21,697.17                 
Reimbursements from Medicaid for vision and occupational therapy for students

Item 7 Summer Camp Transportation Debit Credit
72710 450 434 Tires and Tubes - 2,333.00
72710 189 434 Other Salaries and Wages + 2,000.00
72710 201 434 Social Security + 124.00
72710 204 434 State Retirement + 180.00
72710 212 434 Employer Medicare + 29.00

2,333.00             2,333.00                    
To pay for security guard for summer camps

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #18

April  2024

School Board Approved:
Budget Com. Approved:



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - -$                              
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - -$                              

County Commission Approved:

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #18

April  2024

School Board Approved:
Budget Com. Approved:

Item 8 Career and Technical Education - Innovative School Models Grant Debit Credit
71300 499 945 Other Supplies and Materials - 7,000.00
71300 355 945 Travel + 7,000.00
71300 730 945 Vocational Instruction Equipment - 4,500.00
76100 706 945 Building Construction + 4,500.00
71300 429 945 Instructional Supplies - 2,500.00
76100 706 945 Building Construction + 2,500.00
71300 730 945 Vocational Instruction Equipment - 3,500.00
76100 706 945 Building Construction + 3,500.00
71300 198 945 Non-certified Substitute Teachers - 2,154.00
71300 189 945 Other Salaries and Wages + 2,000.00
71300 201 945 Social Security + 124.00
71300 212 945 Employer Medicare + 30.00
72230 599 945 Other Charges - 0.54
71300 599 945 Other Charges + 0.54

19,654.54          19,654.54                 
To add funds for Career and Technical Student Organizations travel, purchase a storage building and to pay 
for greenhouses and summer camp for middle schools.

Item 9 Career and Technical Education Debit Credit
71300 730 300 Vacational Instructional Equipment - 1,497.00
71300 336 300 Maint. and repair - Equipment - 1,000.00
72230 599 300 Other Charges - 893.00
72230 790 300 Other Equipment - 4,341.00
71300 189 300 Other Salaries and Wages + 2,331.00
72230 355 300 Travel + 5,400.00
72230 499 300 Other Supplies and Materials - 1,000.00
71300 422 300 Food + 1,000.00

8,731.00             8,731.00                    
For Career and Technical Student organizations travel to state and national championships
and for middle school after school programs and CTE summer camps

Item 10 Special Education Debit Credit
71200 399 200 Other Contracted Services - 83,923.30
71200 171 200 Other Salaries and Wages + 62,300.00
71200 201 200 Social Security + 3,862.60
71200 204 200 State Retirement + 6,853.00
71200 206 200 Life Insurance + 73.20
71200 207 200 Medical Insurance + 10,582.50
71200 208 200 Dental Insurance + 252.00
72220 599 Other Charges - 25,000.00
72220 312 Contracts with Private Agencies + 5,000.00
72220 725 SPED Equipment + 20,000.00

108,923.30        108,923.30              
For salaries for a part-time Speech and Language Pathologist and a full-time Speech and Language Pathologist.



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - -$                        
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - -$                        

County Commission Approved:

Item 1 Transportation Debit Credit
49700 Revenue - Insurance payment + 31,609.37
72710 338 Maintenance & Repair Services- Vehicles + 31,609.37

31,609.37        31,609.37            
Payments by TN Risk Management for repairs to Bus #94 and Bus #76

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #19

April  2024

School Board Approved:
Budget Com. Approved:



FUND BALANCE TOTAL - 3,782,992.00$            
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - -$                                  

County Commission Approved:

Item 1 Capital Projects Debit Credit
76100 707 RHV Building Improvements - RSS HVAC replacement + 3,782,992.00
39000 Undesignated Fund Balance - 3,782,992.00

3,782,992.00     3,782,992.00               
Use of Undesignated Fund Balance to replace HVAC system at Rush Strong School.

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 141 - General Purpose Funds

Budget Amendment #20

April 2024

School Board Approved: 4/4/2024
Budget Com. Approved:



School Board Approved: 2/1/2024
Budget Com. Approved:
County Commission Approved:  

Item 1 Title I Debit Credit
102 71100 429 Instructional Supplies + 482.90            
102 72210 524 Staff Development - 482.90            

482.90          482.90          

TES remaining staff development not needed; transferring to supplies

Item 2 Fiscal Pre-Monitoring Debit Credit
934 47307 Cares Grant #7 - 15,295.00        
934 72510 399 Other Contracted Services - 15,295.00        

15,295.00     15,295.00     

Release of unused grant funds

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS
Fund 142 - Federal Funds
Budget Amendment #7

February 2024



School Board Approved: 3/7/2024
Budget Com. Approved:
County Commission Approved:  

Item 1 Math Implementation Support Grant Debit Credit
938 47307 CARES Grant #7 + 71,250.00        
938 72210 399 Other Contracted Services + 71,250.00        

71,250.00     71,250.00     

Recognizing funds from Math Support Grant

Item 2 ARP Homeless 2.0 Debit Credit
710 72710 146 Transportation Bus Driver + 1,350.00         
710 72710 201 Bus Driver SS + 44.00              
710 72710 212 Bus Driver Employer Medicare + 20.00              
710 72710 204 Bus Driver Retirement + 77.00              
710 72210 206 Life Insurance + 1.00                
710 72210 207 Medical Insurance + 550.00            
710 72210 208 Dental Insurance + 1.00                
710 72210 189 Other Salaries & Wages - 3,342.00         
710 72130 499 Other Supplies and Materials + 2,384.00         
710 72120 399 Other Contracted Services - 500.00            
710 72210 399 Other Contracted Services - 585.00            

4,427.00       4,427.00       
Amendment covers cost of bus driver plus benefits through end of March, amending salary for
coverage until end of year and using left over funds to purchase supplies

Item 3 Carl Perkins Debit Credit
801 71300 499 Other Supplies and Materials - 90.00              
801 71300 429 Instructional Supplies + 90.00              

90.00             90.00             

Moved to spend down grant on Instuctional Supplies

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS
Fund 142 - Federal Funds
Budget Amendment #8

March 2024



School Board Approved: 4/4/2024
Budget Com. Approved:
County Commission Approved:  

Item 1 Consolidated Title III - English Second Language grant Debit Credit
302 72130 499 Other Supplies And Materials + 814.50            
302 99100 504 Indirect Cost - 814.50            

814.50          814.50          

Required reduction due to maximum indirect cost allowance

Item 2 TN All Corp grant Debit Credit
930 71100 189 Other Salaries & Wages + 1,580.00         
930 71100 429 Instructional Supplies & Materials - 1,580.00         

1,580.00       1,580.00       

Unused supplies and material funds

Item 3 ESSER 3.0 grant Debit Credit
937 71100 163 Aids - 56,293.95        
937 71100 186 Longevity Pay - 867.69            
937 71100 188 Bonus Payments + 867.69            
937 71100 201 Social Security - 3,956.84         
937 71100 204 State Retirement - 15,510.05        
937 71100 206 Life Insurance + 856.71            
937 71100 207 Medical Insurance + 50,352.97        
937 71100 208 Dental Insurance + 1,020.96         
937 71100 212 Employer Medicare - 1,107.67         
937 72130 189 Other Salaries & Wages + 4,850.08         
937 72130 201 Social Security + 177.69            
937 72130 204 State Retirement - 5,226.59         
937 72130 206 Life Insurance + 149.50            
931 72210 189 Other Salaries & Wages + 64,432.50        
937 72210 201 Social Security + 3,984.71         
937 72210 204 State Retirement + 5,798.98         
937 72210 206 Life Insurance + 83.88              
937 72210 207 Medical Insurance + 7,372.20         
937 72210 212 Employer Medicare + 931.92            
937 99100 504 Indirect Cost - 57,917.00        

140,879.79   140,879.79   
FY23 Salary and Employer Cost updates & Allocations of
Carryover funds

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS
Fund 142 - Federal Funds
Budget Amendment #9

April 2024



FUND BALANCE TOTAL + -$                       
RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - -$                       

Item 1 Food Service Debit Credit
47114 USDA - Federal Through State revenue + 179,162.69    
73100 422 Food + 172,162.69          

179,162.69  172,162.69        
USDA Grant for assistance for schools for allowable dairy foods, fruits and vegatables, grains, meats and legumes.

County Commission Approved:

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS
Fund 143 - Student Nutrition Funds

Budget Amendment #3
February 1, 2024

School Board Approved: 2/1/2024
Budget Com. Approved:



FUND BALANCE TOTAL + -$                  

RESERVE BALANCE TOTAL - 281,959.62$      

Item 1 Education Capital Projects Debit Credit

34685 PAV Committed for Capital Projects - Paving - 281,959.62

91300 707 PAV Education Capital Projects - Paving + 281,959.62

281,959.62     281,959.62       

Move funds to expenditure line, prepare to issue a purchase order

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOLS

Fund 177 - Education Capital Projects Fund

Budget Amendment #5

April 2024  

School Board Approved:

Budget Com. Approved:

County Commission Approved:



RESOLUTION 2024-09 1 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 2024-09 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE EMPLOYEES OF A PARTICIPATING POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (“TCRS”) TO ESTABLISH RETIREMENT CREDIT 
PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-34-605 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 8-34-605 allows an active TCRS 
member who is employed by a political subdivision that participates in TCRS to establish 
retirement credit in TCRS for the time in which the member performed active duty military 
service in the armed forces of the United States during a period of armed conflict as defined 
below, provided the following conditions are met: 

(1) The service credit will be calculated on the basis of one day of creditable service for each day of
military service rendered;

(2) The member must make a lump sum payment of employee contributions for the service claimed
based on a contribution rate of nine percent, which rate shall be applied to the member's earnable
compensation at the time of the claim;

(3) The member was honorably discharged from such military service;
(4) The member cannot establish the military service in any other retirement system;
(5) The military service credit cannot be used in determining any rights under TCRS prior to the

member becoming vested;
(6) In no case shall the total amount of retirement credit granted for military service under Tennessee

Code Annotated, Section 8-34-605(b) – (e) exceed four (4) years;
(7) The chief governing body of the political subdivision passes a resolution authorizing the service

credit and pays the estimated increased pension liability in a lump sum, through an increase in the
political subdivision’s contribution rate for the next fiscal year (July 1 – June 30) following the
adoption of the resolution, or through amortizing the liability over a period of time not to exceed ten
(10) years from the date of the adoption of the resolution;

(8) The political subdivision has a funded status in the retirement system of seventy percent (70%) or
more after implementation of the benefit improvement; and

(9) If the political subdivision selects funding option 1 or 2 below, the member shall not be entitled to
establish the service credit until the estimated increased pension liability has been completely funded
by the political subdivision. If the political subdivision selects funding option 3 below, the member
shall be entitled to establish the service credit at the commencement of the amortization period.



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-09 
 2 

 

WHEREAS, for purposes of this resolution, a period of armed conflict means: 
 
 

Multinational Force in Lebanon 08/21/82 – 
02/26/84 

Invasion of Grenada/Operation Urgent 
Fury 

10/25/83 – 
12/15/83  

Invasion of Panama/Operation Just 
Cause 

12/20/89 – 
01/31/90 

Persian Gulf War 08/02/90 – 
04/06/91 

Operation Enduring Freedom 10/07/01 – 
12/28/14 

Operation Iraqi Freedom 03/19/03 – 
08/31/10 

 
 

WHEREAS, the estimated increased pension liability created by this resolution is that Jefferson  
County would owe $80,867.00   in a lump sum to TCRS, or if the liability is paid through an increase  
in the Political Subdivision’s employer contribution rate for the next fiscal year (July 1 – June 30),  
the Political Subdivision’s employer contribution rate would increase by 0.51%, for a total revised 
employer contribution rate of 10.51 % for the next July 1 – June 30, or if the liability is paid through  
amortizing the liability, the Political Subdivision would owe $918.00__ each month during the amortization 
period. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that having reviewed the costs of granting  
the service credit, the County Commission of the Political Subdivision hereby authorizes the  
establishment of the service credit in accordance with this resolution and Tennessee Code Annotated,  
Section 8-34-605. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Governing Body hereby elects to fund the estimated 
increased pension liability created by this resolution by (CHECK BOX 1, 2 or 32): 

(1) [X] Paying the amount in a lump sum; or 
(2) [   ] Paying the amount through an increase in the Political Subdivision’s employer 

contribution rate for the next July 1 –      June 30. 
(3) [   ]   Amortizing the amount over a 10-year period from the date of the adoption of 

this resolution. 
 

 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-09 
 3 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 



Jefferson County Government 
Monitoring: 

Review: Annually 
Debt Management Policy 

Policy 
# 4.3 

Issued 
Date: 

1/17/12 
Reviewed: 

4/2024 

A. INTRODUCTION

This debt management policy is tailored to the needs of Jefferson County 
and the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee 
(hereinafter referred to as the County Legislative Body).  It provides 
written guidance about the debt issued by Jefferson County, Tennessee, 
the issuance process, and the management of the debt portfolio.    

B. PURPOSE

1. The purpose of this debt management policy is to improve the quality of
management and legislative decisions, to identify and disclose parameters
relating to the structure and issuance of debt, identify policy goals, and
provide a foundation for long-term financial planning, all of which are in the
public interest of the County.  Adherence to a debt management policy
signals to rating agencies, investors, and capital markets that Jefferson
County is well managed and prepared to meet its obligations in a timely
manner.

2. Debt levels and their related annual costs are important long-term
obligations that must be managed within available resources.  An effective
debt management policy provides guidelines for a government to manage
its debt program in line with those resources while promoting
understanding and transparency for citizens, taxpayers, businesses,
investors, and other interested parties.

3. This Debt Management Policy (hereinafter referred to as this “Policy”) is
intended to comply with the debt management requirements promulgated
by the Tennessee State Funding Board in December 2010.  The County
may, from time-to-time, review this Policy and make revisions and
updates, if warranted.



1 

C. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The County Legislative Body is establishing a debt management policy as 
a tool to ensure that financial resources are adequate to meet the 
County's long-term capital needs.  In addition, this Policy helps to ensure 
that financings undertaken by the County satisfy certain clear, objective 
standards, designed to protect the County’s financial resources in order to 
meet its long-term capital needs. 

1. Goals of this Policy are to:

a. Provide management with appropriate guidelines and direction to
assist in making sound debt management decisions;

b. Further demonstrate strong financial management practices for
county citizens, outside investors, and credit agencies; and

c. Identify and comply with all law related to debt issuance and
management.

2. Objectives of this Policy are to:
a. Enhance the decision process through transparency;
b. Identify and define the types of financing available for the

County;
c. Evaluate those financing options by considering all risk;
d. Identify all expenditures related to the financing option including,

but not limited to, principal, interest, and annual costs along with
issue specific transaction costs;

e. Address the hiring of outside professionals and address any
potential conflict of interest issues; and

f. Protect and enhance the County’s credit rating.

D. TRANSPARENCY 

Jefferson County shall comply with legal requirements for notice and for 
public meetings related to debt issuance.  In the interest of transparency, all 
costs (including interest, issuance, continuing, and one-time) shall be 
disclosed to the citizens/members, governing body, and other stakeholders in 
a timely manner.  Information regarding debt issuance shall be posted on the 
Jefferson County website and with printed/online news outlets. 



2 

To ensure transparency of the decision process, annual budgets, annual debt 
reports, and issuance specific debt reports (those required by Tennessee 
Code Annotated) and all Federal and State rules and regulations shall be 
prepared and available for public review.  Additionally, in the interest of 
transparency, all costs (including interest, issuance, continuing, and one-time) 
shall be disclosed to the County Legislative Body, citizens, and other 
stakeholders in a timely manner.   

Jefferson County will file its Audited Financial Statements and any continuing 
disclosure document prepared by the County or its Dissemination Agent.  To 
promote transparency and understanding these documents should be 
furnished to members of the County Legislative Body and made available 
electronically or by usual and customary means to its citizens, taxpayers, rate 
payers, businesses, investors, and other interested parties by posting such 
information online or in other prominent places. 

It is the responsibility of the County Finance Director to see that all required 
reports are completed and available. 

1. Annual Debt Budgets 

The Annual Debt Budgets shall be adopted by the County Legislative Body 
and comply with the legal notice and filing requirements as promulgated by 
the Financial Management System of 1981 as stated in Tennessee Code 
Annotated.  

2. Annual Debt Reports 

The County shall service all principal and interest payments through the debt 
service fund. 

An Annual Debt Report shall be submitted by the County Finance Director to 
the County Legislative Body by June of each year.  Generally, the report will 
be presented in conjunction with the Annual Debt Budgets.  

The Annual Debt Report shall consist of, but not be limited to, the following: 

a. Schedule of Outstanding Debt and Schedule of Budgeted Debt
Payments, and any additional schedules, as required by the
Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury;

b. Net Debt Calculation (total principal outstanding less most recent year
respective debt fund balance);



3 

c. Documentation of the most recent debt rating(s) as available;

d. Percentage of fixed versus variable rate debt;

e. Multi-year budgets that include the current debt costs of principal,
interest, and annual cost;

f. Debt Per Capita Ratio (total debt/population) and Net Debt Per Capita
Ratio (net debt/population) – County compared to benchmark;

g. Debt to Assessed Property Value (total debt/assessed property value)
and Net Debt to Assessed Property Value (net debt/assessed
property value) – County compared to benchmark;

h. Debt as a Percentage of Personal Income (total personal income/debt
per capita) Net Debt as a Percentage of Personal Income (total
personal income/net debt per capita) – County compared to
benchmark; and

i. Estimated Debt Service Fund Balance.

3. Issuance Specific Debt Reports 

All new debt issues and renewals shall include all required forms as 
promulgated by Tennessee Code Annotated Form CT-0253 shall be 
provided to the County Legislative Body prior to or in conjunction to a debt 
issue.  All documents shall be provided to the County Legislative Body 
and available for public inspection. 

E. DEBT TYPES 

All debt financing shall be approved by the County Legislative Body and the 
Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury within the legal guidelines of T.C.A, 
Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), and the regulations promulgated by the 
Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury.  Additionally, all debt financing will 
be reviewed to ensure compliance with Tennessee Code Annotated by the 
County Attorney or legal bond counsel. 

1. Long-Term Loans and Bonds 

The County may issue long-term loans and bonds to finance capital 
improvements and refinance outstanding debt, and all costs associated with 
capital improvements and refinancing.  As indicated within this Policy, the 
costs associated with the issuance of this debt will be disclosed to ensure 
compliance with this Policy and to address potential conflicts of interest.  The 



4 

term of the debt will not exceed the expected economic life of the project(s).  
Additionally, long-term debt will not be issued to finance current operations.  
The following summarizes but does not limit the types of long-term debt that 
may be issued: 

a. Fixed Rate Bonds – Bonds that have an interest rate that remains
constant throughout the life of the bond; and

b. Variable Rate Bonds – Bonds that bear a variable interest rate
throughout the life of the bond.  Jefferson County may only use
variable rate bonds for no more than 25% of total outstanding debt.

The following circumstances may result in the consideration of issuing 
variable rate debt: 

▪ Asset-Liability Matching;

▪ Construction Period Funding;

▪ High Fixed Interest Rates.  Interest rates are above historic
averages;

▪ Diversification of Debt Portfolio; and

▪ Adequate Safeguard Against Risk.  Financing structure and
budgetary safeguards are in place to prevent adverse impacts from
interest rate shifts such structures could include, but are not limited
to, interest rate caps, and short-term cash investments in the
County’s General Fund.

2. Short-Term Debt 

Short-term borrowing may be utilized for the following:  Financing capital 
assets with debt not exceeding the economic life of the assets; interim 
financing for the temporary funding of operational cash flow deficits or 
anticipated revenues subject to the following policies:  

a. Bond Anticipation Notes (“BANs”) – BANs may be issued instead
of capitalizing interest to reduce the debt service during the
construction period of a project or facility.  BANs shall not mature
more than two (2) years from the date of issuance.  BANs can be
rolled in accordance with Federal and State laws.  BANs shall



5 

mature within six (6) months after substantial completion of the 
financed facility. 

b. Capital Outlay Notes (“CONs”) – CONs are short-term notes (less
than twelve 12) year maturities) secured by the pledge of the
County’s full faith and credit.

c. Revenue Anticipation Notes (“RANs”) & Tax Anticipation Notes
(“TANs”) –    RANs and TANs are to be utilized for cash flow
purposes until annual revenues are received for a particular fund.
All RANs and TANs will be paid in the same fiscal year in which
they are issued.

d. Grant Anticipation Notes (“GANs”) – GANs may be issued when
the County wishes to finance projects in anticipation of a grant from
a state or federal agency.  The principal amount of the GANs shall
not exceed the amount of the anticipated grant.

The County may undertake interfund borrowings, in which amounts on 
deposit in one County fund are lent to another fund.  The County Legislative 
Body shall first approve all such inter-fund borrowing. Subsequently, approval 
of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury shall be obtained prior to 
transfer/use of funds. All inter-fund borrowings shall only be issued in 
compliance with State regulations and limitations.  

Short-term debt may be used when it provides an interest rate advantage or 
as interim financing until market conditions are more favorable to issue 
longer-term debt in a fixed or variable rate mode.  The County will determine 
and utilize the most advantageous method for short-term borrowing.  The 
County may issue short-term debt when there is a defined repayment source 
or amortization of principal.  

3. Capital Leases 

The County may use capital leases to finance projects assuming that such an 
instrument is more economically feasible than purchasing the asset.  Capital 
leases may be considered for long-term or short-term borrowing, but the term 
of the lease shall not exceed the economic life of the asset. 

4.   Refinancing Outstanding Debt 

The County Finance Director, in conjunction with Financial Professionals, if 
any, periodically shall have the responsibility to analyze outstanding Debt for 
refunding opportunities.  Any proposed refinancing will be submitted to the 
County Legislative Body for approval. 



6 

F. RISK ASSESSMENT 

The County Finance Director shall evaluate each transaction to assess the 
types and amounts of risk associated with each transaction, considering all 
available means to mitigate those risks.  The County Finance Director shall 
evaluate all proposed transactions for consistency with the objectives and 
constraints defined in this Policy, Tennessee Code Annotated, and other 
regulations.  The following risks shall be assessed before issuing debt: 

1. Change in Public/Private Use – The change in the public/private use of a
project that is funded by tax-exempt funds could potentially cause a bond
issue to become taxable.

2. Default Risk – The risk that debt service payments cannot be made by the
due date. 

3. Liquidity Risk – The risk of having to pay a higher rate to the liquidity
provider in the event of a failed remarketing.

4. Interest Rate Risk – The risk that interest rates will rise, on a sustained
basis, above levels that would have been set if the issue had been fixed.

5. Rollover Risk – The risk of the inability to obtain a suitable liquidity facility
at an acceptable price to replace a facility upon termination or expiration of
a contract period.

6. Credit Risk – The risk that an issuer of debt securities or a borrower may
default on his obligations by failing to repay principal and interest in a
timely manner.

7. Fee Risk – The risk that ongoing fees may increase beyond what is initially
expected.

G. DEBT COSTS 

In order to assist the County Legislative Body in making better debt management 
decisions and to reflect the cost of debt, the following shall be completed: 

1. As previously identified in this Policy, the Annual Debt Report will be
provided to the County Legislative Body;

2. Prior to the issuance of debt, the County Finance Director shall prepare a
multi-year budget to reflect the current debt cost of principal, interest, and
estimated annual costs over the life of the existing debt.  This will allow the
County Legislative Body to determine if extra capacity exists or that
additional funding will be needed;



7 

3. Update ratios with the issuance of new debt as noted in the Annual Debt
Report.

H. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Jefferson County shall require all professionals engaged in the process of 
issuing debt to clearly disclose all compensation and consideration received 
related to services provided in the debt issuance process by both Jefferson 
County and the lender or conduit issuer, if any.  This includes “soft” costs or 
compensations in lieu of direct payments. 

1. Counsel: Jefferson County shall enter into an engagement letter agreement with
each lawyer or law firm representing Jefferson County in a debt transaction.
(No engagement letter is required for any lawyer or law firm, which is under a
general appointment or contract to serve as counsel to Jefferson County.
Jefferson County does not need an engagement letter with counsel not
representing Jefferson County, such as underwriters' counsel.)

2. Financial Advisor: 
a. If Jefferson County chooses to hire Financial Advisors, Jefferson County

shall enter into a written agreement with each person or firm serving as
Financial Advisor for debt management and transactions.

b. Whether in a competitive or negotiated sale, the Financial Advisor shall not
be permitted to bid on, privately place or underwrite an issue for which they
are or have been providing advisory services for the issuance.

3. Underwriter: If there is an Underwriter, Jefferson County shall require the
Underwriter to clearly identify itself in writing (e.g., in a response to a request
for proposals or in promotional materials provided to an issuer) as an
Underwriter and not as a Financial Advisor from the earliest stages of its
relationship with Jefferson County with respect to that issue. The Underwriter
must clarify its primary role as a purchaser of securities in an arm's-length
commercial transaction and that it has financial and other interests that
differ from those of Jefferson County. The Underwriter in a publicly offered,
negotiated sale shall be required to provide pricing information both as to interest
rates and to takedown per maturity to the governing body (or its designated
official) in advance of the pricing of the debt.

4. Considerations for Hiring of Professionals for Debt Issuance Process: 
In selecting financial professionals, consideration should be given with respect 
to: 

a. Relevant experience with municipal government issuers and the public
sector;



8 

b. Indication that the firm has a broadly based background and is therefore
capable of balancing the County's overall needs for continuity and innovation
in capital planning and debt financing;

c. Experienced and demonstrated success as indicated by the firm's
experience;

d. Professional reputation; and

e. Professional qualifications and experience of principal employees.

5. Additional Considerations for Hiring of Professionals for Debt Issuance 
Process: 

a. Jefferson County shall use a competitive process to hire a Financial
Advisor.  Contract, evaluation, and award shall be based upon paragraph
VIII D 1 through 5, above.

b. The County Legislative Body shall approve all contracts for financial
services longer than one (1) year.

c. Issuers shall include a provision prohibiting any firm from engaging in
activities on behalf of the issuer that produce a direct or indirect financial
gain for the Financial Advisor, other than the agreed upon compensation,
without the County Legislative Body’s approval.

I.  CONFLICTS 

1. Professionals involved in a debt transaction hired or compensated by Jefferson
County shall be required to disclose to Jefferson County existing client and
business relationships between and among the professionals to a transaction
(including but not limited to financial advisor, swap advisor, bond counsel, swap
counsel, trustee, paying agent, underwriter, counterparty, and remarketing
agent), as well as conduit issuers, sponsoring organizations, and program
administrators.  This disclosure shall include that information reasonably
sufficient to allow Jefferson County to appreciate the significance of the
relationships.

2. Professionals who become involved in the debt transaction as a result of a bid
submitted in a widely and publicly advertised competitive sale conducted using
an industry standard, electronic bidding platform are not subject to this
disclosure.  No disclosure is required that would violate any rule or regulation of
professional conduct.

J.  CREDIT QUALITY AND CREDIT ENHANCEMENT 



9 

The County's debt management activities will be conducted in order to maintain or 
receive the highest possible credit ratings.  The County Finance Director, in conjunction 
with any Financial Professionals that the County may choose to engage, will be 
responsible for maintaining relationships and communicating with one or more rating 
agencies. 

The County Finance Director will consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-
by-case basis, evaluating the economic benefit versus cost for each case.  Only when 
clearly demonstrable savings can be shown shall an enhancement be considered.  The 
County Finance Director will consider each of the following enhancements as 
alternatives by evaluating the cost and benefit of such enhancements: 

1. Insurance – The County may purchase bond insurance when such purchase is
deemed prudent and advantageous.  The predominant determination shall be
based on such insurance being less costly than the present value of the
difference in the interest on insured bonds versus uninsured bonds.

2. Letters of Credit – The County may enter into a letter-of-credit (“LOC”)
agreement when such an agreement is deemed prudent and advantageous.  The
County Finance Director or its Financial Professionals, if any, will prepare and
distribute a request for qualifications to qualified banks or other qualified financial
institutions pursuant to terms and conditions that are acceptable to the County
Legislative Body.

K.  MISCELLANEOUS 

1. The debt management policy guidelines outlined herein are only intended to
provide general direction regarding the future use and execution of debt.  A
violation of the County Legislative Body’s debt policy shall in no way be
interpreted as a violation of law and shall have no bearing on the validity of debt
issued by the County Legislative Body.  The County Legislative Body maintains
the right to modify this Policy (except to the extent these guidelines are
mandated by applicable state law or regulation) and may make exceptions to any
of its guidelines at any time to the extent that the execution of such debt achieves
the goals of the County Legislative Body.  Any exceptions to these policies shall
be expressly acknowledged in the resolution authorizing the pertinent debt issue.
In the event of a conflict between the terms of a debt resolution and this Policy,
the terms of the debt resolution shall control.

2. This Policy will be periodically reviewed by the County Finance Committee and
the County Finance Director.  The County Finance Director may at any time
present recommendations for any amendments, deletions, additions,
improvements, or clarifications.  Any changes require the approval of the Finance
Committee before approval by the County Legislative Body.





 

 

 

 
 
 
News & Highlights 
 

§ Director Gibson is pleased to introduce Jefferson Alliance new Program Coordinator 
Jayde Vittetoe. Jayde will work out of the Jefferson City office located in Jefferson City 
Hall. Jayde is a lifelong Jefferson County resident and resides in Dandridge. Jayde has 
a bachelor's degree in science from East Tennessee University. Jayde looks forward to 
helping Jefferson County grow through industry and retail recruitment and work force 
development, Welcome Jayde!  
 
 

Meetings, Trainings and Forums  
 

§ Director Gibson will be graduating from Jefferson County’s 25th Adult Leadership class 
on May 17, 2024.  

§ Director Gibson is currently enrolled and attending Regional Leadership with a 
November 2024 graduation. 

I. Industrial & Business Recruitment  

§ 9 RFI’s were received in the third 
quarter.  Staff was able to respond 
to 4 of the requests.  

§ As of July 2023, there have been a 
total of 41 RFI’s received. There are 
currently 8 active projects. 

§ Of the non-responses, 92% of 
companies were seeking a site with 
an existing building of 100,000 SF 
or greater, while 71% required a 
minimum of 30 acres Green Field or 
Brown Field. 

 
II. Existing Industry 
 

§ Steel Warehouse- Steel Warehouse is operating in the Jefferson City Industrial Park in 
the former FIT building. Currently they have just a few employees setting up two steel 
laser cutting machines. They will be adding employees as they progress with their 
production set up. Steel Warehouse is the industry’s steel service center of choice 

Economic Development Quarterly Report 
January, February, March 2024 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Positive
Responses

Non-Responses Active Site Visits

RFI Data Overview
July - March 2024



 

providing processing services for production-ready steel, lowering total cost to metal 
stampers, fabricators and manufactures through productivity, yield, product design, and 
flexible terms. Steel Warehouse will be servicing JLG here in Jefferson City as well as 
multiple other companies with steel needs.  
 

§ JLG Industries Incorporated (Formally Oshkosh)- JLGs expansion addition for paint 
facility is on schedule, as well as the changing over to Skytrax manufacturing.   

 
 
III. Workforce Development 
 
Carson Newman A Christian University Moser Center for Entrepreneurial Leadership:   

§ Carson Newman University announced on April 2nd, 2024, the MBA program in 
Entrepreneurial Leadership to start this fall.   

§ The center is named after Jefferson City’s own Jay Moser, Jay is a visionary leader who 
has a clear and aspiring vision for the future.  

§ One of the programs' many objectives is to produce local Entrepreneur’s for Jefferson 
County and the East Tennessee Region.  

§ The MBA in Entrepreneurial Leadership at Carson-Newman is a unique offering in the 
MBA marketplace. It is designed to showcase four areas of distinction in Academic 
Rigor, Customization, Practicality, and Biblical Worldview. When these four elements 
are combined to shape the curriculum, the result is better-equipped and better-
prepared business leaders entering the marketplace.  

§ Director Gibson is honored to serve on the first advisory council for the Moser Center.   
 
 
IV. Retail & Go Local 
 

§ Jefferson Alliance will no longer be using Retail Strategies for retail recruitment. This 
has been proven very ineffective and a poor use of our budget dollars. Jefferson 
Alliance will be working internally to manage retail recruitment. Staff is currently 
developing campaign goals and initiatives with accommodating materials for a 
seamless transition from Retail Strategies.  
 

§ Go Local: Our Jefferson Alliance-Go Local campaign is up and running, you will see it 
promoted throughout the county. Currently display advertisements are being featured 
on the digital signs at First Peoples Bank and Farris Motor Company in Jefferson City.  

















 

D a n d r i d g e  F i r e  D e p a r t m e n t  
 

Page 1 

Dandridge Fire Department 
  P.O. Box 249 
  Dandridge, TN 37725 
 

 
Office of Fire Chief 

 
 
 
To: The Honorable Mark Potts, Mayor of Jefferson County, TN 
From: Andrew Riley, Fire Chief 
Re:  3rd Quarter Report of FY 2024 
Date: April 1st, 2024 

 
 
Mr. Mark Potts, 
 
The following is the third (3rd) quarter report, dated January 1st, 2024, through March 
31st, 2024, from the Dandridge Fire Department. 
 
January 2024   February 2024  March 2024 
 
City Calls: 14 (17.5%) City Calls: 11 (19.0%) City Calls: 12 (22.2%) 
County Calls: 66 (82.5%) County Calls: 47 (81.0%) County Calls: 42 (77.8%) 
Total Calls: 80   Total Calls: 58   Total Calls: 54 
Miles driven: 2,859  Miles driven: 1,929  Miles driven: 3,416 
Man hours: 799.5  Man hours: 697  Man Hours: 538 
 
 
Total Calls for 3rd Quarter: 192 (City- 37 or 19.3% and County- 155 or 80.7%) 
Total Miles driven for 3rd Quarter:  8,204 miles 
Total Man hours for 3rd Quarter:  2,034.5 hours 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Andrew Riley 
Fire Chief 
Dandridge Fire Department 
 



Jefferson County Rescue Squad
Serving Jefferson County Since 1963

Quarterly Report
Time Covered: January, February, March, 2024

Large Expenditures:

Expense Amount

Notes:

JCRS added 2 members in this quarter. We also began receiving PPE that was acquired
from the TARS state grant funding from last fiscal year. JCRS also received notification of
2024 TARS grant funding of $27,000 that will replace one set of heavy lift airbags and aging
dive equipment.

915 Industrial Park Rd / P.O. Box 261 Dandridge, TN 37725

Call Type Jan Feb Mar

MVC 18 12 13

EMS Assist 35 28 25

Search 2 1 0

Water Rescue 1 0 1

Stand By 4 5 4

Scene Support 2 1 1

Out of County MA 0 0 0

Total Calls for Service 62 47 44



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1st Quarter 2024 
 

Incidents: 
January 37 

February 30 
March 31 
TOTAL 98 

 
Expenses:                                                                                   Revenue: 

January $6,065.99 January  $5,663.31 
February $4,140.54 February  $14,583.64  

March  $24,672.77 March $38,343.18  
TOTAL  $34,879.30 TOTAL $58, 590.13  

 
 



From: Chief Marty Richard <chief1601pcfd@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 11:13 AM
To: LeAnn Sutton <Lsutton@jeffersoncountytn.gov>
Subject: Re: PCFD

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Jefferson County Government. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Quarterly Report 

4 calls Jan, 7 calls and feb, 10 march calls run since first of the year. 21 calls in total(14
EMS & 7 Fire related).  Call logs listed below.  

6 Training Meetings
3 Officers Meetings
1 board meeting
1 Public meeting( Road superintendent) 



(865) 674-6568 / FAX (865) 674-6536 / PO Box 66 White Pine, TN 37890

Fire Chief Derrick Layman / fire@whitepinetn.gov 

Quarterly Report 
January 1- March 31, 2024 

Fire / Rescue / Public Assist Related Calls:  124 

83 

207 

207 

5 
16 

ALL RECORDS ARE ACCURATE AND ACCOUNATABLE AS OF April 2, 2024.

EMS / First Response Related Calls: 

Total Calls for Service: 

2024 Calls for Service:  

Aid Received from other departments: 
Aid Given to other departments:   

Monthly Meetings 3 
Training Hours Submitted 300 
Total Time Spent on Calls 98.42 Hours 
Average Number of Attendance per call 3 Firefighters 
Smoke Alarms Installed 26 
Fire Fatalities or Injuries 0 



White Pine Fire Department
Incident Type Report by Date
1/1/2024 - 3/31/2024

Incident Type Total Incidents

100 Fire, other 1

111 Building fire 7

113 Cooking fire, confined to container 1

130 Mobile property (vehicle) fire, other 1

131 Passenger vehicle fire 1

138 Off-road vehicle or heavy equipment fire 1

142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 2

240 Explosion (no fire), other 1

300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 2

311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 4

320 Emergency Medical Service, other 113

321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 2

322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 11

324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 1

341 Search for person on land 1

412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 3

445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1

462 Aircraft standby 1

510 Person in distress, other 3

550 Public service assistance, other 4

553 Public service 6

554 Assist invalid 1

611 Dispatched & canceled en route 23

651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 8

700 False alarm or false call, other 2

745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 6

Total Number of Incidents: 207

Total Number of Incident Types: 26

Page 1 Report generated by Fire Station Software, LLC www.firestationsoftware.com 4/2/2024



Library Board Nominations  

 

Kyndall Wright   Jefferson County (1st T)  July 2024 July 2027 

Ralph Tucker   Jefferson County (1st T)  July 2024 July 2027 

Jennifer Bruckert Winkler White Pine (1st T)  July 2024 July 2027 

Kay E. Rutherford  Dandridge (1st T)  July 2024 July 2027 















  

C
ur

re
nt

 
B

al
an

ce
*

M
at

er
ia

l T
yp

e
B

eg
in

ni
ng

Ad
de

d 
D

el
et

ed
 

B
al

an
ce

 
B

eg
in

ni
ng

Ad
de

d
D

el
et

ed
 

B
al

an
ce

E-
bo

ok
s

0
Pr

in
t M

at
er

ia
ls

13
,7

86
40

7
87

7
13

,3
16

3,
79

8
84

11
2

3,
77

0
Lo

ca
lly

Au
di

o 
D

ow
nl

oa
da

bl
e

0
Au

di
o 

M
at

er
ia

ls
18

1
0

0
18

1
54

4
0

0
54

4
O

w
ne

d
Vi

de
o 

D
ow

nl
oa

da
bl

e
0

Vi
de

o 
M

at
er

ia
ls

1,
25

2
12

7
0

1,
37

9
55

5
0

0
55

5
TO

TA
L

0
O

th
er

 M
at

er
ia

ls
1,

51
8

14
9

39
7

1,
27

0
0

0
0

0

TO
TA

L
16

,7
37

68
3

1,
27

4
16

,1
46

TO
TA

L
4,

89
7 

84
 

11
2

4,
86

9
21

,0
15

9,
97

4
0

13
,8

36

5,
67

9
0

5,
79

2

15
,6

53
0 

19
,6

28
15

,6
53

**
 h

ttp
://

ts
la

.li
bg

ui
de

s.
co

m
/d

at
ac

ol
le

ct
io

n

85
5,

82
2

 
# 

of
 P

ro
gr

am
s

At
te

nd
an

ce
O

ut
si

de
 th

e 
Li

br
ar

y
# 

of
 P

ro
gr

am
s

At
te

nd
an

ce
0

1,
60

2
9

14
1

Ad
ul

t
4

28
0

1,
85

7
0

0
Yo

un
g 

Ad
ul

t
0

0
1

1,
20

4
34

55
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 0
-5

0
0

0
15

,5
32

0
0

C
hi

ld
re

n 
6-

11
0

0
0

0
0

0
G

en
er

al
 In

te
re

st
0

0
0

76
2

43
19

6
O

ut
si

de
 T

ot
al

4
28

0
0

47
22

4
86

37
2

41
3

Ad
ul

t
Yo

un
g 

Ad
ul

t
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s
To

ta
l

70
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

# 
of

 P
ro

gr
am

s
At

te
nd

an
ce

/
Vi

ew
s

47
22

4

0
C

ur
re

nt
 

B
al

an
ce

*

0
0

# 
of

 P
ro

gr
am

s
Vi

ew
s/

  
At

te
nd

an
ce

0 0

Pr
og

ra
m

s
At

te
nd

an
ce

0

W
hi

te
 P

in
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 L

ib
ra

ry
FY

 2
02

3-
20

24
An

nu
al

 R
ep

or
t

PH
YS

IC
AL

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
LO

C
AL

 E
LE

C
TR

O
N

IC
 

C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
(A

dv
an

ta
ge

, e
tc

.)

Lo
ca

lly
O

w
ne

d
R

eg
io

na
lly

 
O

w
ne

d

TO
TA

L 
PH

YS
IC

AL
 C

O
LL

EC
TI

O
N

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 C

irc
ul

at
io

n
in

cl
ud

es
 R

EA
D

S 
Ad

va
nt

ag
e 

& 
ot

he
r l

oc
al

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
e-

co
lle

ct
io

ns

Ph
ys

ic
al

 C
irc

ul
at

io
n

Bo
ok

 &
 N

on
-B

oo
k 

(A
ud

io
, V

id
eo

, 
Se

ria
ls

) 

O
th

er
 P

hy
si

ca
l I

te
m

s 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n
H

ot
sp

ot
s,

 s
ew

in
g 

m
ac

hi
ne

s,
 to

ol
s,

 c
ak

e 
pa

ns
, 

te
le

sc
op

es
, b

oa
rd

 g
am

es
, v

id
eo

 g
am

es
, e

tc
.

TO
TA

L 
FO

R
 A

LL
 C

IR
C

U
LA

TE
D

 IT
EM

S-
Au

to
 F

ill
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(E
le

ct
ro

ni
c,

 P
hy

si
ca

l &
 O

th
er

 P
hy

si
ca

l)
TO

TA
L 

PH
YS

IC
AL

 
IT

EM
 

C
IR

C
U

LA
TI

O
N

  
(n

o 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 
fo

rm
at

s)

Ad
ul

t *
*

3,
86

2
Ad

ul
t

Ad
ul

t 
Ad

ul
t T

ot
al

C
hi

ld
re

n 
**

11
3

C
hi

ld
re

n
C

hi
ld

re
n

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

To
ta

l

To
ta

l 
3,

97
5

To
ta

l 
To

ta
l 

To
ta

l f
or

 A
ll 

C
irc

ul
at

io
n

Ti
tle

 V
I S

ur
ve

y 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
(fo

r n
ew

 p
at

ro
n 

ca
rd

s)
Li

br
ar

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
Pr

og
ra

m
s

W
hi

te
Li

br
ar

y 
Vi

si
ts

In
si

de
 th

e 
Li

br
ar

y
Bl

ac
k

R
ef

er
en

ce
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns

In
-P

er
so

n 
   

   
   

   
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

   
   

   
   

Ad
ul

t
Am

er
ic

an
 In

di
an

-A
la

sk
a 

N
at

iv
e

C
om

pu
te

r U
se

rs
Yo

un
g 

Ad
ul

t
H

is
pa

ni
c 

or
 L

at
in

o 
of

 a
ny

 ra
ce

W
ire

le
ss

 S
es

si
on

s
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 0
-5

N
at

iv
e 

H
aw

ai
ia

n/
Pa

ci
fic

 Is
la

nd
er

W
eb

si
te

 V
is

its
C

hi
ld

re
n 

6-
11

As
ia

n
D

at
ab

as
es

 O
w

ne
d*

G
en

er
al

 In
te

re
st

O
th

er
Lo

ca
l D

at
ab

as
e 

U
sa

ge
In

si
de

 T
ot

al
Tw

o 
or

 m
or

e 
ra

ce
s

TE
L 

U
sa

ge
 (J

un
e 

on
ly

)
To

ta
l (

In
si

de
 &

 O
ut

si
de

)
To

ta
l 

IL
L 

-B
or

ro
w

ed
IL

L 
- L

oa
ne

d
Li

ve
 

Vi
rt

ua
l 

Pr
og

ra
m

s

 
N

um
be

r o
f L

iv
e 

Vi
rtu

al
 P

ro
gr

am
s

Vi
ew

s 
of

 L
iv

e 
Vi

rtu
al

 P
ro

gr
am

s
O

n-
D

em
an

d 
Vi

ew
s 

of
 L

iv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

s

1-
on

1 
te

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
st

an
da

rd
s 

on
ly

Vo
lu

nt
ee

r H
ou

rs
To

ta
l o

f A
ll 

In
-P

er
so

n 
an

d 
Li

ve
 V

irt
ua

l P
ro

gr
am

s

At
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t T
he

se
 E

ve
nt

s

B
or

ro
w

er
s

Ad
ul

t B
or

ro
w

er
s 

>1
4 

yr
s 

ol
d

C
hi

ld
re

n 
Bo

rro
w

er
s 

<1
4 

yr
s 

ol
d

R
ec

or
de

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

M
ee

tin
g 

R
oo

m
 U

se

N
um

be
r o

f E
ve

nt
s 

N
ot

 S
po

ns
or

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Li

br
ar

y

0
0

To
ta

l B
or

ro
w

er
s

To
ta

l O
n-

D
em

an
d 

Vi
ew

s 
of

 L
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

& 
R

ec
or

de
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Se

lf-
di

re
ct

ed
/P

as
si

ve
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
(a

ct
iv

ity
 th

at
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

ee
t p

ro
gr

am
 

de
fin

iti
on

)
7

49

http://tsla.libguides.com/datacollection


From: Terry Dockery
To: Mark Potts; LeAnn Sutton
Subject: Agenda Item
Date: Sunday, March 31, 2024 9:33:50 AM

Please add Eminent Domain Bills Update from David Seal to our workshop agenda.
 
Thank you and Happy Easter!

mailto:JCComm17@jeffersoncountytn.gov
mailto:mpotts@jeffersoncountytn.gov
mailto:Lsutton@jeffersoncountytn.gov


RESOLUTION 2023-62 1 

RESOLUTION 2023-62 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING RESOLUTION OF JEFFERSON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, PERMITTING BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEMS 

(BESS) USES ONLY WITHIN THE I-2 (ENVIRONMENTAL DISTRICT) ZONE 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 authorizes county legislative bodies 
to amend their zoning resolutions; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County (hereinafter referred to as 
the “CLB”) desires to submit certain amendments to the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution 
(hereinafter referred to as “Zoning Resolution”) to the Jefferson County Regional Planning 
Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “JCRPC”) for their consideration and approval or 
denial; and 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 requires that amendments to the 
Zoning Resolution be first submitted to the JCRPC for approval, disapproval or suggestions;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee (“CLB”), meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April, 2024, 
as follows: 

Section 1: Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §13-7-105, the CLB submits to the 
JCRPC for disapproval or approval the following amendments to the Zoning Resolution:  

Section 9.10. I-2, Environmental District is amended by adding a new subsection to 
section A. Permitted Uses:  

10. Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS).  BESS uses shall only be permitted in I-2 
zoned property. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these regulations shall take effect immediately 
upon passage, the public welfare requiring it. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, if any provision of this resolution or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this resolution which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application and to that end the provisions of this resolution are declared to be 
severable. 



RESOLUTION 2023-62 2 

Denied by the Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission: November 28, 2023 

Denied by the Dandridge Regional Planning Commission: February 13, 2024. 

Denied by the Jefferson City Regional Planning Commission: February 26, 2024 

Denied by the White Pine Regional Planning Commission: March 19, 2024. 

Public hearing held: April 8, 2024 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 

Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 

Votes:   __________       __________       __________       __________ 
  Yes              No          Abstain               Absent   

Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 

Attest: _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
 Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 

Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
 Mark Potts – County Mayor 

Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
 Mark Potts – County Mayor 

Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 

  Yes              No          Abstain               Absent   

Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 

James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission   



1 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT RULES REGULATING THE PROCEDURES OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 1 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE  2 
  3 
 WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners has need to operate in an orderly fashion 4 
carrying out the various legislative duties on the Commission; and   5 
 WHEREAS, the existing rules regulating the procedures of the Jefferson County Board of  6 
County Commissioners are in need of revision;  7 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Jefferson County Legislative Body meeting in regular session  8 
in Dandridge, Tennessee, on this 15th day of January 2007 that the following rules regulating the procedures  9 
of the Board of County Commissioners of Jefferson County are adopted, superseding “Rules Regulating  10 
Board of County Commissioners, Resolution 81-17.”  11 

  12 
Rule I -- Meetings    13 

A. Regular Meetings Day / Dates / Times - The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 6:30 p.m. on the 14 
third Mondays of any month in which they meet. They shall adopt a Schedule of Meeting Months at the 15 
April Regular Meeting of the preceding fiscal year.  Should a Monday fall on a legal holiday, Commission 16 
shall meet on the following day or on a date agreed to by the majority.  The June meeting may be 17 
scheduled to accommodate the fiscal year-end Budget Process. 18 

B. Committee Meetings – Standing and Special Committees shall meet as needed. Committee meeting 19 
dates will be published in a timely manner and also posted on the County website.  20 

C. Work Sessions – If the Commission also approves Work Sessions as a part of the Schedule of Meeting 21 
Months, then the Commission shall meet at 6:30 p.m. on the Monday of the week prior to any Regular 22 
Meeting for the sole purpose of information dissemination and discussion on agenda items.  No 23 
enactment of legislation or votes will be taken on any items of business.scheduled.  24 
The Commission Chair/County Clerk shall prepare and distribute an agenda listing the items of business 25 
in their proper order, along with a complete packet of supporting informational documents by 4:00 p.m. on 26 
Friday of the week preceding a Work Session.  These items shall include a listing of the committees, 27 
boards, and commissions scheduled to report with the names of those who will present the report; 28 
elections to be held; and resolutions/motions under old business and new business.  For items to be 29 
included on the Work Session agenda, they must be submitted to the County Clerk by 12:00 noon on the 30 
Thursday preceding the Work Session.  During the Work Session, County Commissioners may add items 31 
to the agenda for consideration at the Regular Meeting.  The Commission Chair/County Clerk shall 32 
distribute the final agenda to Commissioners within 48 hours of the conclusion of the Work Session. 33 

D. No Work Session - If the Commission does not approve Work Sessions as part of the Schedule of 34 
Meeting Months or if a scheduled Work Session cannot be held prior to a Regular Meeting. The 35 
Commission Chair/County Clerk shall prepare and distribute an agenda listing the items of business in 36 
their proper order, along with a completed packet of supporting informational documents, by 4:00 p.m. on 37 
the (6th) business day prior to the Regular Meeting.  These items shall include a listing of the committees, 38 
boards, and commissions scheduled to report with the names of those who will present the report; 39 



2 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

elections to be held; and resolutions/motions under old business and new business.  For items to be 1 
included on the Meeting Agenda, they must be submitted to the County Clerk by 12:00 noon on the (7th) 2 
workday preceding the Regular Meeting.  3 

E. Election of Chairman - The Commission shall elect a Chairman and a Chairman Pro Tempore at its first 4 
meeting on or after the first of September.  This chairman shall preside over sessions of the Board  5 

F. Called Meetings / Special Meetings -- Called Meeting may be called by the Mayor or by a majority 6 
request of the commission submitted in writing to the Chairman.  All called meetings will be held at the 7 
time specified in the public notice.  8 

G. Place of Meetings – All meetings of the Board shall be held at the Jefferson County Courthouse, 9 
Dandridge, Tennessee, unless otherwise specified.  10 

H. Quorum -- A quorum for the transaction of business shall be a majority (11) of the duly qualified and 11 
acting members of the Board of County Commissioners.  Vacancies shall not be included in determining 12 
the membership of the Board.  13 

I. No Quorum – Should no quorum attend within thirty (30) minutes after the hour appointed for the meeting 14 
of the Commission, or upon a meeting where a quorum shall have been lost, the Chair shall adjourn the 15 
meeting.  The names of the members present and their attendance at such meeting shall be recorded in 16 
the minutes by the Clerk. 17 

J. Cancellation of Meetings for Weather Conditions - The Chairperson may cancel any meeting for 18 
severe weather or weather in which travel may place a person at risk of personal injury or jeopardize 19 
public safety. Such cancellation would be based on the chairman’s consultation with local law 20 
enforcement officials and the current weather advisory forecast published by the local office of the 21 
National Weather Service.  22 
In such case, the Chairperson or a designee shall give notice of the cancellation of the meeting to all 23 
Commission members by phone or e-mail; notify the press and general public with as much advance 24 
notice as possible through public notice announcements on local media outlets and the county website.   25 

       In the case of a meeting cancelled for overnight occurrence of snow or ice conditions, or fast development 26 
of any severe weather, notice shall be given at the earliest practical time.  27 

K. Cancellation of Meetings for Non-weather Causes - In the event a meeting is cancelled for non-28 
weather related reasons such as hazmat incident, power outages, or other catastrophic events; the 29 
decision to cancel will be made by the Chairman in consultation with the Chairman Pro Tempore and the 30 
County Emergency Management Director.  31 

L. Rescheduling of a Cancelled Meeting - A meeting cancelled for climatic conditions or other causes will 32 
be rescheduled as early as possible, allowing for public notice of all interested parties.  Should the 33 
duration of the severe weather persist beyond one week, additional rescheduling information will be 34 
provided to commission members and the general public.  35 

  36 
Rule II -- Order of Business:  37 

A. Call to Order – In the absence of the Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore, the County Clerk shall call 38 
the meeting to order for the purpose of a roll call and the election of a Chairman Pro Tempore to serve as 39 
moderator for that meeting. 40 



3 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

B. Roll Call 1 
C. Prayer 2 
D. Pledge of Allegiance 3 
E. Proclamations / Courtesy Resolutions (if any) - Courtesy or Honorary Proclamations shall be 4 

distributed to commissioners for information only.  5 
F. Public Hearing – In the event there is an item of business which requires a public hearing of any kind, 6 

said public hearing shall be held at this point in the order of business.  At the conclusion of the public 7 
hearing, the meeting will reconvene in regular session of the Commission.  8 

G. Approval & Corrections of the Agenda –  9 
Work Session Held- The final agenda derived from the Work Session shall be presented to the 10 
Commission for approval as the Regular Meeting agenda.  Any Commissioner wanting to bring a matter 11 
before the Commission that was not included in the Work Session final agenda can rise to a Point of 12 
Privilege and request that a matter be placed on the agenda.  Commission shall allow the item to be 13 
discussed and acted upon under new business if addition of the item is approved by a two-thirds majority 14 
vote of (14) Commissioners. 15 
No Work Session Held- The agenda provided as part of the Regular Meeting packet will be presented to 16 
the Commission for approval as the Regular Meeting agenda.  Any Commissioner wanting to bring a 17 
matter before the Commission that was not included in the presented agenda can rise to a Point of 18 
Privilege, and request that a matter be placed on the agenda.  Commission shall allow the item to be 19 
discussed and acted upon under new business if addition fo of the item is approved by a two-thirds 20 
majority vote of (14) Commissioners. 21 

H. Consent Agenda – Any items placed on the consent agenda and not withdrawn shall be considered with 22 
one Roll Call vote at this time. Items considered for approval on the consent agenda, will be recorded as 23 
such in the minutes with the results of the vote. 24 

I. Approval of Minutes 25 
J. Appearance of Citizens – The purpose of this portion is to provide citizens an opportunity to address 26 

their government for items of concern that may or may not be on the agenda.  Citizens must follow Rule 27 
IX in order to speak.  Commission will not take any action at this time other than to refer the item to a 28 
committee or, by a vote of two-third majority, place it on the agenda under New Business.  29 

K. Proclamations / Courtesy Resolutions (if any) - Courtesy or Honorary Proclamations shall be 30 
distributed to commissioners for information only.  31 

L. Approval of Notaries & Bonds 32 
M. Election of Committees, Boards & Commissions/ Nominating Committee 33 
N. Reports from Elected Officials, Department Heads, Others 34 

1. County Mayor 35 
2. Other Elected Officials 36 
3. County Attorney 37 
4. Department/ Director Reports 38 



4 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

5. Reports of Committees, Boards & Commissions – Reports may be presented in writing or orally by the 1 
Committee Chair. During this time, only motions relative to the item in the committee report may be 2 
offered. 3 

O. Old Business 4 
P. New Business 5 
Q. Announcements 6 
R. Adjourn - No meeting should be permitted to continue beyond 11:00 p.m. without the approval of a 7 

majority of the Commission.  A new time limit must be established before taking a Commission vote to 8 
extend the meeting.  No new item shall be introduced later than 10:30 p.m.   9 

 10 
Rule III – Rules of Debate  11 
A.    Decorum.   12 

1. Every Commissioner desiring to speak shall address the Chairman, and upon said recognition by 13 
the Chairman, shall confine discussion to the question under debate, and shall avoid taking up any 14 
personal arguments, or the use of indecorous language.   15 

2. Commissioners shall refrain from: attacking a member’s motives; speaking adversely on a prior 16 
motion not pending; speaking while the Chairman or any Commissioner is speaking.   17 

3. A member once recognized should not be interrupted when speaking unless said member is being 18 
called to order. The member should then cease speaking until the question of order is determined, 19 
without debate, by the Chairman. If in order, said member shall be at liberty to proceed.   20 

4. A member shall be deemed to have yielded the floor when he or she has finished speaking. A 21 
member may claim the floor only when recognized by the Chairman.  22 

5. No member of the Commission shall speak more than once or more than six consecutive minutes 23 
on the same motion – except the Chairman of the Committee or the maker of a motion, who shall 24 
have the right to answer questions.  The maker of the motion shall have the right to make closing 25 
comments prior to taking the vote on such motion.  However, by majority vote, Commission may 26 
extend the length of time and the number of times a member may speak on a given motion.  27 

6. Appeals on Rulings that were made by the Chairman may be made by any Commissioner. A 28 
majority vote of the members present shall decide the appeal.  29 

7. Any elected official, county department head, or person appointed by the Board of Commissioners 30 
shall be allowed to address the Board in response to commission questions as needed for 31 
clarification, without suspension of the rules.  32 

8. Observers in Commission Chambers shall have the right to address the board at the time 33 
designated for “Citizen Input” if they have complied with Rule IX.  The Chairman may rule out of 34 
order any speaker failing to adhere to this rule.  Observers may have the right to address the 35 
Commission during the meeting upon suspension of the rules by the Commission for this purpose. 36 
 37 

B. Motions 38 
1. A motion and a second to the motion are to precede any vote on an agenda item.   39 
2. Any motion shall be made and seconded before it is opened for debate.   40 



5 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

3. Any motion, not coming from committee, which fails to receive a second is not open to debate.  The 1 
lack of a second indicates only one person of the commission favors the issue and it does not merit 2 
the time of the full body.  3 

4. A Motion coming from a committee needs no second, but is immediately open to debate until such 4 
time comes for the question.  5 

5. Motions in Writing – When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be reduced to writing by the 6 
Clerk or by the maker of the motion, and repeated by the Chairman prior to any debate or the taking 7 
of a vote.  8 

6. When a motion is presented and seconded, it is under consideration and no other motion shall be 9 
received thereafter, except to: adjourn, to lay on the table, to postpone, to substitute, or to amend 10 
until the question is decided.  These motions shall have preference in the order in which they are 11 
mentioned.   12 

7. Call for the Question - Any Commissioner, once recognized by the Chairman, may move to close 13 
debate and call the question on the motion being considered which shall be non-debatable. A 14 
successful vote on the motion to close debate will end discussion of the item. The Commissioner 15 
moving the adoption of an ordinance, resolution or motion shall have the privilege of closing the 16 
debate.   17 

8. If the Chairman wishes to put forth or second a motion, he or she shall relinquish the Chair to the 18 
Chairman Pro Tempore until the main motion, on which he or she spoke, has been disposed.   19 

9. The following motions are not debatable: to adjourn; to lay on the table; to take from the table; to 20 
call the question.  21 
 22 
 23 

C. Motions to Amend 24 
1. An amendment to a motion must be germane, that is, it must relate to the substance of the main 25 

motion. An amendment may not introduce an independent question, and an amendment may not 26 
serve as the equivalent of rejecting the original motion.   27 

2. A Commissioner may amend the main motion in either of the following two ways:   28 
i. By Consent of the Members. The Chairman, or another Commissioner through the 29 

Chairman, may ask for certain changes to be made to the main motion. If there are no 30 
objections from the maker of the motion, the motion shall stand as amended. 31 

ii. Formal Amendment. An amendment may be presented formally by moving to amend the 32 
motion in some way. If it is in the form of a formal motion to amend, a second shall be 33 
required and discussion shall follow on the amendment. If an amendment passes, the main 34 
motion shall be the motion as amended. If an amendment fails, the motion shall be the 35 
motion as it was before the amendment was presented. 36 

 37 
Rule IV – Resolutions  38 

A. Introduction:  Any proposed resolution may be introduced only by a member of the Board, and the 39 
Clerk or Chairman shall not receive any resolution that is not reduced to writing and signed by at least 40 



6 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

two (2) members of the Board.  In the absence of two signers to a resolution, a motion and second for 1 
adoption of the resolution shall satisfy this requirement.  A resolution requiring the appropriation of 2 
funds from county resources shall not be introduced unless it has been reduced to writing and met the 3 
Appropriation requirements set forth in Rule VIII.  4 

B. Author:  A resolution may have as many signatures as there are members of the Board.   5 
However, the first two (2) signatures on the resolution shall be deemed the authors for the purpose of 6 
debate.  7 

C. Roll Call Vote:  Resolutions shall be put to the Board for a roll call vote by the Clerk.   If more than one 8 
(1) resolution is introduced in the same meeting, each should be voted on independently.  Successful 9 
resolutions require a majority of the Commission body voting in favor of the resolution.  10 

D. Successful Resolutions:  All resolutions which are passed by the Board shall be submitted to the 11 
Chairman of the Board for his signature and attested by the signature of the Clerk.  12 
If the County Mayor does not preside, the resolution along with the vote of the Commissioners shall 13 
then be submitted to him/her, within five (5) days of its passage, for his/her consideration in accordance 14 
with law.  If the Mayor signs it, the resolution shall become effective immediately or on the date 15 
specified in the resolution. 16 
If the County Mayor vetoes the resolution, he shall return it to the Board of Commissioners for action 17 
on his veto, by transmitting the disapproved resolution to the Clerk, together with any written veto 18 
message the County Mayor chooses to provide. The Clerk shall thereafter immediately provide the 19 
Chairman of the Board and each Commissioner with a copy of the resolution so disapproved by the 20 
Mayor, together with whatever written veto message accompanies it.  Any matter vetoed by the County 21 
Mayor shall automatically be placed on the Agenda of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the 22 
Board of Commissioners to consider such vetoed resolution.  A motion to “override” the County Mayor’s 23 
veto shall be the appropriate motion to such matter before the Board of Commissioners.  As with all 24 
resolutions it must be seconded, but shall not be subject to amendment.  It shall require a Majority Vote 25 
of the full Board of Commissioners to override a veto by the County Mayor.  Such veto override must 26 
take place within twenty (20) days of the Clerk’s receiving the written message of veto for the County 27 
Mayor, or at the next regular meeting of the Commission, whichever is later.  If the County  28 
Mayor fails to either sign or to veto a resolution and to report his action to the Board of County 29 
Commissioners as herein prescribed within ten (10) days after the resolution is submitted to him, the 30 
resolution shall become effective without his signature upon the expiration of the ten (10) day period or 31 
at a later date if the resolution so provides.  The veto may not be exercised with respect to specific 32 
items or parts of items in the annual county budget, and may only be exercised with respect to the 33 
whole.  34 

  35 
Rule V - Duties of the Chair  36 
A. The Board shall be called to order by the Chairman.  In the Chair’s absence, the Chair Pro Tempore shall 37 

preside.  In the Chair Pro Tempore’s absence, the Commission shall be called to order by the Clerk for the 38 
purpose of electing one of its members to preside.  39 



7 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

B. Should the Chairman desire to speak on any subject on the floor to debate, he may do so, provided he 1 
vacates the chair. The Chair Pro Tempore shall preside until the matter under consideration is disposed of 2 
by the Commission. However, the Chair may answer questions, provide information, and give explanations 3 
from the chair, the Board not objecting.  4 

C. The Chairman shall preserve order and decorum.  He shall decide questions of order, subject to an appeal 5 
to the Board by any member.  6 

D. Points of Order –If any member, speaking or otherwise, transgresses the rules of the  7 
Commission, the Chairman or any member shall call him to order, in which case the member so called to 8 
order shall immediately cease his debate or action.  The point of order shall at once be decided by the 9 
Chairman, the member having the floor may proceed, subject to the decision made.  10 

E. Once a motion has been made and seconded, the Chairman shall state the motion so that debate on the 11 
motion may begin.  12 

F. The Chairman shall clearly state to the Commission the question under consideration before the vote on the 13 
question is taken.  A member may ask for clarification of the question up until that time at which the result of 14 
the vote is announced.  15 

G. The Chairman will present at the Work Session or in a pre-meeting packet a copy of each resolution to be 16 
presented to and the tentative agenda of the next regular meeting.  17 

H. The Chairman shall refer to committee any matter he deems necessary, subject to majority approval by the 18 
Board.  19 

  20 
 21 
 22 
Rule VI - Committee Structure and Elections & Appointments and Confirmations  23 
A. Committee Structure and Elections  24 

1. Every four years, after the County Commissioners have been elected and take office, but prior to 25 
the regularly scheduled September meeting, the Chairman, if re-elected, or the Chairman Pro 26 
Tempore, in his absence and if re-elected, or in his absence, the County Clerk shall convene 27 
Commission to select a Nominating Committee and to conduct any other business deemed 28 
necessary. All Standing and Special committees shall serve a two (2) year term. 29 

2.  The Nominating Committee shall be composed of one member from each Commission District.  30 
Members will serve two (2) years in each four (4) year-term and will only serve longer with the 31 
consent of the other member from the same district.  It shall be the duty of the Nominating 32 
Committee to recommend members for all Commission appointments to committees, boards, and 33 
commissions.    34 

3. The Nominating Committee will make recommendations for identified vacancies or rotations as 35 
needed for any statutory, standing, and special committee memberships unless the appointment or 36 
nomination is within the domain of the County Mayor or stipulated by statutory law.  The 37 
recommendation of the names of new appointments will be made at the October meeting or upon 38 
the first meeting following the vacancy.  39 



8 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

4. All committee memberships, boards, and commissions will be subject to a majority vote of the 1 
Commission at the October Quarterly Meeting or upon the first meeting following the vacancy.  2 

5. Committee Officer Election and Duties:  Upon election of a Committee, the members of the 3 
committee shall convene and elect a Chairman, Vice-Chair, and Secretary from its membership.  4 
The Committee Chairman is responsible for adequate and timely public notices of committee 5 
meetings.  The Chairman of the committee is responsible for filing a copy of any minutes rendered 6 
to the County Clerk’s Office.  7 

6. Minutes shall be maintained for all committee meetings by an elected secretary (optional) or the 8 
Committee Chairperson.  Minutes shall be given to the County Clerk and included as an addendum 9 
to regular Commission minutes appropriate to the time frame in which the committee meeting(s) 10 
and regular commission meeting(s) were held.  11 

7. Jurisdiction of a committee should be identified for statutory committees from TCA; for Standing 12 
Committees by definition as adopted by the County Commission; for Special  13 
Committees as prescribed in the “charge to the Committee” at its formation.  Questions of 14 
committee jurisdiction will be referred to the Chairman and/or County Attorney for determination, 15 
subject to an appeal to the Board at its next regular meeting.  16 

8. Report and Referrals:  The committee to which a request or resolution has been referred shall 17 
make a report at the next regular meeting after the referral unless the Board has specified  18 
otherwise in its request or resolution.  It is the responsibility of the Chairman of the Committee to 19 
see that this is listed on the agenda.   20 

9. Committee Reports will be made by the Committee Chairman or his designee in an open meeting 21 
of the Board.  Upon completion of a report, the speaker will yield to questions and discussion.  22 

10. Committee Recommendations that call for Board action should be presented to the Board as a 23 
Motion or Resolution per the procedures heretofore specified.  Committee recommendations do not 24 
need a second and will be open for debate until there is a “Call for the Question” by the Board.  25 

11. Committee Member Attendance is expected at all meetings.  However, should a committee 26 
member be unable to attend a committee or board meeting on which every district is represented, 27 
he/she may send the other/another commissioner from his/her District to serve as his/her proxy for 28 
that meeting.  The proxy representative would have the same voting and representation privileges 29 
as the named member of said committee.  30 

12. Committee Quorum is defined as no less than three (3) members present or a majority of the 31 
membership, whichever is greater.  32 

13. Failure to Meet If for any reason a Committee Chair fails or refuses to call a meeting, the Chairman 33 
of the Board, or a majority of committee membership may do so.  34 

B. Appointments & Confirmations  35 
1. When the Board is required or requested to confirm an appointee of the County Mayor then the 36 

name of such proposed appointee of those being considered for the position shall be read to the 37 
membership and discussion of each such appointee shall follow.  In the event nominations are 38 
submitted for more than one (1) position on the same board or committee, where the incumbent board 39 
or committee members serve until their successor is appointed and confirmed, the appointing authority 40 



9 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

shall designate the name of each nominee separately and shall indicate which incumbent he/she will be 1 
replacing or shall otherwise clearly indicate which specific opening on the board or committee for which 2 
the person is being nominated.  3 

2. Election or Confirmation:  All ballots for election or confirmation shall be cast by roll call vote as each 4 
member’s name is called by the Clerk.  If the vote is on confirmation of an appointment, each Board 5 
Member will vote either “Yes” or “No” on the confirmation.  A majority of the membership of the full 6 
board is required for election or confirmation.  7 

  8 
Rule VII - Voting  9 

A. Stating the Motion:  Prior to any vote, the Chairman shall read the motion as rendered by the maker of 10 
the motion and ask if everyone understands the motion.  11 

B. General Consent - Business can be expedited greatly by avoiding the formality of motions and voting in 12 
routine business (as in approving minutes & other reports) and on questions of little importance, the 13 
chair assuming general (unanimous) consent until someone objects. If at any time objection is made 14 
with reasonable promptness, the chair ignores what has been done in that case even if he has 15 
announced the result, and requires a regular vote.  16 

C. Voice Vote - All votes shall be taken by voice unless otherwise directed by the Chairman.  17 
D. Roll Call Vote - A roll call vote shall be taken if any one of the members so moves, and in all instances 18 

involving authorization to spend public funds, and in all elections and appointments coming before the 19 
Board.  The Clerk shall call the roll of “Yes” and “No” votes on any Roll Call Vote and in all instances 20 
involving authorization to expend public funds.  Upon any roll call, there shall be no discussion by any 21 
commissioner prior to voting, and each commissioner shall vote “Yes” or “No.”  A Commissioner may 22 
ask for a clarification or restatement of the question until such time the vote results are announced.  23 

E. Tabulating the Votes - It shall be the duty of the Clerk, at the end of each roll call vote, to inquire of all 24 
those who passed or were absent from chambers when the roll was called if they desire to vote.  The 25 
Chairman and Clerk shall tabulate the votes and the Chairman shall announce the results.    26 

F. Voting Required - Every member who was in the Commission Chambers when the question was put 27 
must give his or her vote, unless the member has publicly stated that he or she is abstaining from voting 28 
due to a conflict of interest pursuant to Tennessee Code as defined in T.C.A. 12-4-101.   29 

G. Abstaining based on Personal Preference - While it is the duty of every member who has an opinion 30 
on the question to express it by his/her vote, yet he/she cannot be compelled to do so. He/She may 31 
prefer to abstain from voting, though he/she knows the effect is the same as if he voted on the prevailing 32 
side.   33 

H. Abstaining based on Personal Interest – Any Commissioner who abstains for cause, as defined in 34 
T.C.A. 12-4-101, or otherwise determined by state law, on any motion coming to a vote before the 35 
Commission shall not be counted in determining the number of votes needed for a simple majority, a 36 
two-third majority or a three-fourths majority.   37 

I. Tie Votes – Should a tie vote occur, the motion is lost. Action on the immediate motion ends.  The 38 
motion may be restated and introduced again as a new motion with a proper second and debate, then 39 
move forward under a new vote.  40 



10 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

J. Enactment - A simple majority of the Board shall be required for the enactment of most legislation; to 1 
elect county officials, boards, and committees; to fix salaries and to appropriate money.  In some 2 
instances, enactment of legislation may require a two-thirds or three-fourths majority vote, if such a 3 
majority vote is stipulated in the statute or resolution.  4 

K. Consent Agenda - Business can be expedited greatly by avoiding the formality of separate motions and 5 
voting in routine business (as in approving minutes & other reports) and on questions of little importance 6 
or controversy. Items may be placed on the Consent Agenda at the Work Session by request of any 7 
Commissioner unless someone objects. Any item can be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda by simple 8 
request of any Commissioner during the “Approval and Corrections of the Agenda”, and if done, that 9 
item shall be placed on the heel of the Agenda. All items placed on the Consent Agenda shall be 10 
considered on one singular vote after “Approval and Corrections of the Agenda”. 11 

  12 
Rule VIII - Appropriations Request  13 
A. All Requests for Appropriations in addition to those within the annual budget and all proposed 14 

amendments to the annual budget shall be submitted to the Budget Committee which shall consider the 15 
request and recommend appropriate action to the County Commission.  16 

B. All Requests for Appropriations in the various funds of the county which are not itemized in the 17 
original fiscal year budget document shall indicate the total dollar expenditure requested for the current 18 
fiscal year and the source of revenue or reduction of expenditure to offset the appropriation.  If the 19 
request is of a recurring nature over more than one (1) fiscal year, estimates for the next two (2) full 20 
fiscal years expenditures shall be given in the appropriation resolution.  21 

C. Request for Expenditures requiring the use of fund balance reserves to fund the appropriation, which 22 
were not included in the original budget appropriation, shall not be effective unless approved by a 23 
majority vote of the commission.  24 

  25 
Rule IX - Citizen Input:  Addressing the Board   26 
A. Citizen Input - The Board recognizes the importance of protecting the right of all citizens to express 27 

their opinions on the operation of County government and encourage citizen participation in the local 28 
government process.  The Board also recognizes the necessity for conducting orderly and efficient 29 
meetings in order to complete County business in a timely manner.  30 

B. Citizen Input Card - Citizens wishing to make public comments to the Board at the prescribed agenda 31 
time should complete a “Citizen Input Card” prior to the meeting “Call to Order” and present the card 32 
to the Chairman or Clerk. 33 

C. Time Allowed to Speak - Citizens speaking will be allowed up to three (3) minutes for their comments.  34 
The Chairman has the discretion to either extend or reduce time limits, based on the number of 35 
speakers and the will of the Commission.  36 

D. Addressing the Commission  -  When a person’s name is called, the person shall step to the 37 
speaker’s floor lectern and shall give the following information in an audible tone of voice for the minutes 38 
provided:  39 



11 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

1. Name  1 
2. Place of Residence or Business address  2 
3. Make note if they speak as an individual, for a group, or represent a third party  3 

E. All remarks shall be addressed to the Commission as a body and not to any individual member 4 
thereof.  5 

F. No Person, other than a member of the Commission, and the person having the floor, may be permitted 6 
to enter into discussion without permission of the Chairman.  7 

G. Speakers should make their comments concise and to the point, and present any data or evidence 8 
they wish the commission to consider.  No person may speak more than once on the same subject 9 
unless granted permission by the Chairman.   10 

  11 
Rule X - Sheriff  12 
The Sheriff or his designee should attend all Board of Commissioners meetings, and shall attend 13 
committee meetings upon request of the committee Chairman.  If any person becomes disorderly or refuses 14 
to be in order, the Chairman shall call upon the Sheriff, Deputy Sheriff, or officer for assistance.  If such 15 
person refuses to come to order or to be seated, the Chairman shall declare such person disorderly and 16 
order his or her detention until such time as the Chairman deems that said person is willing to be orderly.  17 
Any Committee Chairman may invoke the same authority.  18 

  19 
     Rule XI – County Attorney  20 

A. The County Attorney shall prepare resolutions for action of the Board and respond to questions of the 21 
Board as well as perform such duties as the Board, County Mayor, or other County Officials require. The 22 
County Attorney shall further represent the County in all litigation pursuant to his/her arrangement with 23 
the County and on the authority of the Board of Commissioners, except when prevented by a conflict of 24 
interest or other ethical considerations. 25 

B. No person shall be confirmed to serve as County Attorney unless he is a duly licensed attorney.  If 26 
a parliamentarian is not elected from the Commission membership, the County Attorney will serve as 27 
the parliamentarian.  28 

C. Except for opinions pertaining to matters under current or threatened litigation, any advisory opinion 29 
issued by the County Attorney at the request of any county official shall be filed with the County Clerk 30 
and be available for public inspection.  31 

  32 
Rule XII –   The County Clerk shall be responsible for:  33 
A. Notifying all Commission members and the press of all meetings in the manner prescribed by law.  34 

Notification should be in a timely manner, but no less than five (5) days in advance of the meeting.  35 
B. Preparation and distribution of minutes of Commission meetings and meeting packets as defined in 36 

Rule I-D and Rule II-F.  The Clerk will maintain files of minutes of all standing and special committees.  37 
C. Resolutions:  A copy of all resolutions approved by the Board shall be submitted to the County Mayor 38 

by the Clerk after such approval, for his/her consideration and signature.  39 



12 
 JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION   

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Updated on 3/19/2007  
Amended on 10/18/2010  

Amended on 3/21/2011  
Amended on 01/22/2019 
Amended on 11/18/2019 
Amended on 06/29/2020 
Amended on 07/19/21 

D. Maintain official records of the county legislative body  1 
E. Other Duties as defined by TCA 18-6-101 and other TCA references.  2 

  3 
 Rule XIII – Robert’s Rules   4 
A. All matters not covered in these rules or state law, shall be governed by the latest edition of Robert’s 5 

Rules of Order.    6 
B. The Board shall Elect a Parliamentarian.  The parliamentarian shall either be a member of the 7 

Commission or the County Attorney.  If the parliamentarian is a Commissioner, the parliamentarian shall 8 
be allowed the same rights to debate and vote on motions as any Commissioner.  9 

  10 
Rule XIV – Rule Repeal & Suspension of Rules  11 
A. The foregoing Rules of Procedures may be amended or repealed by a vote of two-third majority of 12 

Commission. Rules shall be effective at the next meeting after approval.    13 
B. A Rule may be temporarily suspended by a vote of two-third majority vote of the Commission.  14 

  15 
Rule XV – Private Acts   16 

All proposed Private Acts forwarded to the Tennessee General Assembly for passage must be 17 
previously approved by the County Commission by a two-thirds majority vote prior to being sent to the 18 
General Assembly, the County Commission must subsequently approve the Private Act again at a 19 
regular or special called meeting, after approval by the General Assembly, by a two-thirds majority vote 20 
prior to the implementation of the Private Act.  21 
  22 

   Rule XVI – Rescind Actions  23 
Motions to Rescind or Amend Something Adopted at a previous meeting require a two-thirds 24 
majority vote by the Commission for approval, unless prior notice has been provided by having it in a 25 
committee report or placing it on the agenda by noon on the Tuesday of the week preceding the 26 
meeting that it will be voted on, in which case a majority of the commission can approve or placing it on 27 
the agenda in accordance with Rule I of these Rules of Procedure. 28 
 29 

   Rule XVII – Renewal Actions 30 
  Motions to renew a defeated motion from a previous meeting may be made by any Commissioner if the 31 

 topic has been properly included on the agenda.  A defeated item may not be included on the agenda of  32 
  the next meeting.  An item that is defeated twice may not be included on the agenda for 6 months.   33 
  Each defeat thereafter will preclude the item from inclusion on a meeting agenda for another 6 months.  34 

 However, nothing in this section will limit a Commissioner’s privilege under Rule II, Item f. 35 
  36 
   Rule XVIII – Conflict with Statutory Provisions Clause  37 

In the Event any of the Foregoing Rules are determined to be in conflict with statutory provisions, 38 
then only that part in conflict shall be null and void.  The remainder shall remain in full force and effect.  39 



County Commission Calendar 2024-2025 

 

July 08   Work Session   6:30 

July 15   Regular Meeting  6:30 

 

October 15  Work Session   6:30 

October 21  Regular Meeting  6:30 

 

January 13  Work Session   6:30 

January 20  Regular Meeting  6:30 

 

April 14   Work Session   6:30 

April 21   Regular Meeting  6:30 

 

June 23   Special Called    6:30 

   Budget Approval 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-07 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-07 

 
RESOLUTION LEVYING AND INCREASING THE SCHOOL/ ADEQUATE 

FACILITIES TAX ON THE PRIVILEGE OF RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly, in passing the County Powers Relief Act, Chapter 

953 of the Public Acts of 2006, provided authority for counties which qualify under the act to 
levy a tax on the privilege of residential development to be known as a school facilities tax; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee adopted the 
County Powers Relief Act and levied a School and/ or “Adequate” Facilities Tax on the privilege 
of residential development in Jefferson County; 

 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated §67-4-2901 et seq. and §67-4-2908 authorizes 

counties to levy and increase such taxes after four (4) years from the date the county initially 
levies the tax or from the date of the last increase in the rate of the tax by a percentage not to 
exceed ten percent (10%); 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee desires to 
increase the amount/ rate of the School and/ or Adequate Facilities Tax on the privilege of 
residential development in Jefferson County from one dollar ($1.00) per square foot of floor area 
for residential buildings by a percentage of ten percent (10%) to one dollar and ten cents ($1.10) 
per square foot of floor area for residential buildings; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee, meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April, 2024, in 
Dandridge, Tennessee as follows:  
 

SECTION 1. For the exercise of the privilege of residential development in Jefferson 
County, Tennessee, Jefferson County imposes a tax on residential development, including 
residential development in incorporated municipalities in the County.  The tax shall be in the 
amount of one dollar and ten cents ($1.10) per square foot of floor area for residential buildings.    

 
SECTION 2. If any provision of this resolution or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
this resolution which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application and to that 
end the provisions of this resolution are declared to be severable. 
 
 BE IT FURTEHR RESOLVED, that, this resolution shall become effective after its 
adoption by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of this legislative body at two (2) consecutive, regularly 
scheduled meetings and this shall tax be levied beginning on the first day of the month following 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-07 
 2 

 

at least thirty (30) days after the second vote, the public welfare requiring it. 
This resolution passed first reading at the regular April 15, 2024, meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners of Jefferson County by a vote of: 
 
YEAS _____ NAYS _____ PASSED _____ ABSENT _____ 
 
This resolution passed second reading at the regular July 15, 2024, meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners of Jefferson County by a vote of: 
 
YEAS _____ NAYS _____ PASSED _____ ABSENT _____ 
 
 
Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-11 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING RESOLUTION OF JEFFERSON 

COUNTY, TENNESSEE, REGARDING A NEW C-3- WHOLESALE AND 
WAREHOUSE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT.    

 
 Commission Prime Sponsor: Austin Brooks 

Commission Co-Sponsor:  Marcus Reed, Jim Snodgrass, Rob Blevins, Ransom Douglas, 
Janet Norton, Terry Dockery, Heidi Thomas, Katy Huffaker and Ronny Coleman 

 
 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 authorizes county legislative bodies 
to amend their zoning resolutions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County (hereinafter referred to as 
the “CLB”) desires to submit certain amendments to the Jefferson County Zoning Resolution 
(hereinafter referred to as “Zoning Resolution”) to the Jefferson County Regional Planning 
Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “JCRPC”) for their consideration and approval or 
denial; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated § 13-7-105 requires that amendments to the 
Zoning Resolution be first submitted to the JCRPC for approval, disapproval or suggestions;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Jefferson County, Tennessee (“CLB”), meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April, 2024, 
as follows: 
 
 Section 1: Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §13-7-105, the CLB submits to the 
JCRPC for disapproval or approval the following proposed amendments to the Zoning 
Resolution:  
 
 A new section in Article 9, Section 9.8a- C-3, Wholesale and Warehouse Commercial 
District, which states:   
 

9.8a C-3, Wholesale and Warehouse Commercial District. The intent of this district is 
to provide for wholesaling, warehousing, and storage.  Establishments within this district should 
focus on supportive uses to both industrial and residential needs and should act as a buffer 
between more intense and less intense land uses.  Consideration should be given to the 
relationship of this district to the surrounding land uses and the adequacy of the street system to  

 
serve the anticipated traffic needs.  This district should be established in accordance with 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 2 

 

the Goals, Objectives, Policies, and Development Criteria of the Urban Growth Plan and Land 
Use Plan (Comprehensive Plan). 
 A. Permitted Uses: To achieve the intent of this district, the following uses are 
permitted:  

1.   Wholesale establishment, wholesale establishment with warehouses, storage, and 
warehousing. 
2.   Shops of special trade and general contractors. 
3.   Machine shops. 
4.   Garden centers. 
5.  Automobile service stations.  
6.   Major or minor automobile and truck repair. 
7.   Office/warehouse facilities. 

 B.   Prohibited Uses: All uses other those listed as permitted uses shall be prohibited. 
The uses below are prohibited in this zoning district The uses listed below are provided for 
illustration purposes and for the purpose of limiting permitted uses and are not intended to be a 
total listing of all the uses that are prohibited. 

1.   Heavy manufacturing, heavy assembling, compounding, packaging, bottling, 
processing, and other industrial uses. 
2.   Refuse dumps, landfills, transfer stations, and incinerators.   
3.   Smelting plants, asphalt plants, chemical plants, and solar or wind energy systems. 
4.   The above-or below-ground storage of any flammable material in gaseous form, 
including compressed natural gas. 
5.  Value-added processing and product sales, slaughterhouses, and custom 
slaughterhouses. 
6.  Adult oriented businesses and methadone/pain management facilities.  

 C.    Minimum Lot Size – Two (2) Acres. 
 D.    Minimum Lot Frontage - Two hundred (200) feet. 
 E.    Minimum Building Setbacks: 

1.  Principal building/structure: Front – sixty (60) feet; Rear – twenty (20) feet; Side – 
fifty (50) feet, provided that a setback of one hundred (100) feet is required from any lot 
line for which there is a dwelling unit located on the adjoining property. 
2.  Accessory building: Not permitted in front yards. Must be located fifty (50) feet from 
side property lines and twenty (20) feet from rear property line, provided that a setback of 
one hundred (100) feet is required from any lot line for which there is a dwelling unit 
located on the adjoining property. 

 F.    Maximum structure size: Combined principal and accessory building – ten 
thousand (10,000) square feet.  
 G.    Buffer Strip: A buffer strip (as defined in Article 5) is required on both side 
property lines; a buffer strip also is required on the rear property line, if there is a dwelling unit 
located on the adjoining property.  
 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 3 

 

Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission: Approved: __ Disapproved: __ this 
resolution. 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Chairman Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Secretary Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission 
 
Jefferson City Regional Planning Commission: Approved: __ Disapproved: __ this 
resolution. 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Chairman Jefferson City Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Secretary Jefferson City Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
Town of Dandridge Regional Planning Commission: Approved: __ Disapproved: __ this 
resolution. 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Chairman Dandridge Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
________________________________________________ Date: _________________ 
Secretary Dandridge Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-11 
 4 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-02 
 1 

 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 

Board of Commissioners 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 

 
RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE JUVENILE 

COURT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY TO SURPLUS AND DISPOSE SAID EQUIPMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, the Juvenile Court of Jefferson County desires to declare surplus and dispose 
certain equipment, which is more particularly described and itemized in the attachment hereto as 
Exhibit A; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee, find that the 
equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A should be declared surplus 
and said surplus equipment should be disposed of in order to promote public welfare and safety. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson 
County, Tennessee, meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April 2024, in Dandridge, 
Tennessee, that the equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A, is 
hereby declared to be surplus equipment and the Juvenile Court is hereby authorized to surplus 
and dispose said property in accordance with state law.  
 
 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect upon passage, the 
public welfare requiring it. 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-02 
 2 

 

 
Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 



Juvenile Court of Jefferson County 
State of Tennessee 

765 Justice Center Drive, Suite 3, Dandridge, TN  37725 
Phone (865) 397-2906 – Fax (865) 397-2705 

 

       
 
 
 
 
 

 
To:                   LeAnn Sutton – Jefferson County Mayor’s Office 
From:   Teresa Moyers – Juvenile Court Director 
Reference:   Jefferson County Juvenile Court – Surplus Equipment 
Date:        March 18, 2024 
 
 
 
I would like to request that an outdated and unreliable vehicle be declared as surplus and taken off the 
inventory of the Jefferson County Juvenile Court. 
 
JUVENILE COURT PURCHASED THE FOLLOWING VEHICLE IN  
MAY OF 2003: 
 
2004 CHEVEROLET IMPALA – WHITE 
VIN # 2G1WF52K649455542 
TAG # GW-4773 
  
Per County Policy, the attached email was sent out to all County departments on May 11, 2023 and no 
response was received.  
 
If this surplus inventory is approved, this vehicle will be given to the Jefferson County Garage to be 
evaluated and redistributed for further use, donated to other institutions, salvaged for parts, disposed of, or 
sold. 
 
Thank you so much for your consideration and assistance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dennis “Will” Roach, II 
Juvenile Judge 

 
Teresa M. Moyers 

Director 
 

Barry G. Fain 
Youth Services Officer 

 
Michelle Nix 

Youth Services Officer 
 

Garet Keller 
Youth Services Officer 

 
Pamela Zaiger 

Juvenile Court Deputy Clerk 
 

Kandace Roberts 
Juvenile Court Deputy Clerk 

 
Tommy Clapp 

Safe Baby Court Coordinator 

 



 



RESOLUTION 2024-08 1 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 2024-08 

RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE FINANCE 
DEPARTMENT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY TO SURPLUS AND DISPOSE SAID 

EQUIPMENT 

WHEREAS, the Finance Department of Jefferson County desires to declare surplus and 
dispose certain equipment, which is more particularly described and itemized in the attachment 
hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee, find that the 
equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A should be declared surplus 
and said surplus equipment should be disposed of in order to promote public welfare and safety. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson 
County, Tennessee, meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April 2024, in Dandridge, 
Tennessee, that the equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A, is 
hereby declared to be surplus equipment and the Finance Department is hereby authorized to 
surplus and dispose said property in accordance with state law.  

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect upon passage, the 
public welfare requiring it. 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-08 2 

 

Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 



From: Jessica Elder
To: LeAnn Sutton
Subject: Surplus Chairs
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 5:29:38 PM

LeAnn,
 
The Finance Department would like to surplus 3 office chairs that are no longer needed. We
have checked with other departments within the county, and no one has responded back to
wanting them. They can be surplused as the County Building Director, David Longmire, sees
needed.
 
Thank you,

Jessica Elder

Finance Director
Jefferson County
865.397.4922 ext.2101

 

mailto:jelder@jeffersoncountytn.gov
mailto:Lsutton@jeffersoncountytn.gov


RESOLUTION 2024-24 1 

Jefferson County, Tennessee 
Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 2024-12 

RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE OF JEFFERSON COUNTY TO SURPLUS AND SELL ON GOVDEALS.COM 

SAID EQUIPMENT 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Department of Jefferson County desires to declare surplus and 
sell on GovDeals.com certain equipment, which is more particularly described and itemized in the 
attachment hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson County, Tennessee, find that the 
equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A should be declared surplus 
and said surplus equipment should be sold in order to promote public welfare and safety. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Jefferson 
County, Tennessee, meeting in regular session on the 15th day of April 2024, in Dandridge, 
Tennessee, that the equipment described and itemized in the attachment hereto as Exhibit A, is 
hereby declared to be surplus equipment and the Sheriff’s Department is hereby authorized to 
surplus and sell on GovDeals.com said property in accordance with state law.  

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect upon passage, the 
public welfare requiring it. 



 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-24 
 2 

 

 
 
 
 
Date of Adoption by County Commission:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Date Received by County Mayor:  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Votes:    __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
   
Attest:  _______________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Frank C. Herndon – County Clerk 
 
 
Approved: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
 
Vetoed: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
   Mark Potts – County Mayor 
 
 
Veto 
Override 
Votes: __________       __________       __________       __________ 
                   Yes              No          Abstain               Absent        
 
  
Veto 
Override: ________________________________________ Date:  ___________ 
  James E. Carmichael – Chairman, County Commission 
 
 





JEFFERSON COUNTY BEER BOARD 
Monday, April 15, 2024 

Immediately Following Jefferson County Commission Meeting @ 6:30 P.M. 
Jefferson County Courthouse Court Room 

 
AGENDA 

I. Call to Order 
II. Roll Call 

III. Approval of Minutes - None 
IV. Item for Consideration and Action  

 
Application:  On  & Off Premises Permits (Handout) 
Said Applicant:  Mark Deift 
Doing Business as: Lake 17 LLC, DBA Indian Creek Dock 
Located at:  2321 Norman Way 
   Dandridge, TN 37725 
 

V. Adjourn 
 










	04  08 2024 Work Session Agenda
	Hometown Hero
	Resolution 2023-49  Special Use Permits
	2024-04 Rezoning C-2 to A-1 Bramble Lane
	2024-04 Rezoning C-2 to A-1 Bramble Lane
	20240401073029

	2024-06 Rezoning A-1 to C-2 Eddie Otis
	2024-06 Rezoning A-1 to C-2 Eddie Otis
	20240401073526

	REGULAR QUARTERLY SESSION JANUARY 22, 2024
	Proclamations
	Notaries
	Mayoral Appointments
	Resolution 2024-01 TOSHA Updated Plan
	Resolution 2024-10 CDBG Administrative Services
	Eminent Domain Reform
	EV Charging Station Agreement
	Circuit Court Clerk
	Circuit Court Cler Fire Alarm Procedures
	Hwy Department
	Register of Deeds
	Sheriff's Department
	Trustee
	JCCD Quarterly Report
	Building Department
	Jefferson County Schools
	JC Schools Information Only
	2024-122 Opposing Governor Lee's Education Freedom Act  Jan 2024
	2024-123 Resolution to Rename Patriot Stadium to Craig Kisabeth Stadium  Feb 1 2024
	2024-124 Technology Surplus  Mar 7 2024

	E911
	Department CFS Totals For CallType ListJUSTIN04012024101938.pdf
	ECaTSReportGeneratorViewer.ashx.pdf

	EMS
	Sheet1

	Environmental Office
	Month
	The above totals are a reflection of fees collected according to the Fee Schedule listed below:

	Activities Memo
	MEMO
	FROM: Toni Caprio/Environmental Dept. Jefferson County
	SEWAGE VISITS:

	Copy of Jefferson County Totals 2023-2024 (002).pdf
	Sheet1


	Finance Director Report
	February 2024 Monthly Financials for County Commission
	Surplus Property Policy

	Office of Aging  Report
	Tourism
	UT Extension Quarterly Report
	Veterans Services
	Budget Committee Items
	Budget Amendments County
	Fund 101 #19, Item 1
	Fund 101 #20, Items 1-18
	Fund 101 #21, Items 1-4
	Fund 116 #4, Item 1
	Fund 121 #4, Item 1
	Fund 122 #1, Item 1
	Fund 131 #2, Item 1
	Fund 151 #2, Items 1-2
	Fund 171 #3, Items 1-5
	Fund 174 #1, Item 1
	Fund 189 #2, Item 1
	Fund 207 #3, Items 1-3

	Budget Amendments Schools
	Fund 141 #13, Items 1-2
	Fund 141 #14, Item 1
	Fund 141 #15, Items 1-8
	Fund 141 #16, Items 1-2
	Fund 141 #17, Item 1
	Fund 141 #18, Items 1-10
	Fund 141 #19, Item 1
	Fund 142 #7, Items 1-2
	Fund 142 #8, Items 1-3
	Fund 142 #9, Items 1-3
	Fund 143 #3, Item 1
	Fund 177 #5, Item 1

	Resolution 2024-09 TCRS Military Credit
	4.3 Debt Management Policy
	Jefferson County - Redemption Letter - 2010

	Jefferson Alliance
	Chamber County Commission Report_Jan_Mar2024
	CARE
	Dandridge Fire Dept
	Jefferson County Rescue Squad Quarterly Report
	New Market Fire Department
	Parrotts Chapel FD
	White Pine FD Quarterly Report Jan1-Mar31
	Jefferson County Library Board Nominations
	Dandridge Public Library
	Jefferson City Public Library
	Parrott-Wood Memorial Library Quarterly Report for the County Commission
	White Pine Library
	YEARLY TOTALS

	Eminent Domain Update Commissioner Dockery
	Resolution 2023-62 BESS Updated
	JCC Rules of Procedure 01 26 2024 Consent Draft
	Rule I -- Meetings
	Rule IV – Resolutions
	Rule V - Duties of the Chair

	A. Committee Structure and Elections
	B. Appointments & Confirmations
	Rule VII - Voting
	Rule VIII - Appropriations Request
	Rule IX - Citizen Input:  Addressing the Board
	Rule X - Sheriff
	Rule XI – County Attorney
	Rule XIII – Robert’s Rules
	Rule XIV – Rule Repeal & Suspension of Rules
	Rule XV – Private Acts
	Rule XVI – Rescind Actions
	Rule XVIII – Conflict with Statutory Provisions Clause


	Commission Calendar 2024-2025
	Resolution 2024-07 Adequate Facilities Tax
	Resolution 2024-11 New C-3 Zoning
	Resolution 2024-02 Resolution Juvenile Court to Surplus and Dispose Vehicles
	Resolution 2024-02 Resolution to Surplus Juvenile Court
	Surplus Vehicle Request 2024
	Teresa M. Moyers
	Barry G. Fain
	Michelle Nix
	Garet Keller
	Pamela Zaiger
	Kandace Roberts
	Tommy Clapp



	Resolution 2024-08 Finance Department Surplus and Dispose of Chairs
	Resolution 2023-08 Finance Department Surplus and Dispose of Chairs

	Resolution 2024-12 Sheriff's Department Surplus and Sell Vehicle
	Resolution 2024-12 Surplus and Sell Vehicle

	Beer Board Items
	Beer Board 04 15 2024 Agenda
	20240404132822




